No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim
otherwise. No official of the Government of the Province of Ontario has considered the merits of the matters addressed
in this Offering Statement.
This document contains important information about the securities offered for sale by the Co-operative named below.
You should read the whole Offering Statement before deciding whether or not to buy these securities. All prospective
purchasers of these securities must receive this Offering Statement before completing their purchase. Investors should
not rely on any information other than what is contained in this Offering Statement. The information in any projections
or pro forma statements contained in this Offering Statement may vary materially from actual results. There is no
established market through which these securities may be sold.
August 19, 2020

OFFERING STATEMENT

INTEGRATED GRAIN PROCESSORS CO-OPERATIVE INC.
Minimum Aggregate Offering: None
Maximum Aggregate Offering: $15,020,000
Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc. (the “Co-operative”) is offering to sell Membership Shares, 2020
Debentures, and Class E Preference Shares.* The Maximum Aggregate Offering may be raised in such
combination of Membership Shares, 2020 Debentures and Class E Preferences Shares as is indicated below.
Prospective Members of the Co-operative must first be admitted into membership by the Board of Directors of the
Co-operative and purchase five Membership Shares for an aggregate purchase price of $500. All prospective
purchasers of Membership Shares must currently hold or purchase a minimum of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares.
Membership
Shares

2020 Debentures

Class E Preference
Shares

Maximum
Aggregate Offering

Minimum Offering

None

None

None

None

Maximum Offering

$20,000

$15,000,000

$5,000,000

$15,020,000

Par Value /
Denomination

$100

$1,000

$5.00

N.A.

Minimum Individual
Purchase

$500

$2,000

$25,000

N.A.

Maximum Individual
Purchase

$500

$2,000,000

$500,000

$2,500,500
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*See Section 8 below (“Description of Securities Offered”) for further details on the securities offered for sale. The
following is only a summary of the key features of the securities offered and investors should read the full description
of these securities contained in Section 8.
Unless a person currently holds Class E Preference Shares, a prospective subscription for Class E Preference Shares
is subject to a minimum purchase of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000 or a
minimum acquisition of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares at the then current price on the Co-operative’s trading
platform operated by Caldwell Securities. Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or
to purchase such number of Class E Preference Shares as to cause such shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E
Preference Shares to equal or exceed 5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Cooperative must, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, also purchase a minimum of five Membership Shares
and be admitted into membership in the Co-operative.
Prospective purchasers of 2020 Debentures under this Offering Statement must own Membership Shares and/or Class
E Preference Shares, or be approved by the Board of Directors. The approval of a purchaser of 2020 Debentures by
the Board of Directors shall be based on factors including, but not limited to, the same criteria as are applied by the
Board of Directors when considering the admission of a new member to the Co-operative (See Section 3 Description
of the Business of the Co-operative – Membership Requirements).
Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares, and 2020 Debentures cannot be transferred without the prior approval
of the Board of Directors.
There is no minimum offering amount under this Offering Statement. The principal use of the funds raised under this
Offering Statement will be to support IGPC’s debt servicing obligations under its Senior Credit Facilities, facilitate
IGPC’s continued compliance with the covenants under these Senior Credit Facilities, fund working capital, redeem
maturing debentures, and/or reduce term debt under its Senior Credit Facilities. Subject to the foregoing, all funds
raised from this offering will be used by the Co-operative for working capital purposes for the Co-operative and/or
IGPC Ethanol Inc. at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
The securities offered hereunder are issued under the Act and are exempt from the prospectus and registration
requirements of the Securities Act. The Board of Directors have set the price of the securities offered hereunder.
No official of the Government of Ontario has considered the merits of the matters addressed in this Offering
Statement. Neither the Ontario Securities Commission, the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario
nor any other ministry or agency of the Government of Ontario assumes any liability or obligation to anyone
who purchases the securities offered under this Offering Statement.
There is no established market for the Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares, or 2020 Debentures
offered under this Offering Statement.
Although a mechanism for the facilitation of the purchase and sale of Class E Preference Shares has been established
with Caldwell Securities Ltd. (“Caldwell Securities”), investors should still anticipate that the market for Class E
Preference Shares will continue to be highly illiquid. Purchasers may not be able to resell the securities purchased
pursuant to this Offering Statement. The Co-operative will enter into an agreement with Caldwell Securities Ltd. to
act as the registered holder of the 2020 Debentures and as an intermediary if a beneficial owner of 2020 Debentures
wishes to sell such 2020 Debentures. No Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares or 2020 Debentures of the
Co-operative may be transferred without the express consent of the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of
the Business of the Co-operative – Membership Requirements and Section 3 - Description of the Business of the
Co-operative – Establishment of a Share Transfer Mechanism.
Purchasers of 2020 Debentures must open an investment account with Caldwell Securities which will act as the
registered holder of all 2020 Debentures and will hold such 2020 Debentures, as nominee, on behalf of beneficial
owners who have established investment accounts with Caldwell Securities. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures should
contact Caldwell Securities with respect to all matters relating to their subscription for 2020 Debentures and the
holding and transfer of such 2020 Debentures, including, without limitation, with respect to the receipt of any
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payments that may be made by the Co-operative in respect of the 2020 Debentures and the exercise of voting rights
in respect of the 2020 Debentures that holders beneficially own. Purchasers are responsible for making their own
arrangements with Caldwell Securities with respect to the holding by Caldwell Securities of 2020 Debentures on their
behalf and the Co-operative assumes no liability for any loss suffered by a holder of 2020 Debentures in respect of
such arrangements.
All certificates representing 2020 Debentures will be registered in the name of Caldwell Securities, as nominee for
each purchaser, and therefore purchasers of 2020 Debentures will not be entitled to receive a definitive certificate or
other instruments from the Co-operative representing their interest in their 2020 Debentures. Purchasers of 2020
Debentures will receive only a customer confirmation from Caldwell Securities. If at any time after the issue of 2020
Debentures it is determined that Caldwell Securities shall no longer act as the registered holder of 2020 Debentures,
the Co-operative shall issue or cause to be issued certificates representing 2020 Debentures registered in the names of
the persons who beneficially own such 2020 Debentures. See Section 8 – Description of Securities Offered.
Investors should not rely on any information other than what is contained in this Offering Statement. Potential buyers
should pay careful attention to all the risk factors noted in this Offering Statement. See Section 5 - Risk Factors. The
information in any FOFI contained in this Offering Statement may vary materially from actual results.
This Offering Statement expires on [July 31], 2021. No further securities may be issued under this Offering
Statement after such date. Thereafter, securities of the Co-operative may only be issued pursuant to a new
offering statement that is filed and receipted.
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GLOSSARY
In this Offering Statement the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth below:
“2017 Debentures” means the unsecured debt instruments in the aggregate principal amount of $7,292,000
sold under an offering statement of the Co-operative dated March 31, 2017 with a term expiring on August
15, 2022, bearing interest at 5.5% per annum;
“2019 Debentures” means the unsecured debt instruments in the aggregate principal amount of $7,505,000
sold under an offering statement of the Co-operative dated May 14, 2019 with a term expiring on January 31,
2022, bearing interest at 7.0% per annum;
“2020 Debentures” means the unsecured debt instruments, to be sold under this Offering Statement, with a
term expiring on July 31, 2023, regardless of the date of issuance of any 2020 Debentures, bearing interest at
7.0% per annum;
“Act” means the Co-operative Corporations Act (Ontario) and the Regulations thereunder, as amended from
time to time;
“Air Liquide” means Air Liquide Canada Inc., a world leader in gases, technologies and health services;
“Air Liquide Facility” means the facility built and operated by Air Liquide adjacent to the Plant and located
on the Aylmer Property, in connection with the AL Agreement and related real property lease and service
agreements between IGPC and Air Liquide;
“AL Agreement” means the agreement for the sale and delivery of IGPC’s CO2 Co-Product to the Air
Liquide Facility effective as of April 2016 between IGPC and Air Liquide;
“Andersons”, formerly known as “Thompsons”, has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3 Description of
the Business of the Co-operative- Business with Members;
“Andersons Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative- Business with Members.
“Aylmer Property” means the approximately 48.2 acres of land which IGPC owns in Aylmer, Ontario and
upon which the Plant is constructed and operated and upon which the Air Liquide Facility has been
constructed and operated;
“BDC” means the Business Development Bank of Canada;
“BDC Facility” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 Business Plan - Senior Credit Facilities;
“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Co-operative;
“Caldwell Securities” means Caldwell Securities Ltd., a registered “investment dealer” within the meaning
of the Securities Act;
“Carbon Dioxide” or “CO2” means a gas which is generated as a Co-Product of the ethanol fermentation
process;
“CHP” means Combined Heat and Power, also known as cogeneration, is the generation of two useful types
of energy (normally electricity and steam) from a single fuel source. IGPC installed an internal combustion
engine at the Plant in October 2015;
“Co-operative” means Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.;
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“Co-Product” means any of Carbon Dioxide, Corn Oil, DDGS, and DWG and “Co-Products” means any
two or more of the foregoing;
“Corn Oil” means the oil that is separated from the dried distillers’ grain, a Co-Product of a dry mill ethanol
facility, and which is sold to the biofuel industry;
“DDGS” means distillers dried grains with solubles, a Co-Product of a dry mill ethanol facility, which is sold
as an animal feed ingredient for dairy and beef cattle, poultry and swine. This Co-Product is sold in a standard
protein version and a high protein version;
“Debenture Indenture” means the trust indenture governing the terms of the 2020 Debentures to be entered
into between the Co-operative and Computershare Trust Company of Canada, in its capacity as trustee
thereunder;
“Debt to Equity Ratio” has the meaning ascribed to it in the FCC Credit Agreement;
“Distillers Grains” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 Business Plan - Plant Facility;
“DWG” means distillers wet grains, the initial Co-Product of the grain fermentation process, prior to drying,
which is sold as an animal feed ingredient for dairy and beef cattle, poultry and swine. This Co-Product is
sold in a standard protein version and a low protein/high energy version;
“E15” means gasoline blended with 15% ethanol;
“E85” means gasoline blended with 85% ethanol;
“Epcor” (formally known as NRG) means Epcor Natural Gas Limited Partnership, which purchased the
business of NRG as descripted in Section 4 Business Plan - Natural Gas Delivery;
“ethanol” means a two-carbon alcohol produced either chemically from the hydration of ethylene (derived
from natural gases) or biologically by the fermentation of carbohydrate materials such as starches (for
example corn), sugars and cellulose;
“Ethanol Marketing Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 Business Plan - Plant Facility;
“FCC” means Farm Credit Canada Inc.;
“FCC Credit Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 Business Plan - Senior Credit
Facilities;
“FCC Facility” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 Business Plan - Senior Credit Facilities;
“Fed Dev” means the Federal Economic Development Agency for Southern Ontario;
“Financial Year” has the meaning ascribed to it in the FCC Facility, being September 30 of each year;
“Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” has the meaning ascribed to it in the FCC Facility;
“FOFI” has the meaning attributed thereto under the “Forward Looking Statements” section of this Offering
Statement;
“FST” means Fibre Separation Technology™, an ICM technology added to the Plant in 2015 which
concentrates the proteins and carbohydrates while cleaning and separating the fibre components of the corn
to create differentiated Co-Products;
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“Fuel Ethanol” means ethanol utilized as an additive in gasoline;
“ICM” means ICM, Inc.;
“IGPC” means IGPC Ethanol Inc. the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Co-operative, incorporated under the
OBCA, which is the owner and operator of the Plant;
“Information Database” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative - Establishment of Share Transfer Mechanism;
“Investing in Business Growth and Productivity Contribution Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to
it in Section 11 Debt Obligations of the Co-Operative;
“License Agreement” means the agreement currently in force between ICM and IGPC for the licensing of
the technology and intellectual property associated with the Plant;
“MTs” means metric tonnes;
“New Plant” means the ethanol production facility expansion completed in 2018. The New Plant is owned
and operated by IGPC, located on the Aylmer Property and is subsumed and integrated with the original plant
completed in 2008 including the integration and/or expansion of the technologies and efficiencies described
in Section 4 – Business Plan - Plant Facility;
“NRG” means Natural Resource Gas Limited; the former natural gas distributor to IGPC, that sold its
business to Epcor as described in Section 4 Business Plan – Natural Gas Delivery;
“OBCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) and the regulations thereunder, as amended from
time to time;
“Offering” means the distribution of the securities being offered pursuant to this Offering Statement;
“OMAFRA” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 14 Material Contracts - Ontario Ethanol Growth
Fund Capital Grant;
“Plant” means the ethanol production facility currently owned and operated by IGPC located on the Aylmer
Property, including both the originally constructed plant, completed in 2008, and the New Plant completed
in 2018;
“RBC” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4 - Senior Credit Facilities;
“RBC Credit Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 4 - Senior Credit Facilities;
“Securities Act” or “Ontario Securities Act” means the Securities Act (Ontario) and the rules, regulations,
instruments and policy statements made thereunder, as amended from time to time;
“Senior Credit Facilities” means any of the Senior Debt Financing;
“Senior Debt Financing” means any loans advanced to IGPC including the loan facilities made available
under the FCC Facility, the BDC Facility, and the RBC Credit Agreement which are secured by: (a) an
unlimited guarantee by the Co-operative in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and obligations
thereunder, provided that, recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought from, the members of the Cooperative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or debentures issued pursuant to this
Offering Statement; and (b) the assets and real property of IGPC;
“Senior Lenders” means any person providing Senior Debt Financing;
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“Share Transfer Recordkeeping Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3 Description of the
Business of the Co-operative - Establishment of Share Transfer Mechanism; and
“SMT” means Selective Milling Technology™, which was installed in the summer of 2013 allowing the plant
to increase efficiency by using energy to free more starch for enzyme conversion by breaking larger starch
particles into smaller ones.
Currency
All dollar amounts set out in this Offering Statement are in Canadian dollars (“CAD”) except where otherwise
indicated.
Market Data and Industry Information
Market data and certain industry information and forecasts used in this Offering Statement were obtained from market
research, publicly available information and industry or government publications. The Co-operative believes that these
sources are generally reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of this information is not guaranteed. The Cooperative has not independently verified such information, and does not make any representation as to the accuracy
of such information.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements contained in this Offering Statement constitute forward-looking statements. These statements relate
to future events or IGPC’s future performance. All statements other than statements of historical fact are forwardlooking statements. The use of any of the words "anticipate", "plan", "contemplate", "continue", "estimate", "expect",
"intend", "propose", "might", "may", "will", "shall", "project", "should", "could", "would", "believe", "predict",
"forecast", "pursue", "potential" and "capable" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward looking
statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual
results, performance, achievements or events to differ materially from those anticipated, discussed or implied in such
forward-looking statements. No assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such
forward-looking statements included in this Offering Statement should not be unduly relied upon. These statements
speak only as of the date of this Offering Statement.
Future-oriented financial information and financial outlook information (collectively, "FOFI") contained in this
Offering Statement, as such terms are defined by applicable securities laws, is provided for the purpose of providing
information about IGPC’s management's current expectations and plans relating to the future.
FOFI contained in this Offering Statement was made as of the date of this Offering Statement and was provided for
the purpose of describing the anticipated effects of the Offering and is for illustrative purposes only.
Readers are cautioned that reliance on such information may not be appropriate for other purposes, including
investment decisions. In particular, the FOFI contained in this Offering Statement relies upon certain assumptions
about IGPC’s anticipated cash flow, future operations and capital expenditures which are based on other assumptions
contained in this Offering Statement and are subject to the risks set out in this Offering Statement.
The forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Statement are expressly qualified by this cautionary
statement. IGPC undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements except as
expressly required by law.
In particular, this Offering Statement contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following:
a)

completion of the Offering and the expected use of the proceeds of the Offering;

b) the potential for production disruption and constraints and supply and demand fundamentals for ethanol, CoProducts, corn and natural gas, both domestically and worldwide;
c)

the continued impact of COVID-19 on global business and economic activity in general, and the specific
impact on the demand for ethanol as a transportation fuel, as well as the potentially significant but unknown
disruptive effect of COVID-19 on IGPC’s supply chains, staffing, and operations;

d) IGPC’s expectations regarding future commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates;
e)

the potential financial implications on IGPC of the Government of Canada’s carbon tax which came in into
force in the 2019 calendar year; and

f)

expectations regarding having adequate human resource staffing.

With respect to forward-looking statements contained in this Offering Statement, assumptions have been made
regarding, among other things:
a)

the timing of the closings of the Offering and the satisfaction of the conditions to closings of the Offering;

b) the aggregate amounts to be raised in the Offering and the amount of cash on hand and cash generated from
operations; future cash flows from production; future sources of funding for IGPC; and IGPC’s future debt
levels and its ability to service such debt;

10

c)

the regulatory framework governing taxes and environmental matters, including fuel additive regulations, in
the jurisdictions in which IGPC conducts its business and any other jurisdictions in which IGPC may conduct
its business in the future;

d) IGPC’s ability to market production of ethanol and Co-Products from the production process successfully to
customers, including under the AL Agreement or other similar type agreements;
e)

the effect of competition on IGPC;

f)

future ethanol, Co-Products, corn, and natural gas sales and prices;

g) the continued unknown impact of COVID-19 on global business and economic activity in general, and the
specific impact on the demand for ethanol as a transportation fuel, as well as the potentially significant but
unknown disruptive effect of COVID-19 on IGPC’s supply chains, staffing, and operations; and
h) the applicability of technologies for recovery and production of IGPC’s ethanol and Co-Products.
Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of the risk
factors set forth below and included elsewhere in this Offering Statement.

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING STATEMENT
The following is a summary only and is qualified by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this
Offering Statement. Investors are advised to read the entire Offering Statement and not to rely solely on this Summary.
Description of the Co-operative

The Co-operative is the parent holding entity of IGPC and owns 100% of the
equity of IGPC. As at June 30, 2020 the Co-operative had 635 members.

Description of IGPC, a wholly-owned IGPC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Co-operative, owns and operates the
subsidiary of the Co-operative
Plant. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 the Plant sold
approximately:
(a) 360 million litres of fuel ethanol;
(b) 339,000 MTs of DDGS and other distillers Co-Products;
(c) 9,000 MTs of Corn Oil, and
(d) 93,000 MTs of CO2.
With its commissioned expansion completed in 2018, the Plant now has an
annual capacity of approximately 380 million litres of fuel ethanol (an increase
from 190 million litres prior to the expansion) which IGPC anticipates achieving
in fiscal 2020.
IGPC’s main product is ethanol. Ethanol is a renewable fuel that can be
produced from grain or other plant material. The primary market for IGPC’s
ethanol is as a fuel additive. The use of ethanol as an additive in gasoline is
regarded as a significant means of reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Under
regulations enacted under the Ontario Environmental Protection Act (Ontario),
effective January 1, 2020, all Ontario gasoline wholesalers’ annual gasoline
sales must achieve an annual average of at least 10% ethanol content, an
increase from 5% which had been in effect since January 1, 2007. See Section
3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Market Environment for
Ethanol and Ethanol Co-Products in Ontario.
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Based upon previously estimated annual gasoline consumption in Ontario of
almost 16 billion litres prior to taking into account the impact of COVID-19,
this provincial government requirement effectively established a mandated
provincial market previously estimated at approximately 1.6 billion litres of
ethanol per year. As a result of Covid-19, since March 2020 gasoline
consumption across North America has declined sharply and it is unknown
whether and when gasoline and ethanol demand will return to historic levels.
Based on U.S. consumption data it is estimated that there was a decline of nearly
50% in gasoline demand between March 2020 and April 2020 in the U.S.. With
the gradual lifting of restrictions on travel and business activities, by June 2020
gasoline consumption in the U.S. had returned to nearly 85% of historic June
levels. Ontario gasoline demand is estimated to have declined by approximately
the same percentage as U.S. demand; however current estimates of gasoline
consumption in Ontario are not available
Blending ethanol with gasoline is considered one way to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and take action against climate change. All vehicles running on
gasoline may use gasoline with up to 10% ethanol and such mix is often
available in many gasoline retail stations in Canada.
Since 2013, completed plant related capital expenditures totaling $139.0 million
have resulted in an increase in the Plant’s processing capacity to approximately
380 million litres of ethanol per year, technological and production efficiencies,
and a reduction of per litre costs.
Distillers’ grains are the Co-Products that remain after high quality cereals have
been fermented by yeast. In the fermentation process, nearly all of the starch in
the grain is converted to ethanol and carbon dioxide, while the remaining
nutrients are concentrated to yield DWG. Adding evaporator syrup and drying
the material to 12% moisture creates DDGS. DDGS derived from corn is well
established as a competitive livestock feed for dairy and beef cattle, hogs, and
poultry, and recent studies indicate DDGS could be a potentially valuable feed
ingredient for sheep and goats as well. See Section 4 Business Plan – Plant
Facility.
IGPC has entered into a long-term agreement with Air Liquide for the sale of
the Plant’s CO2 to the Air Liquide Facility. The AL Agreement also includes a
service contract and a real property lease agreement in relation to the Air
Liquide Facility located on the Aylmer Property. IGPC markets approximately
one half of the CO2 it produces through Air Liquide, pursuant to the AL
Agreement. The remainder of its CO 2 is currently not recovered and marketed.
See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – The Air
Liquide Agreement.
In October 2018, North America Construction (1993) Ltd. achieved substantial
completion on the construction of the New Plant. The capacity of the Plant
doubled from 190 million to 380 million litres, and Co-Product production
capacity significantly increased as well. Costs for construction were
approximately $112.2 million.
The New Plant and the Air Liquide Facility each comprised part of IGPC’s
diversification strategy to increase revenues and mitigate the effect on IGPC of
the expiration of certain government grants which ended December 31, 2016.
See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Air Liquide
Agreement and See Section 4 Business Plan – Carbon Dioxide.
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Description of the Offering

Offering, for a maximum aggregate amount of up to $15,020,000, by the Cooperative of up to:
(a) $20,000 in Membership Shares;
(b) $5,000,000 in Class E Preference Shares;
(c) $15,000,000 principal amount of 2020 Debentures.

Restrictions on Purchase

The Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares offered under this
Offering will only be sold to members and prospective members of the Cooperative. All prospective purchasers of Membership Shares must: (a) currently
hold or purchase a minimum of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares; and (b) subject
to the approval of the Board of Directors, be admitted into membership of the
Co-operative. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative –
Membership Requirements.
Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or to
purchase such number of Class E Preference Shares as to cause such
shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E Preference Shares to equal or exceed
5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Cooperative must, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, also purchase
a minimum of five Membership Shares and be admitted into membership in the
Co-operative.
All prospective purchasers of 2020 Debentures must own Membership Shares
or Class E Preference Shares, or be approved by the Board of Directors. The
approval of a prospective purchaser of 2020 Debentures by the Board of
Directors shall be based on factors including, but not limited to, the same criteria
as are applied when considering the admission of a new member to the Cooperative (as described in Section 3 – Membership Requirements).
The Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares, and 2020 Debentures may
not be transferred without the express prior written approval of the Board of
Directors – See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative Membership Requirements.

Subscription Price

Minimum Individual Subscription

Membership Shares:

$100 per share.

Class E Preference Shares:

$5.00 per share.

2020 Debentures:

$1,000 per debenture.

Membership Shares:

Five shares ($500)

Class E Preference Shares:

5,000 shares ($25,000)

2020 Debentures:

$2,000

The minimum individual purchase for Class E Preference Shares does not apply
to Members who currently hold Class E Preference Shares.
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Maximum Individual Subscription

Use of Proceeds

Membership Shares:

Five shares ($500)

Class E Preference Shares:

100,000 shares ($500,000)

2020 Debentures:

$2,000,000

There is no minimum amount to be raised under this Offering Statement.
Substantially all of the proceeds raised under this Offering Statement, up to the
maximum offering amount of $15,020,000, will be advanced by the Cooperative to IGPC. The principal use of these proceeds will be to support IGPC’s
debt servicing and debt repayment obligations under its Senior Credit Facilities,
to facilitate IGPC’s continued compliance with the covenants under these Senior
Credit Facilities, fund working capital, redeem maturing debentures, and/or
reduce term debt under its Senior Credit Facilities. Subject to the foregoing, all
funds raised from this offering will be used by the Co-operative for working
capital purposes for the Co-operative and/or IGPC Ethanol Inc. at the discretion
of the Board of Directors.
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of
IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and obligations under the Senior Credit
Facilities provided that recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought
from, the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and
parties holding securities issued pursuant to this Offering Statement. See
Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering.

Description of Membership Shares
Par Value

$100

Voting Rights

Holders of Membership Shares are entitled to attend and vote at all meetings of
members of the Co-operative.

Dividends

Variable non-cumulative dividends, payable at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, to the maximum amount permitted under the Act. Regulations under
the Act set the maximum annual dividend at two per cent above the prime rate
of a bank, trust company, or credit union named in the Co-operative’s By-Laws.
No sinking fund has been established for the Membership Shares.
The Co-operative does not intend to redeem, declare, or pay any dividends
or distributions in respect of Membership Shares unless the Co-operative
determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts due and
payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020 Debentures,
and that IGPC is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Debt
Financing.

Patronage Dividends

Holders of five Membership Shares are entitled to patronage dividends, if any,
based upon their volume of business with the Co-operative, payable at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.

Rank

Membership Shares rank junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and
2020 Debentures with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution
of assets upon dissolution.
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Membership Shares rank junior to the Class E Preference Shares with respect to
the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon dissolution.
Transfer

The transfer of Membership Shares is restricted and is subject to the consent of
the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative – Membership Requirements.
Any shareholder selling all or a portion of his or her Class E Preference Shares,
such that after the sale such shareholder holds less than 5,000 Class E Preference
Shares, will be required to have his or her Membership Shares redeemed by the
Co-operative at their par value.

Description of Class E Preference
Shares
Issue

The Class E Preference Shares offered under this Offering may be issued only
to current members of the Co-operative and other community members who
purchase Membership Shares and are admitted into membership in the Cooperative.
Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or to
purchase such number of Class E Preference Shares as to cause such
shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E Preference Shares to equal or exceed
5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Cooperative must, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, also purchase
a minimum of five Membership Shares and be admitted into membership in the
Co-operative.

Par Value

$5.00

Voting Rights

Under the Act, the holders of Class E Preference Shares have a right to vote at
all meetings of Class E Preference Shareholders called for the purpose of
amending any of the terms of the said class of shares, and at such meetings are
entitled to cast one vote for each such share held. In addition, Class E Preference
Shareholders are entitled to receive notice of and attend all meetings of
members. Unless they are also members of the Co-operative, the holders of
Class E Preference Shares do not have a right to vote at meetings of members
of the Co-operative.

Issue Price

Subject to the Act, the issue price of the Class E Preference Shares shall be
established from time to time by the Board of Directors. In establishing the issue
price of the Class E Preference Shares, the Board of Directors may consider a
number of factors including, but not limited to, the requirement for and
availability of funds, the history of dividend payments, if any, and the recent
weighted average trading price of the Class E Preference Shares as established
through the share transfer mechanism developed by the Co-operative. Under the
Act, Class E Preference Shares cannot be issued below par value. See Section 3
– Description of the Business of the Co-operative.

Dividends

Variable non-cumulative dividends, payable at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.
No sinking fund has been established for the Class E Preference Shares.
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The Co-operative does not intend to redeem, declare or pay any dividends
or distributions in respect of Class E Preference Shares unless the Cooperative determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts
due and payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and 2020
Debentures, and that IGPC is in compliance with all covenants under the
Senior Debt Financing.
Rank

Class E Preference Shares rank junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures
and 2020 Debentures with respect to the payment of dividends and the
distribution of assets upon dissolution.
Class E Preference Shares rank in priority to Membership Shares in respect of
dividends, patronage returns and distributions of assets upon dissolution.

Redemption

The Class E Preference Shares are redeemable at any time at the discretion of
the Board of Directors in accordance with the Co-operative’s constating
documents and the Act.
The Co-operative is not under any obligation to redeem Class E Preference
Shares held by a member of the Co-operative upon such member’s withdrawal
from membership of the Co-operative.

Transfer

The transfer of Class E Preference Shares is restricted and is subject to the
consent of the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of the Business of
the Co-operative – Membership Requirements.
Any shareholder selling all or a portion of his or her Class E Preference Shares,
such that after the sale such shareholder holds less than 5,000 Class E Preference
Shares, will be required to have his or her Membership Shares redeemed by the
Co-operative at their par value.

Dissolution

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Co-operative, after the
payment of all debts and liabilities of the Co-operative, the holders of Class E
Preference Shares, ranking junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and
2020 Debentures, shall be entitled to receive, before any distribution of any part
of the assets of the Co-operative among the holders of Membership Shares, the
amount of $5.00 for each Class E Preference Share, plus an amount equal to any
premium thereon and any declared but unpaid dividends.

Premium upon Redemption

As is required by the Co-operative’s Articles of Incorporation, upon the
redemption of Class E Preference Shares, the Co-operative shall pay a premium
equivalent to a pro rata share of the retained earnings of the Co-operative, plus
a pro rata share of any premium paid on the issue of Class E Preference Shares,
but not exceeding the maximum premium permitted under the Act. Where the
Co-operative is otherwise required to redeem such shares, the payment of such
premium may, if the Board of Directors determines, by resolution, that it is
necessary for the long-term financial well-being of the Co-operative, be reduced
by an amount equivalent to a pro rata share of the greater of: (a) three times any
aggregate net loss of the Co-operative over the immediately preceding three
fiscal years; or (b) one half of the total outstanding long-term debt of the Cooperative as of the date of redemption.

Eligibility of Class E Preference
Shares for Registered Plans

The Board of Directors engaged the Co-operative’s external legal counsel,
Wildeboer Dellelce LLP (“WD”), to provide its opinion (the “WD Opinion”)
as to whether the currently issued and outstanding Class E Preference Shares
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qualify as a “qualified investment” under Regulation 4900(6) of the Income Tax
Act (Canada) (the “ITA”) for registered retirement savings plans (“RRSPs”),
registered education savings plans (“RESPs”) and registered retirement income
funds (“RRIFs” and together with RRSPs and RESPs collectively the
“Registered Plans” and each a “Registered Plan”). The WD Opinion states
that, as of August 19, 2020 and based upon and subject to: (i) the assumptions
and limitations set forth in the WD Opinion; and (ii) the statement of facts
regarding the Co-operative and the Class E Preference Shares contained in
certificate of the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer of IGPC dated
August 19, 2020 ( the “Officer’s Certificate”) being true and correct, the Class
E Preference Shares are “qualified investments” for a trust governed by a
Registered Plan pursuant to Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA.
The full text of the WD Opinion and the Officer’s Certificate set out the
assumptions made, factual circumstances, matters considered and
limitations on the review undertaken by WD to determine whether the
Class E Preference Shares are “qualified investments” for a trust governed
by a Registered Plan pursuant to Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA as of the
date of the WD Opinion, including, among other things, that (i) WD has
assumed, and not verified, the accuracy of the statement of facts contained
in the Officer’s Certificate; (ii) there has been no analysis conducted as to
whether the Class E Preference Shares would be considered a “prohibited
investment” under subsection 207.01(1) of the ITA for a Registered Plan;
and (iii) any change in the factual circumstances surrounding the Cooperative, particularly those described in the Officer’s Certificate, may
result in the Class E Preference Shares ceasing to be a “qualified
investment” under Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA at any time after the date
of the WD Opinion.
The full text of the WD Opinion (including the Officer’s Certificate
attached thereto) is attached as Schedule E to this Offering Statement. The
foregoing summary of the WD Opinion is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of the WD Opinion which Members, Class E
Preference Shareholders and potential investors are urged to read in its
entirety.
The WD Opinion was provided to the Board of Directors solely to assist the
Board of Directors in determining the eligibility of the Class E Preference
Shares as “qualified investments” for a trust governed by a Registered Plan
and is only valid as of the date of the WD Opinion. The WD Opinion may
not be relied upon by any Members, Class E Preference Shareholders,
potential investors or anyone other than the Co-operative and is solely for
the benefit of the Co-operative. WD shall not be held responsible nor shall
it be liable for any decision made or action taken in reliance on the
information contained in the WD Opinion by any Member, Class E
Preference Shareholder, potential investor or any person or entity other
than the Co-operative.
Class E Preference Shareholders are encouraged to consult their
investment advisors prior to holding Class E Preference Shares in any
Registered Plans and to obtain the advice of such advisors on the income
taxes consequences that may apply to them regarding the holding Class E
Preference Shares in Registered Plans.
Based upon review of the WD Opinion, and subject to all assumptions and
limitations contained therein, the Board of Directors has determined that, for the
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purposes of the ITA, the Class E Preference Shares are “qualified investments”
under the ITA for a trust governed by any of the Registered Plans as of the date
of the WD Opinion.

Description of 2020 Debentures

Prospective purchasers of 2020 Debentures under this Offering Statement must
own Membership Shares and/or Class E Preference Shares, or be approved by
the Board of Directors. The approval of a purchaser of 2020 Debentures by the
Board of Directors shall be based on factors including, but not limited to, the
same criteria as are applied by the Board of Directors when considering the
admission of a new member to the Co-operative.
Term

2020 Debentures will be issued for a term expiring on July 31, 2023, regardless
of the date of issuance of any 2020 Debentures.

Transfer

Transfer of the 2020 Debentures is restricted and is subject to the consent of the
Board of Directors. Please see Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative – Membership Requirements.

Interest Rate

2020 Debentures will bear interest from the applicable date of issue at a rate
equivalent to 7.0% per annum.
Interest on the 2020 Debentures will be paid before any cash distribution is made
on any Class E Preference Shares or Membership Shares.
Interest on the 2020 Debentures shall be payable quarterly in arrears on March
31st, June 30th, September 30th, and December 31st in each year, with interest
pro-rated from the applicable date of issuance of the 2020 Debentures. It is
anticipated that closings of the issuance of 2020 Debentures shall be held
monthly on or about the last business day of each month, provided that at the
option of the Co-operative, closings may be made on a less frequent basis on or
about the last business day of any particular month. The Co-operative’s ability
to make interest payments on the 2020 Debentures as they come due will depend
on IGPC generating sufficient cash flow for this purpose and its continued
compliance with the covenants of its Senior Debt Facilities.

Security

The 2020 Debentures are unsecured and rank equally with the 2017 Debentures,
the 2019 Debentures, and ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed by law.
The funds raised under this Offering Statement may be advanced, in whole or
in part, to IGPC as debt and/or equity as determined to be appropriate by the
Board of Directors.
See Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering

Ranking

The 2020 Debentures will rank senior to all Class E Preference Shares and
Membership Shares with respect to cash distributions and the distribution of
assets upon dissolution of the Co-operative. The 2020 Debentures are
subordinated in right of payment to all existing and future secured indebtedness
of the Co-operative. In addition, proceeds from the issuance of 2020 Debentures
that are advanced to IGPC will be subordinated and rank junior to all Senior
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Credit Facilities and repayment of such amounts will be subject to compliance
by IGPC with the terms of the Senior Credit Facilities. Under the Senior Credit
Facilities, there are restrictions and limitations upon the ability of IGPC to
distribute profits to its sole shareholder, the Co-operative, which also restricts
the Co-operative’s ability to complete cash distributions on the securities of the
Co-operative, including the 2020 Debentures. The Co-operative does not
intend to redeem, declare or pay any distributions in respect of the
Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares unless the Co-operative
determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts due and
payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020 Debentures.
The 2020 Debentures are unsecured debentures and rank equally with the 2017
Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed
by law. The Debenture Indenture does not restrict the Co-operative from
incurring any additional indebtedness, either secured or unsecured.
Redemption

The Co-operative anticipates redeeming all of the 2020 Debentures at maturity.
However, the Co-operative reserves the right to redeem the 2020 Debentures in
whole, or in part on a pro rata basis, at any time after July 31, 2022. The ability
of the Co-operative to redeem any 2020 Debentures at maturity is dependent
upon the Co-operative receiving sufficient cash distributions from IGPC, which
is in turn dependent on IGPC not being in default of the Senior Credit Facilities,
that any cash distributions made to the Co-operative would not cause a default
under the Senior Credit Facilities and that IGPC remains in compliance with all
covenants under the Senior Debt Financing after making such distribution. No
sinking fund will be established for the redemption of the 2020 Debentures.
There is no obligation of the Co-operative to redeem any 2020 Debentures prior
to maturity.

Debenture Indenture

The 2020 Debentures will be issued pursuant to and subject to the terms of a
Debenture Indenture between the Co-operative and Computershare Trust
Company of Canada. The Debenture Indenture shall contain customary terms
and conditions, including but not limited to, representations and warranties,
restrictions on transfer, redemption, subordination, covenants by the Cooperative and events of default. The descriptions of the 2020 Debentures and
the Debenture Indenture in this Offering Statement are a summary only and
subject to the detailed provisions of the Debenture Indenture. A complete copy
of the Debenture Indenture shall be available for inspection by any member or
investor at the head office of the Co-operative or of Caldwell Securities. In the
event of any inconsistency between the provisions in this Offering Statement
and the provisions of the Debenture Indenture, the provisions of the Debenture
Indenture shall prevail and take precedence.
The rights of the holders of 2020 Debentures may be modified in accordance
with the terms of the Debenture Indenture. The Debenture Indenture will contain
certain provisions which bind all holders of 2020 Debentures to resolutions
passed at meetings of the holders of 2020 Debentures by a specified majority
(as set out in the Debenture Indenture) of the principal amount of the 2020
Debentures, or approved in writing by the holders of a specified majority (as set
out in the Debenture Indenture) of the principal amount of the 2020 Debentures
then outstanding.

Caldwell Securities as Registered Purchasers of 2020 Debentures must open an investment account with Caldwell
Holder
Securities which will act as the registered holder of all 2020 Debentures and will
hold such 2020 Debentures, as nominee. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures should
contact Caldwell Securities with respect to all matters relating to their
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subscription for 2020 Debentures and the holding and transfer of such 2020
Debentures, including, without limitation, with respect to the receipt of any
payments that may be made by the Co-operative in respect of the 2020
Debentures and the exercise of voting rights in respect of the 2020 Debentures
that holders beneficially own. Purchasers are responsible for making their own
arrangements with Caldwell Securities with respect to the holding by Caldwell
Securities of 2020 Debentures on their behalf and the Co-operative assumes no
liability for any loss suffered by a holder of 2020 Debentures in respect of such
arrangements.
All certificates representing 2020 Debentures will be registered in the name of
Caldwell Securities, as nominee for each purchaser, and therefore purchasers of
2020 Debentures will not be entitled to receive a definitive certificate or other
instruments from the Co-operative representing their interest in their 2020
Debentures. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures will receive only a customer
confirmation from Caldwell Securities. If at any time after the issue of 2020
Debentures it is determined that Caldwell Securities shall no longer act as the
registered holder of 2020 Debentures, the Co-operative shall issue or cause to
be issued certificates representing 2020 Debentures registered in the names of
the persons who beneficially own such 2020 Debentures. See Section 8 –
Description of Securities Offered.
Closings

It is expected that during the currency of this Offering Statement the Cooperative will effect a closing of 2020 Debentures on or about the last business
day of each month, provided that at the option of the Co-operative, closings may
be made on a less frequent basis on or about the last business day of any
particular month. Closing shall be held until such time as the Co-operative
resolves to no longer to offer 2020 Debentures for sale. Notwithstanding the
foregoing: (a) the Co-operative may determine not to effect a closing in any
particular month without affecting its ability to effect a closing in any
subsequent month; and (b) 2020 Debentures may be issued at any time and from
time to time during the currency of this Offering Statement at the discretion of
the Co-operative. See Section 8 – Description of Securities Offered.

20

SUMMARY OF KEY RISK FACTORS
The Co-operative, IGPC, and its investors are subject to a number of risks common to manufacturing businesses in
general and are also subject to the significant risks involved in the operation of the Plant and the Air Liquide Facility.
The failure to prevent or mitigate any of the following circumstances could jeopardize investors’ investment in the
Co-operative and/or financial returns. See Section 5 – Risk Factors for a detailed overview of the known risk
factors affecting the Co-operative and IGPC. The following represents only a partial summary of these risk
factors.
Speculative Investment
The securities being offered under this Offering Statement are highly speculative and involve a high degree of risk.
Investors may lose their entire investment. Purchases of these securities should be considered long-term investments
which will not be suitable for investors who may need to sell their securities quickly in order to raise money. Investors
who require regular, guaranteed returns from their investments should not purchase the securities offered
herein.
Operating Losses and Negative Cash Flow
As a result of a significant decline in the market price of ethanol, which was not offset by a corresponding drop in
corn prices, along with a widespread outbreak of vomitoxin which adversely affected the prices of DDGS and other
Co-Products, in fiscal 2019 the Co-operative incurred a net pre-tax loss of approximately $16.0 million and had
negative cash flow of $3.5 million. Somewhat improved crush margins, along with the absence of any significant
vomitoxin, enabled IGPC to post a net pre-tax profit of approximately $200,000 and positive cash flow of just over
$5 million during the first two quarters of fiscal 2020. Due to the dramatic drop in demand for ethanol and other
transportation fuels in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, IGPC sustained a yearto-date pre-tax loss as at the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of $1,435,317 and its year-to-date positive cash
flow declined to $2,741,346. IGPC anticipates utilising its remaining cash on hand, cash, if any, generated from its
operations, borrowing availability under its lines of credit, and proceeds from future financing activities, including
proceeds from this Offering Statement, if any, to fund all of the cash requirements of its business. A return to the
significant losses and negative operating cash experienced in fiscal 2018 and fiscal 2019, in the absence of the
Government operating grants which IGPC had previously relied upon to offset market losses, could have a significant
adverse impact on the Plant’s operations and viability.
Market Risk
The long-term viability and cash flows of IGPC depend upon its ability to restore and maintain profitable markets for
the ethanol and Co-Products produced by the Plant. Ethanol markets across North America continue to be
depressed compared to ten year averages and most North American ethanol plants, including the Plant, are
currently recovering from historically low crush margins and net pre-tax losses over the past two years. The
current COVID-19 pandemic (see the COVID-19 Pandemic Risk Factor below) has resulted in a sharp drop in
oil prices arising from the anticipated significant decline in gasoline consumption as consumers limit their
driving. The ability to restore and maintain such profitable markets depends upon a wide range of economic factors
including the time frame and extent of the resumption of normal business and economic activities following the
significant ongoing disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, IGPC’s ability to procure corn at competitive
prices, the relative price of petroleum and other competing fuels, export and import demand for ethanol and demand
for CO2, the price of feed inputs competing with DDGS, IGPC’s costs of production, consumer demand for ethanol
and livestock producer demand for DDGS, the impact of corn quality on the distillers grains produced by the Plant,
Government support for ethanol, maintaining relations and agreements with purchasers of Co-Products, including the
AL Agreement, and competition from other ethanol manufacturers. Many of these factors are beyond the control of
IGPC. Export demand for ethanol is dependent on a favorable arbitrage which is driven by local price, foreign
exchange, tariffs and other non-tariff trade barriers, and sea freight rates. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
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Commodity Price Risk
The principal input into the Plant is corn. The cost of corn has historically generally varied independently of
the price of ethanol, which is IGPC’s principal product.
Over the past several years, the spread between ethanol and corn prices has fluctuated significantly.
Fluctuations are likely to continue to occur as there is no firmly established linkage between corn and ethanol
prices. A sustained narrow spread, whether as a result of continued high or increasing corn prices or continued
low or decreasing ethanol prices, would adversely and potentially significantly affect IGPC’s profitability, cash
flow, and financial stability. Over the past two fiscal years, the combined revenues from sales of ethanol,
distillers grains and other Co-Products have dropped below the marginal cost of production resulting in
negative gross profits. During the first three quarters of fiscal 2020 IGPC generally enjoyed positive monthly
gross profits, with the exception of March 2020 and April 2020 when the impact of COVID-19 significantly
constricted crush margins due to the sharp decrease in the demand for gasoline and, by extension, ethanol,
resulting in a sharp decline in ethanol prices. As business and social activity slowly began to resume in May
2020, and demand for ethanol increased, IGPC once again enjoyed positive monthly gross profits. For the first
three fiscal quarters ended June 30, 2020, IGPC experienced a net after-tax loss of $1,066,557.
Corn and ethanol are subject to significant fluctuations in price based on a variety of factors beyond the control of
IGPC. The cash flows and profitability of IGPC will likely vary significantly from year to year based upon these
fluctuating commodity prices. Any significant increase in the cost of corn, which represents by far the greatest
operating expense of IGPC, could have a material adverse effect on IGPC’s cash flow, as could any decrease in the
price of ethanol. Fluctuating natural gas prices could also adversely affect cash flow and profitability. Continued
growth in the production of the ethanol sector could place significant upward pressure on North American corn prices,
while decreases in the demand for ethanol due either to domestic factors or global trade barriers could further depress
ethanol prices. The ongoing impact of COVID-19 on gasoline demand could continue to depress ethanol prices
throughout the peak summer driving season especially if COVID-19 cases continue to rise in the U.S. IGPC has
implemented a comprehensive risk management program through which it seeks to mitigate the risks of short-term
fluctuations in commodity prices. Notwithstanding IGPC’s risk management program, there can be no assurance that
IGPC will be able entirely to mitigate its exposure to fluctuating commodity prices, particularly in light of the current
volatility in the global economy. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Senior Debt Financing Requirements
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought from,
the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or 2020 Debentures
issued pursuant to this Offering Statement or holders of the previously issued 2017 Debentures and 2019 Debentures.
The Senior Credit Facilities are interconditional with each other in that each includes a number of positive and negative
covenants with which IGPC must comply while each are outstanding. The Senior Lenders require IGPC to comply
with such positive and negative covenants. Failure to comply with such covenants could result in a default by IGPC
and the cancellation or alteration of the loan facilities provided by such Senior Lenders. See Section 4 Business Plan
– Senior Credit Facilities.
Priority of Lenders
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought from,
the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative, and parties holding shares or debentures issued
pursuant to this Offering Statement. The Senior Lenders have priority with respect to the payment of interest, principal,
and fees, and are secured by the assets and real property of IGPC. Under the Senior Credit Facilities, as well as under
the Investing in Business Growth and Productivity Contribution Agreement, there are restrictions and limitations upon
the ability of IGPC to distribute profits to its sole shareholder, the Co-operative, which also restricts the Co-operative’s
ability to complete cash distributions on the securities offered under this Offering Statement. Given the covenants to
which IGPC is subject under the Senior Credit Facilities, there can be no assurance that cash on hand or cash
generated from operations will be sufficient and/or that IGPC will be able to fund sufficient cash to the Co-
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operative to enable it to make interest payments on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures or 2020 Debentures
as they come due, redeem any of these debentures at maturity, make any dividend payments or repayments of
capital on the Class E Preference Shares, or redeem any of the Membership Shares or Class E Preference
Shares upon request. To date, IGPC has made all scheduled interest payments on the 2017 Debentures and the
2019 Debentures as they have come due, but there can be no assurances that payment of scheduled interest
payments will continue during the respective term of the 2017 Debentures and the 2019 Debentures. See Section
4 – Business Plan – Senior Credit Facilities and see Section 6 - Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
COVID-19 Pandemic
An outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus designated as COVID-19 was first detected in China
in December 2019 and has subsequently spread internationally, including to the United States and Canada. The
transmission of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in international, national and local border
closings and other significant travel restrictions and disruptions, significant disruptions to business operations, supply
chains and customer activity, closures of many businesses serving the public, event cancellations and restrictions,
service cancellations, reductions and other changes, significant challenges in healthcare service preparation and
delivery, and quarantines, as well as significant widespread anxiety and uncertainty that has negatively affected the
economic environment. These impacts also have caused extreme volatility and declines in global financial and
commodity markets which have caused losses for many investors.
Most significantly for IGPC, there has been a sharp drop in oil prices in response to the significant decline in gasoline
consumption. The drop in oil prices was further exacerbated by the failure of Russia and Saudi Arabia to agree on a
framework for the orderly marketing of excess oil production. This sharp drop in oil prices has impacted ethanol prices
resulting in a significant decline in IGPC’s crush margin in March 2020 and April 2020. As North American gasoline
demand dropped by almost 50% over the span of a few weeks in March 2020 and April 2020, many U.S. and Canadian
ethanol plants either temporarily ceased operations or significantly curtailed ethanol production. IGPC’s gross margins
and EBITDA turned negative in March 2020 and April 2020 causing IGPC to reduce its ethanol production to 50%
of capacity in April 2020. IGPC operated at 75% of capacity in May 2020 and, as gross margins once again became
positive, IGPC resumed full production in June 2020. Given the considerable uncertainty surrounding the continuing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the substantial economic downturn engendered by the pandemic, and concerns
over a potential “second wave” of COVID-19 in the fall or winter of 2020 as well as the recent rise in the number of
COVID-19 cases in the U.S., no assurance can be provided that the recent restoration of positive gross margins will
continue. Health crises caused by viral or bacterial outbreaks, such as the COVID-19 outbreak, may exacerbate other
pre-existing political, social, economic, market and financial risks. The impact of this outbreak, and other epidemics
and pandemics that may arise in the future, may have a significant adverse impact on IGPC’s operating results.
Profitability and Solvency
There can be no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to make interest or principal payments on the 2020
Debentures as they come due, dividend payments or other distributions on the Class E Preference Shares, or satisfy
the obligations in respect of any of the securities offered under this Offering Statement or in respect of the Senior
Credit Facilities. There is no certainty that IGPC will be able to restore positive cash flows, resume profitability, or be
able to advance funds to the Co-operative in order for the Co-operative to make interest payments on the 2020
Debentures as they come due, redeem the 2020 Debentures at maturity, complete cash dividends or distributions on
the Class E Preference Shares or Membership Shares. There can be no assurance that cash on hand or cash generated
from operations is sufficient for IGPC and/or that IGPC would be able to fund cash to the Co-operative. The likelihood
that purchasers of 2020 Debentures will receive payments owing to them under the terms of the 2020 Debentures will
depend on the financial health of the Co-operative and IGPC and their creditworthiness. See Section 6 - Use of
Proceeds of the Offering.
Retention and Acquisition of Skilled Personnel
The success of the Co-operative is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith of its
senior management (each, a “Key Person” and collectively, the “Key Personnel”). The Co-operative’s future success
depends on its continuing ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain highly qualified and skilled employees.
Qualified individuals are in high demand and the Co-operative may incur significant costs to attract and retain them.
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The loss of the services of a Key Person or an inability to attract other suitably qualified persons when needed, could
have a material adverse effect on the Co-operative’s ability to execute on its business plan and strategy and the Cooperative may be unable to find adequate replacements on a timely basis or at all.
Agreements
IGPC has entered into various agreements essential to the operation of the Plant, including agreements for the licensing
of the Plant technology, the sale, marketing and/or distribution of ethanol, as well as an agreement for the procurement
of corn. Some of these agreements, including the AL Agreement, involve ancillary agreements such as lease
agreements, and service agreements. Any default by either IGPC or any of the counterparties to any of these
agreements could have an adverse impact on IGPC cash flows. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Projections and Forward-Looking Information
Certain statements contained in this Offering Statement constitute forward-looking statements, including FOFI. These
statements relate to future events or IGPC’s future performance. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance, achievements or events to differ materially
from those anticipated, discussed or implied in such forward-looking statements. No assurance can be given that these
expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking statements included in this Offering Statement should
not be unduly relied upon.
Market for Securities
There is no established market for the 2020 Debentures, Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares and no
market is expected to develop. This is an illiquid security. It is unsuitable for any purchaser who may wish to sell the
security. Although the Co-operative has entered into an agreement with Caldwell Securities Ltd. which enables
shareholders to trade their Class E Preference Shares, there can be no assurance that a sufficiently liquid market will
develop to enable shareholders to sell their Class E Preference shares in a timely or prompt manner if they need to,
regardless of the need, or if they want to. Additionally, no such trading mechanism exists for the 2020 Debentures
and Membership Shares. No Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares or 2020 Debentures of the Cooperative may be transferred without the express consent of the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of
the Business of the Co-operative – Membership Requirements. Redemption of Shares and 2020 Debentures
There is no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to redeem any of the Class E Preference Shares, redeem any
of the 2020 Debentures upon maturity, or make interest payments as they come due on any of the 2020 Debentures
offered under this Offering Statement. There is no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to redeem these
securities upon a member’s withdrawal from membership. Holders of Class E Preference Shares are not entitled to
demand the redemption of such shares upon their withdrawal from membership in the Co-operative, and the Cooperative is not under any obligation to redeem such shares upon a member’s withdrawal from membership. The
ability of the Co-operative to make any cash payments requires compliance with Senior Debt Financing covenants
and is also likely dependent upon the Co-operative retaining cash and/or generating sufficient capital through cash
flow generated through operations of IGPC, or attracting sufficient additional capital investment to redeem such
securities. In the event that the Co-operative is unable to redeem the securities, holders of such securities might not
receive payments of principal and/or interest.
See Section 8 – Description of Securities Offered.
Competition
The business activities in which IGPC is involved are extremely competitive. Major competitors of IGPC
include highly efficient mid-Western U.S. ethanol plants with substantially greater production and financial
resources than IGPC, as well as other ethanol plants in Ontario and Quebec. The superior resources of these
competitors enable them to compete far more aggressively on price than IGPC and allow them to sustain
negative margins for extended periods. The principal competitive factors in the markets for IGPC’s primary
products, ethanol and DDGS, are quality and consistency, ability to deliver contracted volumes on a timely
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basis, and price. Failure or inability to compete on the basis of these factors could have a material adverse effect
on the competitive position of IGPC and its prospects for growth. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Cash Flow
The ongoing principal use of IGPC’s operating cash flow will be to repay obligations under the Senior Debt
Financing facilities and to fund working capital, redeem maturing debentures, and/or reduce term debt under
the Senior Credit Facilities. There can be no assurance that IGPC will restore positive cash flows and achieve
the cash flows required for IGPC to satisfy such principal uses. See Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering
and See Section 5.

SECTION 1 - CORPORATE INFORMATION
Name of Co-operative:

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.

Date of Incorporation:

April 4, 2002.

Ontario Corporation No.:

1416234

Head Office Address:

89 Progress Drive, PO Box 205 Aylmer, Ontario N5H 2R9

Auditors:

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Waterloo ON N2J 5A2

Fiscal Year End:

September 30

Registrar/Transfer Agent:

The Co-operative has appointed Caldwell Securities Ltd. as its registrar
and transfer agent in respect of the Membership Shares, Class E
Preference Shares, 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020
Debentures. Caldwell Securities’ Ltd.’s head office address is:

95 King Street South, Suite 201,

Caldwell Securities Ltd.
150 King Street West, Suite 1710
Toronto, Ontario M5H 1J9
Debenture Trustee:

Computershare Trust Company has been appointed as trustee under the
Debenture Indenture. Computershare’s head office address is:
Computershare Trust Company of Canada
100 University Avenue, 11th Floor
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2Y1
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SECTION 2 - DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Articles of the Co-operative provide that the Co-operative shall have a minimum of three and a maximum of
twelve directors. The By-Laws set the number of directors at nine. The current directors and officers of the Cooperative are as follows:
Name and Place of Residence

Title

Principal Occupation

Adrian Op’t Hoog
454603 Road 45, R.R. #1
Feversham, Ontario N0C 1C0
Joseph John Kloepfer
77 Kloepfer Road Harley, Ontario N0E 1E0

Chairman, Member of the Board
of Directors

Lynne Cohoe
385971 New Durham Road
Burgessville, Ontario N0J 1C0
Jim Judge
25 Oak Park Road, Box 278
Bobcaygeon, Ontario K0M 1A0
Eric Van Moerkerke
243781 Airport Road
Tillsonburg, Ontario N4G 4H1
Gregory Patterson
95 Rose Hip Place
London, Ontario N6K 4H4
Brad Sheeler
117 John Street
Lucan, Ontario N0M 2J0
Jim Milostan
33 Brant School Road
Brantford, Ontario N3T 5L4
George R. Alkalay
95 King View Crescent
King City, Ontario L7B 1K5
Ashton Nembhard
29 Kamps Crescent
Tillsonburg, Ontario N4G 5H9
Kevin Norton
96 Deerview Place
Ancaster, Ontario L9G 4S2

Member of the Board of Directors Business Person

Farmer

Vice Chair, Member of the Board Farmer
of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors Farmer

Member of the Board of Directors Farmer

Member of the Board of Directors Business Person

Treasurer, Member of the Board
of Directors

Business Person

Member of the Board of Directors Business Person

Secretary, Member of the Board of Business Consultant
Directors
CEO-CFO

Executive

CEO-COO

Executive
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS OF THE CO-OPERATIVE
Overview and History
The Co-operative was incorporated on April 4, 2002. Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, IGPC, the Co-operative
owns and operates the Plant. IGPC commenced commercial operation of its original ethanol plant in October 2008.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the Plant manufactured and sold approximately:
(a) 360 million litres of fuel ethanol;
(b) 339,000 MTs of DDGS and other distillers Co-Products;
(c) 9,000 MTs of Corn Oil; and
(d) 93,000 MTs of CO2
With its commissioned expansion completed in 2018, IGPC’s Plant now has an annual capacity of approximately:
(a) 380 million litres of fuel ethanol;
(b)340,000 MTs of DDGS and other distillers Co-Products;
(c) 9,000 MTs of Corn Oil; and
(d) 120,000 MTs of CO2
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the Plant utilized approximately 33.8 million bushels of corn,
representing approximately 11% of Ontario’s average annual corn production. See Section 4 Business Plan – Corn
Procurement.
Since January 2013, completed Plant related capital expenditures totaling $139.0 million have resulted in an increase
in the Plant’s processing capacity to approximately 380 million litres of ethanol per year, technological and production
efficiencies, and a reduction in per unit costs. Corn Oil extraction capacity was added and expanded with capacity to
recover approximately 9,000 MTs per year of Corn Oil. SMT was installed, which increases Plant efficiency while
maintaining throughput, while the FST technology concentrates the proteins and carbohydrates while cleaning and
separating the fibre components of the corn to create differentiated Co-Products for reintegration post-fermentation.
As well, IGPC installed an internal combustion engine and steam turbine generator which together can result in 50%
displacement of electricity purchased from the local distribution company.
In October 2018, North America Construction (1993) Ltd. substantially completed construction of the New Plant,
doubling ethanol production capacity from 190 million to 380 million litres, and significantly increasing Co-Product
production capacity as well. Costs for construction of the New Plant were approximately $112.2 million. In 2018,
Air Liquide completed construction of a CO2 recovery plant located on the IGPC site. IGPC and Air Liquide have
entered into a long-term agreement under which IGPC sells approximately half of the CO2 it produces to Air Liquide.
See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – The Air Liquide Agreement
As anticipated, the doubling of the capacity of the IGPC Plant has resulted in significant production efficiencies and
cost reductions amounting to approximately $0.10 of savings per gallon, even after accounting for the additional
interest expense incurred as a result of the debt assumed for completing the expansion.
The Co-operative has raised approximately $72 million under previous offering statements in a combination of
Membership Shares, Preference Shares and debentures. See Section 4 – Business Plan and See Section 11 Debt
Obligations of the Co-Operative.
Membership Requirements
Membership in the Co-operative is open to corn producers, other grain producers, and community members, subject
to approval by the Board of Directors. All Ontario corn and grain producers are eligible for membership, although the
great majority of members are currently from Southwestern Ontario.
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All prospective purchasers of Membership Shares must: (a) currently hold or must purchase a minimum of 5,000 Class
E Preference Shares; and (b) subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, be admitted into membership of the
Co-operative.
Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or to purchase such number of Class E
Preference Shares as to cause such shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E Preference Shares to equal or exceed
5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Co-operative, subject to the approval of the
Board of Directors, must also purchase a minimum of five Membership Shares and be admitted into membership in
the Co-operative.
Any person who is also the sole proprietor of, a partner in, or an owner of more than 10% of the voting securities of
any ethanol or fuel production facility, or any other entity potentially competitive with the Co-operative, or who is an
officer, director, or employee of any such entity, which is active within the territory in which the ethanol and CoProducts of the Co-operative are distributed, shall not be eligible for membership in the Co-operative except where,
in the sole opinion of the Board of Directors, by virtue of the limited size or scope of operations of such a facility,
such a person’s membership would not be likely to have any materially adverse impact on the Co-operative. Any
member who acquires a proprietary, partnership, or ownership interest greater than 10% in an entity potentially
competitive with the Co-operative within its territory may, at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, be expelled
from membership in accordance with the procedures set out in the Co-operative’s By-Laws.
The Co-operative’s Membership
The Co-operative is the parent holding entity of IGPC, owning debt and equity of IGPC. As at June 30, 2020, the Cooperative had 635 members. The minimum individual purchase of Class E Preference Shares established under the
current Offering Statement of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares does not apply to current Members who have
previously purchased the minimum number of such shares as part of the Co-operative’s previous offerings of Class E
Preference Shares.
Business with Members
The Co-operative estimates that more than 95% of the corn IGPC purchases is from Ontario. The Co-operative
believes that a majority of this corn is supplied by its members. However, due to the nature of the corn procurement
agreement with The Andersons Canada Limited (“Andersons”) (formerly known as “Thompsons Limited”, which
was entered into on November 9, 2017 and amended on June 30, 2019, all of IGPC’s corn requirements are fulfilled
by Andersons (the “Andersons Agreement”). The Co-operative does not have access to the names of the producers
originally providing corn to Andersons. See Section 4 Business Plan – Corn Procurement.
In addition, given the nature of the corn distribution system in Ontario and the distance to end users, most producers
ship their corn directly to local grain elevators which in turn ship this corn to end users such as IGPC. This further
complicates the Co-operative’s ability to determine with any accuracy the percentage of business it transacts with its
members.
In the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, Andersons purchased 5,000 Class E Preference Shares through the Cooperative’s trading platform, and became a member of the Co-operative. Andersons is not involved whatsoever with
the management of IGPC, nor does it have a representative on the Board of Directors. Andersons owns less than 0.05%
of the outstanding Class E Preference Shares and holds approximately 0.15% of the outstanding Membership Shares.
Insurance
IGPC has taken out property, general liability, construction, environmental and casualty insurance with reputable
insurers in amounts which are customary in the industry.
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Authorizations, Licenses, and Permits
IGPC’s management believes it has obtained and is in substantial compliance with all necessary authorizations,
licenses and permits required for the ongoing operation of the Plant and the sale of ethanol and Co-Products, and that
the Plant is in substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. IGPC obtained numerous municipal,
provincial, and federal Government permits, licenses, and regulatory approvals in order to construct and operate the
Plant.
IGPC has obtained an Environmental Compliance Approval for air and noise emissions from the Ministry of
Environment, Conservation and Parks under the Environmental Protection Act (Ontario). An industrial sewage works
Certificate of Approval for the establishment of stormwater management works for the collection, transmission,
treatment and disposal of stormwater run-off from the Plant has also been obtained from the Ministry of Environment,
Conservation and Parks under the Ontario Water Resources Act.
IGPC has obtained numerous regulatory approvals and permits that were necessary for the construction and operation
of the Plant. Some of these approvals require ongoing monitoring to ensure continuing compliance with the terms and
conditions of such permits and approvals. Failure to comply with such terms and conditions could result in the
suspension or revocation of such permits, some of which are critical for the continued operation of the Plant. IGPC
carefully monitors its activities to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of all permits.
Environmental Compliance
IGPC has obtained various regulatory approvals from the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
(Ontario) for the operation of the Plant and has procedures in place to ensure that it complies with environmental
requirements on an ongoing basis.
In October 2016, the Government of Canada announced the Pan-Canadian Approach to Pricing Carbon Pollution (the
federal “benchmark”) which would be flexible and would recognize that provinces and territories have implemented
or are developing their own carbon pollution pricing systems. The federal government committed to implementing a
federal carbon pollution pricing system in provinces and territories that request it or do not have a carbon pollution
pricing system that meets the federal benchmark. As Ontario had repealed the Climate Change Mitigation and Low
Carbon Economy Act with the passage of Bill 4, Cap and Trade Cancellation Act, 2018, Ontario currently does not
have a carbon pollution pricing system that meets the federal benchmark.
In December 2018, the federal government released an information notice of their proposed Output Based Pricing
System (“Carbon Tax”) for industrial emitters effective January 1, 2019 and a Fuel Charge applied to fossil fuels
effective April 1, 2019. The federal framework is currently being challenged by the Ontario government. IGPC
management, based on its review of the proposed federal policy framework, does not estimate there will be a material
impact from the proposed federal Carbon Tax. The current proposed carbon tax will be priced at $20/MT increasing
by $10/MT each year thereafter.
Real Estate
IGPC owns the Aylmer Property. In connection with the Air Liquide Agreement, IGPC has leased, pursuant to a lease
agreement, a portion of the Aylmer Property to Air Liquide to facilitate the operation of the Air Liquide Facility in
which Air Liquide receives, refines and stores the CO2 purchased from IGPC. See Section 4 Business Plan – Carbon
Dioxide.
Subsidiary
IGPC serves as the operating entity for the Plant. In March, 2007 the Co-operative assigned and transferred to IGPC
substantially all of the assets, undertakings and property of the Co-operative including but not limited to, all land and
properties owned by the Co-operative and all contracts and agreements the Co-operative had entered into with third
parties.
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The Co-operative is and intends to continue to be the sole shareholder of IGPC. Consistent with the provisions of
Section 68.1 of the Act, the Co-operative will not sell, lease, exchange or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all
of its property without the prior approval given by special resolution at a meeting of the members of the Co-operative
duly called to consider the sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the property of IGPC.
In order for a special resolution to be approved at such a meeting, it must be supported by at least two-thirds of those
members entitled to vote at the meeting who are represented in person and, in accordance with the articles of
incorporation of the Co-operative, subsequently, confirmed in writing by at least 80% of the members.
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought from,
the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or debentures issued
pursuant to this Offering Statement. See Section 4 Business Plan – Senior Credit Facilities.
Any proceeds raised hereunder in respect of Membership Shares or Class E Preference Shares shall be taken up by
the Co-operative at the discretion of the Board of Directors. See Section 4 Business Plan - Plant Facility and Section
6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Establishment of Share Transfer Mechanism
On August 13, 2010, the Co-operative executed an agreement (the “Share Transfer Recordkeeping Agreement”)
with Caldwell Securities Ltd. (“Caldwell Securities”) pursuant to which Caldwell Securities acts as the registrar and
transfer record keeper for all Class E Preference Shares of the Co-operative. Under the agreement with Caldwell
Securities, Caldwell Securities will also maintain a link on a website located at www.caldwellsecurities.com to a
summary of recent bid prices and offering quotes and last sale details with respect to Class E Preference Shares (the
“Information Database”). The Co-operative’s financial statements, annual reports, offering statements and press
releases are available at IGPC’s website located at www.igpc.ca.
In addition to acting as the registrar and transfer record keeper for the Class E Preference Shares, Caldwell Securities
has established an electronic platform to facilitate the purchase and sale of Class E Preference Shares by existing
shareholders and prospective purchasers of Class E Preference Shares. To this end, Caldwell Securities will:
(a) electronically display bid and offer quotes and last sale details with respect to the Class E Preference
Shares and specifically shall disclose the following on the Information Database:
(i) the bid price(s) to acquire a particular number of Class E Preference Shares;
(ii) the offering quote(s) to sell a particular number of Class E Preference Shares;
(iii) the date, price and volume of the three most recent sales of Class E Preference Shares; and
(iv) a link to a page that lists all historical trades made through the facilities of Caldwell Securities
which will list the date, price and volume for each trade completed, but will not list the names of
any party to such trades; and
(b) use its commercially reasonable best efforts to match bid and offer quotes in order to cause a trade match
in accordance with the trading rules posted on the Information Database.
Any person wishing to access the Information Database in order to purchase or sell Class E Preference Shares of the
Co-operative must open a securities trading account with Caldwell Securities.
Purchases and sales of Class E Preference Shares must involve not less than 100 shares. There is a minimum fee of
$100 per transaction, to be paid by both the purchaser and seller. All Class E Preference Share purchases and sales are
conditional upon approval of the Board of Directors, which generally shall occur within 7 to 10 days after the date of
the trade match. If the Board of Directors, in its absolute discretion, does not approve the trade match, no transfer of
the Class E Preference Shares shall be completed.
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The Co-operative has adopted corporate governance policies requiring that it use its best efforts to ensure that no one
with insider information about the Co-operative trades in Class E Preference Shares during any period in which a
material change has occurred in the business or affairs of the Co-operative which has not been generally disclosed. In
addition, if a material change should occur after a trade match has occurred, but before the Board of Directors has
approved the trade match, the trade match will not be approved until both the buying and selling party have had two
business days following the issuance of the press release disclosing the material change to consider whether they wish
to proceed with the trade at the price previously settled between the parties.
IGPC Class E Preference Shares continue to trade through the Caldwell Share Transfer Platform. The vast majority
of these trades are between current members. Since the transfer platform was initiated, there have been very few
individuals who have purchased Class E Preference Shares and have become new members of the Co-operative. Since
it was initiated, the share transfer platform was never meant to create a viable market for the Class E Preference Shares
but was intended to provide existing members with the opportunity to either sell shares or buy more should they so
wish.
The Class E Preference Shares transfer platform is extremely illiquid. The value of the trades do not necessarily reflect
the value of the Class E Preference Shares or the business of IGPC.
Since the launch of the share transfer platform in April 2011 until December 31, 2018, 1,276,849 Class E Preference
Shares have been traded at values ranging from $3 to $8 per share with an average value of $5.09. The high of $8
occurred in April 2011, while the low of $3 was reached in January 2013 and July 2013. As of March 31, 2020, the
last trade in price per share was $3.25. For greater certainty, no such transfer platform exists in relation to the
Membership Shares or the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures or 2020 Debentures.
Investors are advised that the market for Class E Preference Shares is highly illiquid and that past Class E
Preference Share prices are not necessarily a reliable indicator of future prices. See Section 5 – Risk Factors.
Results of Operations and Material Variations
As indicated previously, IGPC commenced full business operations in October 2008. In March 2007, the Co-operative
assigned and transferred to IGPC substantially all of the assets, undertakings and property of the Co-operative
including but not limited to, all land and properties owned by the Co-operative and all contracts and agreements the
Co-operative had entered into with third parties. Prior to October 2008, the Co-operative’s activities consisted solely
of project development and construction. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Overview
and History.
Summary of Key Financial Indicators
The information set out below for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 is extracted from the 2019 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Co-operative (see Schedule C). The information set out below for the year
ended September 30, 2017 is extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Co-operative for the
year ended September 30, 2018. (For complete financial information, See Schedule B - Unaudited Financial
Information and Schedule C - 2019 Audited and Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended

Year ended

Year ended

September 30, 2019 September 30, 2018 September 30, 2017
Unaudited

Unaudited

Unaudited

$216,467,108

$110,913,719

$125,936,168

($8,850,080)

($2,637,518)

$7,840,405

($16,019,157)

($7,102,948)

$3,404,159

($12,015,578)

($5,217,051)

$2,519,264

Net decrease
in cash

($3,515,850)

($3,926,884)

($31,039,130)

Total long-term and short-term debt (excluding
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, deferred
income tax liabilities, construction holdback accrual
and derivative contracts).

$80,332,795

$64,231,909

$8,294,850

Retained earnings

$90,218,065

$102,233,643

$107,450,694

Membership and
Preference Shares
Outstanding (Note 1)

$11,686,016

$11,661,191

$13,787,881

Sales
Gross profit (loss)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

Net income (loss) after provision for income taxes

Note 1:

Year Ended September 30, 2018
Return of capital payment for outstanding shares as of November 15, 2017
Return of capital payment for outstanding shares as of February 15, 2018
Return of capital payment for outstanding shares as of May 15, 2018
Return of capital payment for outstanding shares as of August 15, 2018
Total return of capital
Exercised stock options
Share redemptions
Change in book value of Membership and Preference Shares Outstanding
Year Ended September 30, 2019

$(544,220)
$(544,625)
$(548,038)
$(544,652)
$(2,181,535)
$65,845
$(11,000)
$(2,126,690)
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Total return of capital
Exercised stock options
Share redemptions
Change in book value of Membership and Preference Shares Outstanding

$(9,745)
$39,070
$(4,500)
$24,825

Management Commentary on Fiscal Year 2019 Results
Fiscal 2019 represented the first full year of operations for the expanded Plant which was commissioned in October
2018. Full Plant operating capacity was achieved in November 2018. Total fiscal 2019 ethanol production was
approximately 363 million litres. Plant shutdowns totaled 16.5 days, of which 11 days were scheduled maintenance
shutdowns. Sales of DDGS, DWG, and other distillers Co-Products totalled approximately 339,000 metric tonnes,
with an additional 9,000 metric tonnes of corn oil sold.
IGPC has operated without Government operating grants since fiscal 2018 In anticipation of the loss of these
Government operating grants, which will continue to be reflected in lower gross profits, IGPC doubled the size of the
Plant, thereby significantly lowering its per unit production costs and at least partially offsetting the loss of the
Government operating grants.
A direct comparison of fiscal 2019 to fiscal 2018 results is not appropriate because of the doubling of Plant output.
Instead, it is important to focus on per unit prices of the Plant’s key products (i.e. ethanol and distillers grains) and the
per unit prices of the major Plant inputs (i.e. corn and natural gas).
Due to a deterioration in market conditions, with ethanol prices declining an average of $0.015/litre in fiscal 2019
compared to fiscal 2018, and corn prices increasing an average of $0.32/bushel, or $0.11 on a per litre basis, fiscal
2019’s simple crush margin (ethanol revenue less corn costs) was down approximately $0.037 per litre compared to
the previous year. By way of reference only, had fiscal 2018’s crush margin been maintained in fiscal 2019, IGPC
would have had an additional $13.8 million in gross crush margin.
The negative variances discussed above were compounded in fiscal 2019 by a sharp decline in the prices for IGPC’s
distillers grains due to the major vomitoxin outbreak which affected much of the Southern Ontario corn crop harvested
in the fall of 2018. Fiscal 2019 prices for DDGS fell by more than $50 per metric tonne compared to fiscal 2018 and
drops of similar magnitude occurred for IGPC’s other distillers Co-Products. Taken together, the decline in the fiscal
2019 prices for distillers revenues represented a loss in potential distillers gross revenues of $10.2 million had fiscal
2018 prices for distillers been maintained throughout fiscal 2019.
These adverse market conditions led to a decrease of $8.9 million in net pre-tax income from fiscal 2018, for a total
pre-tax net loss in fiscal 2019 of $16.0 million.
During fiscal 2019, IGPC completed its final draws of $7.4 million on the BDC and FCC facilities to fund construction
of the New Plant. Cash flow in fiscal 2019 was negative $3.5 million, compared to negative $3.9 million in fiscal
2018.
The information set out below is based on the Unaudited Financial Information as at the end of the Co-operative’s
first three quarters of fiscal 2020, with comparative information for the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and June
30, 2019. (For complete financial information, See Schedule B - Unaudited Financial Information

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2019

Quarter Ended
March 31, 2020

Quarter Ended
June 30, 2020

Unaudited

Unaudited

Unaudited

Nine Months
Ended
June 30, 2020

Nine Months Ended
June 30, 2019
Unaudtied

Unaudited
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Revenues

$64,883,616

$61,631,543

$43,799,873

$170,315,032

$162,870,610

Income (loss) before
provision for income taxes

$2,459,670

($2,261,373)

($1,633,614)

($1,435,317)

($7,519,867)

Net income (loss) after
provision for income taxes

$1, 844,753

($1,688,871)

($1,222,439)

($1,066,557)

($5,639,979)

Net increase (decrease) in
cash

$7,778,187

($2,774,668)

($2,262,173)

$2,741,346

($1,738,073)

The Unaudited Financial Information (Appendix B – Unaudited Financial Information) reflects the operation of the
Plant during the first three quarters of fiscal 2020. These three quarters experienced a 1% decrease in ethanol volume
sold, compared to the same period in fiscal 2019, and similar decreases across the Co-Products due to the operation
of the Plant at reduced capacity during the third quarter of fiscal 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Plant did not operate at full capacity in the first three quarters of fiscal 2019 as the New Plant was still in its start-up
phase.
Continued increases in ethanol production along with the trade dispute between the United States and China which
has resulted in the imposition of 70% tariffs on U.S. ethanol exports to China, have all contributed to a North American
surplus of ethanol and put downward pressure on ethanol prices. Although simple crush margins recovered
substantially in the first quarter of fiscal 2020, the significant adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on both
ethanol prices and demand in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 resulted in IGPC revenues and margins falling below
initial forecasts. Somewhat improved crush margins, along with the absence of any significant vomitoxin, enabled
IGPC to post a net pre-tax profit of approximately $200,000 and positive cash flow of just over $5 million during the
first two quarters of fiscal 2020. However, due to the dramatic drop in demand for ethanol and other transportation
fuels in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, IGPC sustained a year-to-date pretax loss as at the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of $1,435,317 and its year-to-date positive cash flow declined
to $2,741,346.
The 2018 Southern Ontario corn crop was seriously infected by deoxynivalenol (“DON”), a vomitoxin that is toxic to
some animals. The fuel ethanol production process results in concentrated levels of vomitoxin in the distillers CoProduct. Livestock producers consequently reduced the amount of DDGS and DWG they fed to their animals as they
mixed in other feed ingredients to reduce the vomitoxin to acceptable levels. The 2019 corn crop has generally been
free of significant amounts of vomitoxin enabling IGPC to achieve higher margins for its distillers Co-Products. For
the nine months ended June 30, 2020, IGPC revenues from its distillers Co-Products increased by nearly $9.9 million
over the same period in fiscal 2019.
Market Environment for Ethanol and Ethanol Co-Products in Ontario
The fuel ethanol which IGPC produces at the Plant serves as an oxygenate for gasoline which enhances the octane
rating of gasoline, and reduces greenhouse gas emissions, harmful tailpipe emissions of carbon monoxide, and other
toxic components. Ethanol-blended gasoline typically contains 10% ethanol. Without taking into account the effects
of COVID-19, approximately 41 billion litres of gasoline is consumed annually in the Canadian transportation sector.
The Federal Government has established a renewable fuel standard, which took effect in 2010, requiring that all motor
vehicle gasoline be blended with an average minimum content of 5% ethanol. Ontario currently requires all gasoline
sold in the province to contain an average minimum content of 10% ethanol.
Canada’s ethanol industry as of December 2019 has 2.0 billion litres of production capacity in place. Canada’s
production is not sufficient to meet domestic blending targets and it is estimated that 1.22 billion litres of ethanol were
imported in 2019, nearly all of it from the United States. Canada consumed approximately 3.16 billion litres of fuel
ethanol in 2019 and, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, is expected to consume less in 2020. The nation’s estimated
overall blend rate for the 2019 calendar year was 6.5%, up from the 2018 blend rate of 6.4%.
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IGPC produces approximately 340,000 tonnes of DDGS and DWG annually. DDGS and DWG derived from corn
contain nutrients that promote dairy milk production and growth in beef cattle, poultry and swine. The prices of DDGS
and DWG are based upon the costs of alternative feed ingredients such as corn and soybeans, and these prices fluctuate
in accordance with market conditions. While DWG must be utilized within a short distance of the Plant, generally not
more than 150 kilometres, DDGS can be cost effectively transported for long distances. Due to the high energy costs
associated with the drying of distillers’ grains, IGPC seeks to maximize its revenues by managing the production and
sale of both dry and wet distillers’ grains. See Section 4 Business Plan.
Approximately 280,000 MTs of recoverable CO2 are produced annually by the New Plant. CO2 has a variety of
industrial and beverage uses and as of April 2016 IGPC entered into an agreement for the sale of its CO2 Co-Product
with a world class leader in gases, technologies and health services, namely, Air Liquide. The arrangement with Air
Liquide involves the long-term sale of the Plant’s CO2 Co-Product to Air Liquide by way of connecting the Plant to
the Air Liquide Facility located adjacent to the Plant on the Aylmer Property. The arrangements with Air Liquide also
include a service contract and a real property lease agreement in relation to the Air Liquide Facility. IGPC markets
approximately half of its recoverable CO2 through Air Liquide, pursuant to the AL Agreement. The balance of the
CO2 it produces is currently not recovered. IGPC understands that some of its competitors have similar CO2 sale
agreements in place with Air Liquide. See Section 3 Description of Business of the Co-Operative – The Air Liquide
Agreement.
Competitive Environment
Canada, as at January, 2020, has 15 operating ethanol plants producing a total of approximately 2.0 billion litres of
ethanol annually. There are currently six operating ethanol plants (including IGPC’s Plant) in Ontario, three of which
are owned by Greenfield Global. The Greenfield Global facility in Chatham, Ontario has a current capacity of 200
million litres of fuel and industrial ethanol; its Johnstown, Ontario facility has a capacity of 254 million litres of fuel
ethanol; and its Tiverton, Ontario facility has a capacity of 27 million litres of industrial and beverage ethanol.
Greenfield Global also operates a facility with a capacity of 175 million litres of fuel ethanol in Varennes, Quebec.
Suncor Energy Products Inc. has been operating its 400 million litre fuel ethanol facility in Sarnia, Ontario since the
fall of 2006. Kawartha Ethanol Inc. is operating a facility with a capacity of 80 million litres of fuel ethanol in
Havelock, Ontario. As of the date of this Offering Statement, there are no other ethanol plants under construction in
Ontario.
Currently, fuel ethanol can move across North America free from any tariffs or non-tariff trade barriers. IGPC
currently markets its ethanol in Ontario, but tariff-free access to the U.S. provides an option to export should market
economics warrant. Since duty free access to Canada is reciprocal, U.S. Midwest producers can ship ethanol
efficiently to Ontario via the CN and CPRS rail networks. For calendar 2019, Ontario’s demand for ethanol exceeded
domestic supply by approximately 517 million litres and U.S. suppliers supplied this shortfall. As of May 2020,
Ontario had imported approximately 201 million litres of ethanol in the current calendar year. In light of the significant
drop in gasoline demand in spring 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Ontario demand for ethanol is
estimated to be currently more closely balanced with domestic supply, but up-to-date information on actual domestic
ethanol production and ethanol demand is not available. U.S. ethanol plants with access to the CN and CPRS rail
networks, of which there are ten plants producing approximately 2 billion litres, can efficiently ship large volumes of
ethanol to Ontario which can put a ceiling on prices local ethanol producers can realize. Local ethanol producers are
nevertheless competitive as they can serve the local blending terminals (including those that only receive trucks) using
trucks, which is a more predictable mode of transportation. Additionally, Canada has a different ethanol specification
which can act as a deterrent to U.S. producers since it could reduce production efficiencies.
Any growth of the domestic market for ethanol depends on a variety of factors, including consumer demand
and Government incentives for ethanol production, which are beyond the control of IGPC.
The DDGS and DWG produced by IGPC’s facility competes both with similar products produced by other ethanol
manufacturers and breweries, as well as against other feed ingredients, primarily soybean meal. See Section 4
Business Plan – Distillers Grains and Solubles. The DWG produced as a Co-Product of ethanol manufacturing
competes with other sources of distillers wet grains, wet brewers grains and wet gluten produced from corn wetmilling plants. As at January 2019, there was approximately 220,000 tonnes of wet brewers grain produced in Ontario,
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Quebec and upstate New York. The corn wet-milling plants in London, Port Colborne and Cardinal produce an
estimated 230,000 tonnes annually of corn gluten which is priced very similarly to DWG. DDGS is produced both
from the manufacture of ethanol and other distillation processes.
The Ontario market for DDGS is currently supplied by a number of producers, including the Hiram Walker Distillery
in Windsor and the Canadian Mist distillery in Collingwood, both of which produce relatively small quantities of dried
distillers’ grain. The five ethanol plants currently in operation in Michigan have an aggregate DDGS production
capacity estimated at approximately 1,034,000 tonnes of DDGS annually. Greenfield Global’s Chatham, Tiverton,
and Johnstown Ontario ethanol plants have an estimated combined production capacity of approximately 325,000
tonnes of DDGS annually, while the Suncor ethanol plant in Sarnia, Ontario produces an estimated 260,000 tonnes of
DDGS annually. The total estimated DDGS production capacity for Ontario is approximately 1,200,000 tonnes
annually, although actual production will vary from year to year. The U.S. ethanol plants in close proximity to the
border ship approximately 200,000 tonnes to Ontario.
In addition to direct competition from other ethanol plants and breweries, DDGS also competes with other sources of
vegetable protein, primarily soybean meal. Ontario’s market in soybean meal is dominated by two large soybean
crushers; (a) Bunge located in Hamilton, Ontario, and (b) Archer Daniels Midland, in Windsor, Ontario. These two
plants produce a combined total of approximately 1.3 million tonnes of soybean meal annually. There is also a crushing
plant in Trois Rivieres, Quebec which produces up to approximately 1.05 metric tonnes of meal per year (soybean
meal and canola meal).
IGPC began extracting Corn Oil from its process in 2013 and the Plant currently produces approximately 9,000 metric
tonnes per year.
Outlook
Ongoing concern about greenhouse gas emissions and the search for renewable fuel sources have been important
factors in the growth of the ethanol industry in North America. Farmers seeking new value-added markets for their
corn, grains, and other feedstocks have promoted ethanol production as a means of simultaneously promoting
agricultural growth and the development of an environmentally sustainable source of renewable fuel.
From 2008 to 2016, IGPC, along with other Ontario and Canadian ethanol producers, benefitted from a variety of
federal and provincial Government supports in the form of operating grants which significantly helped offset any
adverse fluctuations in commodity prices which could reduce the profitability of ethanol plants. These operating
supports all ceased in 2017, and Canadian ethanol plants must now rely on a combination of production efficiencies
and market demand, bolstered by national and provincial ethanol mandates, to achieve profitable operations. IGPC’s
recently completed expansion, along with other production enhancements it has implemented over the past five years,
are all designed to enhance IGPC’s efficiency so as to enable it to operate profitably in the absence of ongoing
Government supports. There can be no assurance that these operational efficiencies will be able successfully or
fully to offset the termination of the Government operating grants.
The current surplus of ethanol on North American markets, combined with political uncertainty over the long-term
domestic supports available for ethanol production, is expected to present ongoing challenges for the entire ethanol
sector in both Canada and the United States. Currently the U.S. has production capacity of approximately 16 billion
gallons of ethanol annually, while domestic consumption in 2019 was approximately 14.4 billion gallons. Canada has
ethanol production capacity of an additional 2.0 billion litres, or approximately 525 million gallons, of ethanol
annually, with domestic consumption of approximately 3.16 billion litres, or 850 million gallons, in 2019. In 2019,
the U.S. exported worldwide approximately 1.47 billion gallons of ethanol, with 22% of that ethanol destined for
Canada. With total North American ethanol production is now substantially higher than current North American
demand, developing profitable export markets will be critical for the recovery of the ethanol sector, at least in the short
to medium term.
The substantial tariffs, amounting to approximately 70%, placed on U.S. ethanol exports to China largely eliminated
an important and growing market for North American ethanol since their imposition in April 2018. However, under
the recent “Phase One” trade deal between the U.S. and China, China has agreed to purchase, over the next two years,
up to an additional $200 billion in U.S. exports over 2017 baseline values. This includes the purchase of additional
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agricultural commodities amounting to $32 billion over two years, with ethanol expressly included in the list of
agricultural commodities to be purchased under the agreement, although no specific targets for ethanol purchases were
set out under this trade deal. In addition, China has subsequently announced that it will provide exemptions from the
higher tariffs to a wide range of agricultural and other products, including ethanol. In 2016, nearly 200 million gallons
of U.S. ethanol was exported to China, although this figure dropped to less than 50 million gallons in 2017. No U.S.
ethanol has been directly sold to China since the imposition of the new tariffs in April 2018.
China had previously announced plans to establish a national 10% ethanol mandate by 2020 which, according to
industry sources, could have created new ethanol demand of 19 billion litres annually, of which more than 11 billion
litres would need to be imported based on existing and anticipated Chinese ethanol production capacity. However, the
plans to introduce such a mandate have now been suspended indefinitely. If the current trade disputes between the
U.S. and China can be successfully resolved in a timely manner, and if China resumes its plans to introduce an ethanol
mandate, there could be a potential for significant further growth in the demand for North American ethanol. In the
longer term, additional Chinese demand for ethanol could be significantly offset by a corresponding increase in
domestic Chinese ethanol production.
In 2019 the Environmental Protection Agency in the U.S. permitted year round sales of 15% ethanol blends in gasoline
during the summer months, which could represent a significant long-term growth opportunity for the North American
ethanol industry. See Section 4 Business Plan - U.S. Legislation.
Significant growth in other international markets is also anticipated over the next decade as countries like India seek
to reduce pressing air quality issues by increasing their uses of biofuels. India recently enacted its National Policy on
Biofuels 2018 which sets a target for a 20% ethanol blend in gasoline by 2030. Although this policy calls for an
increase in domestic ethanol production, and restricts ethanol imports, USDA reports suggest that ultimately India
would require substantial imports of ethanol to achieve its biofuel targets. In 2017, India imported nearly 200 million
gallons of U.S. ethanol, while Brazil imported over 425 million gallons.
Although there is demonstrated potential for rapid growth in global ethanol demand, due to political and trade
uncertainties there can be no assurance that North American or Canadian ethanol producers in general, or IGPC
specifically, will be able to take advantage of these potential market opportunities. IGPC continues to focus its
marketing strategy on the Canadian market, but IGPC is also continuously evaluating the broader global ethanol
outlook which ultimately affects its domestic opportunities as well.
COVID-19 continues to have a substantial impact on the demand for transportation fuels in general, and ethanol in
specific, and there is significant uncertainty regarding how COVID-19 will affect the outlook for IGPC’s business and
operations over the short and mid-term. See Section 5 (“Risk Factors”) for a further descriptions of the risks associated
with COVID-19.
Legislation and Programs in Canada
Effective January 1, 2020, all Ontario gasoline wholesalers’ annual gasoline sales are required to achieve an annual
average of at least 10% ethanol content. Based upon previously estimated annual gasoline consumption in Ontario of
almost 16 billion litres, this provincial government requirement effectively established a mandated provincial market
previously estimated at approximately 1.6 billion litres of ethanol per year. See Section 4 Business Plan – Ethanol.
As a result of COVID-19, since March 2020 gasoline consumption across North America has declined sharply and
it is unknown whether and when gasoline and ethanol demand will return to historic levels. Based on U.S.
consumption data it is estimated that there was a decline of nearly 50% in gasoline demand between March 2020
and April 2020. With the gradual lifting of restrictions on travel and business activities, by June 2020 gasoline
consumption in the U.S. had returned to nearly 85% of historic June levels. Ontario gasoline demand is estimated to
have declined by approximately the same percentage as U.S. demand, however current estimates of gasoline
consumption in Ontario are not available. The pace of Ontario’s recovery in gasoline and ethanol demand may vary
from that in the United States based upon the variance in the resumption of economic activity in the two countries.
The Ontario Ethanol in Gasoline Regulation increased the ethanol mandate from 5% to 10% effective January 1, 2020.
Under this Regulation, the ethanol blended will need to reduce GHG emissions by at least 45% on average compared
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to gasoline. The current Ontario government has announced further plans to increase the mandate to 15% between
2025 and 2030.
In 2010 the Government of Canada implemented a renewable fuel standard requiring a 5% average renewable fuel
content, including ethanol, in all Canadian gasoline.
In December 2018 the Government of Canada released its Clean Fuel Standard Regulatory Design Paper which will
target reductions of carbon intensity in the liquid stream. The carbon intensity of liquid fuels will have to be reduced
by 10 g of CO2e per MJ (grams of carbon dioxide equivalents per unit of energy in megajoules) below their reference
carbon intensity by 2030. This corresponds to a carbon intensity reduction of approximately 11% and up to 23 MT
of incremental emissions by 2030. The second element of the plan will allow the generation of credits when fuels are
switched along the production chain of a fossil fuel. Producers of renewable fuels will be permitted to generate credits.
Credits will be generated based on the difference between the carbon intensity of the renewable fuel and the credit
reference carbon intensity value of the fuel stream in which it is used. A credit trading system will be established to
facilitate the trading between eligible participants. It is proposed that this new system will come into force in 2022
and will incorporate the existing 5% federal mandate.
Currently, IGPC is able to produce ethanol with a lower carbon intensity than most other Ontario and U.S. ethanol
producers, making its ethanol more valuable to refiners blending in this ethanol with their gasoline.
Changes in gasoline specifications or the development of other cost-effective additives and/or other alternative
fuel technologies, competitive with ethanol could adversely affect the ethanol industry in general, and the Cooperative in specific, and have an adverse impact on the cash flows and profitability of IGPC.
The future growth and viability of the market for fuel ethanol in Ontario and Canada is dependent in large measure on
federal and provincial Government tax policies, programs, and regulations aimed at supporting the ethanol industry.
U.S. Legislation
In December 2019, the United States Environment Protection Agency (“EPA”) published its final Renewable Volume
Obligations (“RVOs”) numbers. The final amount for 2020 is 76 billion litres, of which 57 billion litres is conventional
biofuel, which is unchanged from the RVO for 2019. Presently the United States has a requirement to blend 10%
ethanol in gasoline.
Although E15 is not generally commercially available across the United States at this time, year-round availability
could help encourage the more widespread adoption of E15 outlets. In the short-term, the ability of existing E15
retailers to sell this higher ethanol blend during the summer months could help absorb a portion of the surplus ethanol
currently produced in North America. As with all other aspects of ethanol regulation, there is a significant element of
political risk associated with the proposed changes and the ethanol industry cannot rely on the outcome of this process
nor assume that even a favourable outcome will be upheld by future Administrations.
Markets for Co-Products
IGPC sells the Co-Products of the Plant, DDGS and DWG, locally in Ontario and to export markets mainly in Asia.
DDGS and DWG are well established as efficient feeds for creating dairy production from dairy cows and weight gain
for beef cattle, poultry and hogs. The price of DDGS and DWG historically varies in accordance with the price of
competing feed ingredients, and typically varies directly with the price of corn and, to a lesser extent, with the price
of soybean meal. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-Operative – The Air Liquide Agreement and
Section 4 Business Plan – Plant Facility.
IGPC sells the Corn Oil produced by the Plant to customers in Ontario and the United States. The Co-Product is
primarily used as feedstock for biodiesel production.
The Air Liquide Agreement
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As of April 2016, IGPC entered into the AL Agreement. The AL Agreement involves the long-term sale, subject to
certain terms and conditions, of the Plant’s CO2 Co-Product which must meet specified quality standards. The AL
Agreement includes a common services contract and a real property lease agreement in relation to the Air Liquide
Facility whereby the Co-Operative, as landlord, is to provide certain services and utilities such that the Air Liquide
Facility may be operational and able to receive the Plant’s CO2 Co-Product for purchase. The Air Liquide facility
went into production in May 2018.
SECTION 4 - BUSINESS PLAN
Overview
The objective of the Co-operative is to continue to own 100% of IGPC. IGPC plans to operate the Plant to add
value to local producers’ corn, increase the price demand for local corn, and create jobs and environmentally
sustainable economic growth in Southwestern Ontario. The Co-operative is committed to the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions through the production of renewable fuels. See Section 1 – Corporate Information.Plant
Facility
In October 2008, IGPC commissioned its ethanol Plant in Aylmer, Ontario, which is currently producing 380 million
litres of denatured fuel-grade ethanol annually. The Aylmer site is zoned for heavy industrial use, serviced with natural
gas and hydro, major highway access, and the availability of sufficient water. The Aylmer Property is located in the
Aylmer Business Park, a municipally owned industrial park fully serviced with municipal water and sewers. The site
is located off of Highway 73, a provincial highway leading directly to Highway 401. The short line rail line that
connected the Plant to the Canadian National railroad network in Southern Ontario was recently decommissioned.
IGPC has transferred the limited freight utilizing the rail line over to its existing network of trucking companies
without any disruption in logistics.
IGPC has entered into an exclusive agreement with Eco-Energy for the purchase and marketing of the entire ethanol
output of the Plant for a term of six years starting November 1, 2017, and automatically renewing for additional twoyear terms (“Ethanol Marketing Agreement”). Under the terms of the Ethanol Marketing Agreement, Eco-Energy
arranges all necessary transportation services. For their services IGPC pays Eco-Energy a marketing fee.
With the commissioning of the New Plant, IGPC is now producing approximately 340,000 MTs of DDGS and DWG.
IGPC began marketing its own Co-Products in 2018 through IGPC’s dedicated Feed Division.
The Plant utilizes approximately 36 million bushels of corn annually, representing approximately 11% of Ontario’s
average annual corn production. Since October 1, 2015, corn procurement services have been provided pursuant to
the Andersons Agreement. See Section 4 Business Plan – Corn Procurement.
Approximately 280,000 MTs of recoverable CO2 are also produced annually by the Plant. As previously mentioned,
as of April 2016 the Co-operative has entered into the AL Agreement for the sale of a portion of this CO2. See Section
4 Business Plan – Carbon Dioxide.
In order to help manage the risks associated with fluctuating commodity prices, IGPC may utilize the services of thirdparty risk management providers to assist it with risk management for the purchase of its corn and natural gas and the
sale of its ethanol. See Section 4 Business Plan – Risk Management.
Corn Procurement
Pursuant to the Andersons Agreement, which runs until December 31, 2021, the Co-operative purchases all of its corn
exclusively from Andersons, and Andersons supplies all of the Co-operative’s corn requirements, which corn must
meet specified quality standards. Additionally, Andersons provides inventory and futures market information to the
Co-operative.
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The Co-operative pays Andersons the price of corn, calculated at the applicable corresponding commodity and futures
price plus the basis level, plus or minus any quality premiums or discounts, plus a fixed per metric tonne fee. See
Section 3 – Description of the Business of the Co-operative.
Corn Input
As noted previously, the Plant uses approximately 36 million bushels of corn during each fiscal year of IGPC. Based
upon Ontario corn production data over the past six years, it is estimated that as of the 2019 corn crop year there are
approximately 102 million bushels of corn produced annually within the five counties immediately surrounding
Aylmer (Elgin, Oxford, Middlesex, Brant, and Haldimand-Norfolk). See Section 3 – Description of the Business of
the Co-operative.
Corn acreage in Ontario has remained fairly steady over the past ten years, at approximately 1.7 to 2.2 million acres,
and yields have increased on average by approximately 1.8% annually.
Natural Gas Delivery
On January 30, 2007, IGPC executed a “Gas Delivery Agreement” with NRG under which NRG was required to
provide natural gas to IGPC. A replacement Gas Delivery Agreement entered into in July 2015 provides for delivery
to September 30, 2020. IGPC expects to renew this agreement on substantially the same terms. Epcor Natural Gas
Limited Partnership (“Epcor”) acquired NRG effective as of November 1, 2017. The Gas Delivery Agreement was
assigned to Epcor as part of its acquisition of NRG. Epcor, which is part of a large municipally owned utility company
with an independent board of directors, has activities in both Canada and the U.S..
Epcor has established, and the Ontario Energy Board has approved, a fixed rate structure and rates for gas delivery
which are in effect for the 2020 - 2024 period.
Pipeline Capital Cost Recovery
On January 31, 2007, IGPC executed an agreement with NRG for the construction of a 28.5-kilometre pipeline to
provide natural gas to the Plant. Under the terms of this agreement, IGPC was required to pay an initial up-front
payment of $3,800,000 for the planning, design, and construction of the pipeline (the “aid-to-construct”) and post a
letter of credit in the amount of approximately $5,200,000. As of the date of this Offering Statement, the pipeline has
been constructed and commissioned, and IGPC has made all payments required under this agreement. As at the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019, the letter of credit was reduced to $2,432,326 and is anticipated to continue depleting
by approximately $250,000 annually.
Co-Generation Project
Combined Heat and Power (“CHP”), also known as cogeneration, is the generation of two useful types of energy
(normally electricity and steam) from a single fuel source. CHP is a highly reliable and efficient form of power
generation with low emissions. CHP can decrease energy costs, reduce the impact of utility power outages, and
substantially reduce greenhouse gas and other pollutant emissions. IGPC installed an internal combustion engine at
the Plant in October of 2015 which works in conjunction with the steam turbine (installed in August 2014) resulting
in virtually 50% displacement of electricity purchased from the local distribution company. IGPC has decided not to
run the engine 100% of the time, based on current market incentives for load shedding.
IGPC qualified for a $1.5 million grant towards the purchase of a steam turbine engine, provided by Erie Thames
Powerlines Corporation. With the installation of the steam turbine, IGPC’s electrical consumption has been reduced
by 850kW, resulting in significant savings.
Risk Management
The successful management of the commodity price risks associated with the purchase of corn and natural gas, as well
as the sale of ethanol and Co-Products, are critical for the long-term success of any ethanol manufacturing facility.
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With the assistance of established commodity trading firms experienced in managing the risks associated with the
purchase and sale of these commodities, IGPC has developed and implemented an integrated risk management
strategy. This strategy is monitored on an ongoing basis by the Co-operative’s governance committee, composed of
management and the Board of Directors and, as required, revised with the assistance of outside risk management
firms.
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Markets
IGPC anticipates stable demand for its principal product, ethanol, as well as for its principal Co-Product, DDGS.
IGPC has entered into various agreements which are critical to the successful operation of the Plant, including
agreements for the licensing of the Plant technology, the sale, marketing and/or distribution of ethanol as well as an
agreement for the procurement of corn. Any default by either IGPC or any of the counterparties to these agreements
could have an adverse impact on the cash flow and profitability of the Plant.
Ethanol
The primary market for IGPC’s principal product, ethanol, is as a fuel additive, although ethanol also has industrial
and beverage uses. The use of up to 10% ethanol in gasoline is regarded as a significant means of reducing greenhouse
gas emissions. Under regulations enacted under the Ontario Environmental Protection Act (Ontario), effective January
1, 2020, all Ontario gasoline wholesalers’ annual gasoline sales must achieve an annual average of at least 10% ethanol
content. Based upon previously estimated annual gasoline consumption in Ontario of almost 16 billion litres, this
requirement has effectively established a mandated provincial market previously estimated at approximately 1.6
billion litres of ethanol per year. The Government of Canada has also implemented a national 5% renewable fuels
standard. As noted above under Legislation and Programs in Canada, the COVID-19 pandemic has significantly
depressed gasoline consumption, and therefore ethanol consumption, across North America and there is continuing
uncertainty as to whether and when gasoline consumption levels will return to normal levels.
Distillers Dried Grains with Solubles
Distillers’ grains are the products that remain after high quality cereals have been fermented by yeast. In the
fermentation process, nearly all of the starch in the grain is converted to ethanol and carbon dioxide, while the
remaining nutrients are concentrated to yield DWG. Adding evaporator syrup and drying the material to 12% moisture
creates DDGS. DDGS derived from corn is well established as a competitive livestock feed for dairy and beef cattle,
hogs, and poultry.
The price for DDGS fluctuates significantly in accordance with market conditions, which vary according to the price
of corn, soybean meal, and other competitive feed ingredients. Historically the price of DDGS has tended to follow
the price of corn, although there are notable exceptions to this.
IGPC also has the ability to market a portion of its distiller’s grains in the form of DWG, which reduces the substantial
costs associated with drying. DWG has a limited shelf life of not more than two weeks and, because of the additional
weight associated with the product, is economical to transport only within a distance of approximately 150 kilometers
of the plant.
With the introduction of FST, IGPC has the capacity to produce DDGS with a high protein content and DWG with a
lower protein/higher energy content. These additional distillers’ grains variations have enabled IGPC to diversify its
Co-Product mix with products that, depending on market conditions, could be sold for greater value.
As previously noted in Section 3 - Summary of Key Financial Indicators, the serious infection of the 2018 Southern
Ontario corn crop with DON, a vomitoxin that is toxic to some animals, has significantly reduced the value and
marketability of IGPC’s distillers grains. These challenges are expected to continue at least until the 2019 corn crop
is harvested, provided that the 2019 corn crop is not affected by any further vomitoxin outbreak.
Corn Oil
In August 2013, IGPC began to extract Corn Oil and currently extracts approximately 8,500 MTs of Corn Oil per year
. Substantially all of the Corn Oil produced by IGPC is sold to biodiesel plants.
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Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
The Plant produces approximately 280,000 MTs of recoverable marketable CO2 annually . CO2 is used in a wide
variety of food, pharmaceutical, and industrial applications in its solid, liquid and gaseous forms. As previously
mentioned, as of April 2016, the Co-operative has entered into the AL Agreement. The AL Agreement involves the
long-term sale of the Plant’s CO2 Co-Product to Air Liquide. The arrangements with Air Liquide also include a service
contract and a real property lease agreement in relation to the Air Liquide Facility.
IGPC markets approximately half of its CO2 through Air Liquide pursuant to the Air Liquide Agreement and
understands that some of its competitors also have similar sales agreements in place with Air Liquide. See Section 3
Description of the Business of the Co-operative – The Air Liquide Agreement.
Senior Credit Facilities
On March 22, 2017 IGPC entered into a Credit Agreement with FCC (the “FCC Credit Agreement”), which has
subsequently been subject to various amendments, with a comprehensive amendment of the Credit Agreement
executed on April 23, 2019, and subsequent amendments executed on July 15, 2019, September 26, 2019, November
25, 2019, and June 15, 2020. The FCC Credit Agreement, as amended, is comprised of a construction and term loan,
in the maximum amount of $35,000,000, and an operating credit facility for $7,000,000 (the “FCC Credit Line”),
for an aggregate total facility from FCC of $42,000,000 (the “FCC Facility”). The construction and term portion of
the FCC Facility, consisting of three tranches, have been used for the New Plant construction, as discussed elsewhere.
Two tranches of the FCC Facility, in the amounts of $19,252,336 and $6,738,318 as at June 30, 2020, bear interest at
a fixed rate of 5.429% and 5.449% respectively, and due to amendments maturity dates have been amended to May
4, 2029 and June 4, 2026 respectively, with interest only payable until December 31, 2019, and principal and interest
payments which commenced on January 1, 2020. The third tranche, up to a maximum of $8,000,000, of which
$6,362,627 has been drawn as of June 30, 2020, bears interest at the FCC variable rate plus 1.00%, with interest only
payable until December 31, 2019, and principal and interest payments which commenced on January 1, 2020; this
third tranche comes due December 1, 2021. Due to the deteriorating global economic outlook brought about by the
Covid-19 pandemic and its adverse impact on IGPC’s financial situation, FCC postponed further principal payments
for six months from May 2020 through to October 2020, with principal payments resuming in November 2020.
The FCC Credit Line bears interest at FCC’s variable rate plus 1.00% per annum, with monthly interest only payments,
and comes due October 1, 2020. The FCC Credit Line is subject to annual review and may be renewed for further one
year terms on terms agreeable to FCC, the Co-operative and IGPC. As at June 30, 2020, no funds were drawn on the
FCC Credit Line.
Additionally, on March 9, 2017 IGPC entered into a credit agreement with BDC comprised of a construction term
loan in the maximum amount of $30,000,000 (the “BDC Facility”), as amended by a comprehensive Letter of
Amendment dated May 13, 2019 as well as subsequent amendments dated September 23, 2019 and April 7, 2020.
Monthly principal payments of $250,000, plus interest, commenced in January 2020 but, due to the deteriorating
global economic outlook brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and its adverse impact on IGPC financial
situation, BDC postponed further principal payments for six months from May 2020 through to October 2020, with
principal payments resuming on October 31,2020. The BDC Facility, as amended, bears interest at 6.2% per annum.
Interest and principal repayments, payable monthly in arrears, began on January 31, 2020, with the final payment due
on May 31, 2030, subject to the above-noted postponements
At September 30, 2019, IGPC has drawn $33,158,023 ($32,353,281 as at June 30, 2020) on the FCC Facility and
$28,055,437 ($27,600,906 as at June 30, 2020) on the BDC Facility. These balances are offset by $914,647
($839,760as at June 30, 2020) in deferred financing costs to be amortized over the loans’ terms. At September 30,
2019, no funds had been drawn on the FCC Credit Line (no funds had been drawn as at June 30, 2020).
Covenants under the Senior Credit Facilities are customary for facilities of this nature and include: (i) IGPC and the
Co-operative shall maintain a Debt to Equity Ratio, calculated on a consolidated basis, as at the last day of each
Financial Year of IGPC, of not greater than 1.00:1.00 for the Financial Year ending September 30, 2018 and for each
Financial Year thereafter; and (ii) IGPC and the Co-operative shall maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio,
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calculated on a consolidated basis, as at September 30, 2019, and as at the end of each fiscal quarter thereafter, up to
and including June 30, 2020, of not less than 1.00:1.00, and a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of 1.30:1.00 for each
fiscal quarter starting with September 30, 2020 and each fiscal quarter thereafter; the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
shall be calculated on a trailing twelve month basis at each measurement date. Minimum EBITDA thresholds for
subsequent quarters will be established after consideration of IGPC’s annual budget and cash flow forecast for the
year ending September 30, 2020. As of the date of this Offering Statement, IGPC is in compliance with all of these
covenants. Continued compliance with the Fixed Charge Covenant Ratio covenant may restrict the ability of the Cooperative to make distributions to its shareholders or redeem their shares.
The Senior Credit Facilities each include a number of positive and negative covenants with which IGPC must comply
while each are outstanding. The Co-operative believes that IGPC will be able to continue to comply with all such
covenants, as they may be amended from time to time, in the ordinary course of business.
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities. As security for its obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities, IGPC
has granted a first priority mortgage over its land and property located at 89 Progress Drive, Aylmer, Ontario, a general
security agreement over all of the personal property assets of IGPC and an assignment of insurance to be shared pari
passu among the Senior Lenders. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Subsidiary, See
Section 6 Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Investors are advised that the Senior Credit Facilities are interconditional with each other and the failure to
comply with the covenants contained in one of the Senior Credit Facilities would constitute a default under
both such agreements. In the event of such a default, the commitments of FCC and BDC would automatically
terminate and all outstanding amounts due under the Senior Credit Facilities would become immediately due
and payable.
Under the Senior Credit Facilities, there are restrictions and limitations upon the ability of IGPC to distribute
profits to its sole shareholder, the Co-operative, which restrict the Co-operative’s ability to redeem or make
distributions in respect of Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares, 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures,
and 2020 Debentures.
On September 29, 2017, IGPC entered into a credit agreement (the “RBC Credit Agreement”) with Royal Bank of
Canada (“RBC”). As security for the obligations under the RBC Credit Agreement, IGPC has provided RBC with a
general security agreement constituting a first priority security interest in the accounts receivable, inventories of IGPC.
The credit agreement provides a revolving demand facility of up to $2,500,000 by way of loans or letters of credit. As
at June 30, 2020 no funds were drawn on this facility and IGPC does not anticipate drawing on this facility prior to its
termination in September 2020. The RBC Credit Agreement also provides $3,480,789 by way of letters of credit which
will expire in September 2020. These letters of credit are guaranteed by the Export Development Corporation in an
amount up to $2,760,904 as set out in a Confirmation of Coverage dated August 21, 2019 and expiring October 1,
2020. IGPC is currently in discussions with various financial institutions to replace the RBC Credit Agreement and
the underlying facilities set out therein.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Over the course of the 2019 fiscal year, IGPC funded its capital expansion and ongoing operations through a
combination of the Senior Credit Facilities described immediately above, 2019 Debentures, cash on hand, and
advances from its operating credit facilities. IGPC’s current sources of working capital, as at June 30, 2020, include
its cash on hand of approximately $3.9 million, its working capital balance of approximately $2.0 million and the
aggregate amount available for borrowing under its Senior Credit Facilities which is approximately $7 million. IGPC
anticipates that its future available capital resources will consist primarily of its remaining cash balances, cash
generated from operations, any funds raised under this Offering Statement, and amounts available for borrowing under
its Senior Credit Facilities.
Based on IGPC’s current and future available sources of funds, including cash generated from Plant operations, and
other existing and projected sources of liquidity, including the Senior Credit Facilities and any funds raised under this
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Offering Statement, management believes that there will be sufficient funds available to meet IGPC’s anticipated
capital and operating requirements through to the end of the current fiscal year.
Quantitative Quarter-End Liquidity Status
The following information is presented in order to indicate IGPC’s liquidity and capital resources. This selective
financial information should be read in conjunction with the 2019 Audited and Consolidated Financial Statements and
notes thereto (Schedule C), and the Results of Operations. See Section 3 – Results of Operations and Key Financial
Indicators.

Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Property and equipment, net
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities, excluding
deferred income taxes
Working capital
Working capital ratio (1)

June 30, 2020
Unaudited
$3,947,085
$22,363,606
$185,783,919
$20,411,029
$74,032,700
$1,952,577
1.10

September 30, 2019
Unaudited
$1,205,739
$15,478,257
$190,603,473
$16,423,180

Change
$2,741,346
$6,885,349
($4,819,554)
$3,987,849

$74,084,807
($944,923)
0.94

($52,107)
$2,897,500
0.16

(1) Working Capital ratio is a measure of liquidity, indicating IGPC’s ability to meet its current obligations. It is
calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities.
Changes to cash and cash equivalents are reflected in the first fiscal half of 2020 cash flow statement Schedule B –
Unaudited Financial Information. For the first two quarters, the negative cash flow is reflective of cash used to fund
operations, including the requirement for increased working capital from the expanded operations (i.e. increase in
accounts receivable and inventory).
The $6.9 million increase in current assets as at June 30, 2020 compared to September 30, 2019 is reflective of the
$2.7 million increase in cash and cash equivalents noted above, combined with an increase in accounts receivable of
$5.4 million due to the timing of receivables and increased inventory of $1.4 million, offset by a decrease in income
taxes recoverable of $2.7 million. The change to property, plant and equipment includes capital expenditures of
$960,000, offset by depreciation and amortization of $5.3 million.
The $4 million increase in current liabilities as at June 30, 2020 is largely due to the increase in accounts payable as a
result of the timing of such payables.
The $800,000 decrease in long term debt is reflective principal repayments of long-term debt offset by the issuance
of 2019 Debentures.
Payment of Dividends or Distributions
The Co-operative does not intend to redeem, declare or pay any dividends or distributions in respect of Class E
Preference Shares or Membership Shares unless the Co-operative determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay
all amounts that will be due and payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020 Debentures and that
IGPC is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Debt Financing.
Investors who require regular returns from their investment are advised that there can be no assurance that
dividends or other distributions will be paid out by the Co-operative on a regular basis.
Recent Developments
IGPC is closely monitoring the global outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and taking steps to mitigate the
potential risks posed by its spread. IGPC has implemented measures to protect all employees and enhance facility
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hygiene, imposed travel limitations on all employees, and directed them to work remotely whenever possible.
Additional protocols have been implemented for required work within the Plant and to protect suppliers, buyers, and
other persons who must come onto the Plant site. In addition, IGPC has assessed and updated its existing business
continuity plans in the context of this pandemic and made provisions to continue to operate in the event that COVID19 affects IGPC staff. IGPC has confirmed that all of its suppliers currently have procedures in place to minimise
disruption to its supply chain, although a significant exacerbation of the COVID-19 pandemic across North America,
or a possible “second wave” of COVID-19, could put additional unforeseen pressures on the entire supply chain. At
this time, no material risks to IGPC’s supply chain have been identified and there has been no significant disruption
of its ability to obtain all necessary inputs in a timely fashion. This is a rapidly evolving situation, and IGPC will
continue to monitor developments affecting its workforce, suppliers, and buyers, and take additional precautions as
warranted.
On account of the tremendous uncertainty facing IGPC as the COVID-19 pandemic swept across North America, and
the unknown consequences of that pandemic on IGPC’s financial results, the Co-operative suspended the sale and
trading of all its securities on March 26, 2020 pending the filing of this Offering Statement. IGPC filed a Statement
of Material Change to this effect with the Ontario Financial Services Regulatory Authority on April 15, 2020.
Due to the sharp decline in gasoline consumption, and therefore ethanol demand, as a result of the severe restrictions
placed on businesses and individuals by governments across North America as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
IGPC’s major ethanol customers reduced their purchases of ethanol. As demand for ethanol depends directly on the
amount of gasoline that is being blended, ethanol prices have dropped more or less in tandem with gasoline prices. In
addition, ethanol prices are affected by the price differential between RBOB (reformulated gasoline blend-stock for
oxygen blending) futures and ethanol.
Based on U.S. consumption data it is estimated that there was a decline of nearly 50% in gasoline demand between
March 2020 and April 2020. With the gradual lifting of restrictions on travel and business activities, by June 2020
gasoline consumption in the U.S. had returned to nearly 85% of historic June levels. Ontario gasoline demand is
estimated to have declined by approximately the same percentage as U.S. demand, however current estimates of
gasoline consumption in Ontario are not available.
In response to a reduction in ethanol demand from its customers, and the resultant sharp drop in ethanol prices and
crush margins, IGPC operated its plant at 50% capacity in April 2020 and at 75% capacity in May 2020. Across North
America, ethanol blending declined by nearly 50% from mid-March to mid-April resulting in a substantial curtailment
of ethanol production throughout the U.S. and Canada. As of June 1, 2020, IGPC resumed full production of ethanol
as North American demand for transportation fuel increased from the lows experienced in mid-April, ethanol prices
trended upwards, and crush margins recovered to a point where positive gross margins justified a return to full capacity
production.
Investors are advised that there can be no assurances that this upward trend in ethanol demand, prices, and
crush margins will continue. Investors are specifically warned that a significant surge in COVID-19 cases, or a
subsequent “second wave” of COVID-19 in the fall or winter of 2020 that has been mentioned by various
governments and medical sources as a possibility, could have an adverse material impact on the ethanol
industry in general and specifically on IGPC’s financial results.
IGPC may increase its borrowings under the FCC operating line as a precautionary measure in order to increase its
cash position and preserve financial flexibility in light of the current uncertainty and extreme volatility in global oil,
gasoline, and other commodity and financial markets resulting from the COVID-19 outbreak and recent OPEC actions.
In accordance with the terms of the FCC operating lime, the proceeds from the borrowings may be used for working
capital, general corporate or other purposes permitted by the FCC Agreement.
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SECTION 5 - RISK FACTORS
The Co-operative, IGPC, and its investors are subject to a number of risks common to manufacturing
businesses in general and are also subject to the significant risks involved in the operation of the Plant and
ethanol processing facilities specifically. The failure to prevent or mitigate any of the following circumstances
could jeopardize investors’ investment in the Co-operative and/or financial returns.
Speculative Investment
The securities being offered under this Offering Statement are highly speculative and involve a high degree of
risk. Investors may lose their entire investment. Purchases of these securities should be considered long-term
investments which will not be suitable for investors who may need to sell their securities quickly in order to
raise money. Investors who require regular, guaranteed returns from their investments should not purchase
the securities offered herein.
Operating Losses and Negative Cash Flow
As a result of a significant decline in the market price of ethanol, which was not offset by a corresponding drop
in corn prices, along with a widespread outbreak of vomitoxin which adversely affected the prices of DDGS
and other Co-Products, in fiscal 2019 IGPC incurred a net pre-tax loss of approximately $16.0 million and had
negative cash flow of $3.5 million. Somewhat improved crush margins, along with the absence of any significant
vomitoxin, enabled IGPC to post a net pre-tax profit of approximately $200,000 and positive cash flow of just over
$5 million during the first two quarters of fiscal 2020. Due to the dramatic drop in demand for ethanol and other
transportation fuels in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, IGPC sustained a yearto-date pre-tax loss as at the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of $1,453,317 and its year-to-date positive cash
flow declined to $2,741,346. IGPC anticipates utilising its remaining cash on hand, cash, if any, generated from
its operations, borrowing availability under its lines of credit, and proceeds from future financing activities,
including proceeds from this Offering Statement, if any, to fund all of the cash requirements of its business. A
return to the significant losses and negative operating cash experience in fiscal 2018 and fiscal 2019, in the
absence of the Government operating grants which IGPC had previously relied upon to offset market losses,
could have a significant adverse impact on the Plant’s operations and viability.

Market Risk
The long-term viability and cash flows of IGPC depend upon its ability to restore and maintain profitable markets for
the ethanol and Co-Products produced by the Plant. Ethanol markets across North America are currently
depressed compared to ten year averages and most ethanol plants, including the Plant, are currently recovering
from historically low crush margins and net pre-tax losses over the past two years. The current COVID-19
pandemic (see the COVID-19 Pandemic Risk Factor below) has resulted in a sharp drop in oil, gasoline, and
ethanol prices arising from the significant decline in gasoline consumption as many business activities ceased
and consumers significantly limited their driving. In addition to the continuing global economic uncertainty related
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the ability to restore and maintain such profitable markets depends upon a wide range of
economic factors including IGPC’s ability to procure corn at competitive prices, the relative price of petroleum and
other competing fuels, export and import demand for ethanol and, demand for CO2, the price of feed inputs competing
with DDGS, IGPC’s costs of production, consumer demand for ethanol and livestock producer demand for DDGS,
the impact of corn quality on the distillers grains produced by the Plant, Government support for ethanol, maintaining
relations and agreements with purchasers of Co-Products, including the AL Agreement, and competition from other
ethanol manufacturers. Many of these factors are beyond the control of IGPC. Export demand for ethanol is dependent
on a favorable arbitrage which is driven by local price, foreign exchange, tariffs and other non-tariff trade barriers,
and sea freight rates. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
The rapid increase in North American ethanol production, combined with slower than anticipated growth in
gasoline consumption, has put significant downward pressure on ethanol prices in both Canada and the United
States. Between the time construction of IGPC’s original plant commenced in 2007, and the end of 2019, U.S.
ethanol production increased from approximately 6.5 billion gallons to over 16 billion gallons. During this same
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period, Canadian ethanol production grew to 2.0 billion litres. There is currently substantial additional
unutilized ethanol production capacity in North America, largely due to plants producing at below full capacity.
If ethanol margins were to improve substantially, either as a result of improved ethanol and Co-Product prices
arising from increased domestic or export demand, lower corn prices and other input costs, or a combination
of factors, it is reasonable to expect that plants would increase their ethanol production, which could once again
result in downward pressure on prices.
As the North American economy slowly resumes somewhat normal operations as the restrictions imposed by
all levels of government on business and citizen activities due to the COVID-19 pandemic are gradually lifted,
it is anticipated that demand for transportation fuels will continue to increase. However, the recessionary
economic effects and high rates of unemployment caused by the extended shut-down of many sectors of the
economy can be expected to have a significant impact on business and consumer activity at least through the
end of 2020 and perhaps significantly beyond then. Continuing restrictions on international and interprovincial
travel, and a very slow and halting resumption of the tourism, hospitality, and entertainment sectors, among
others, can be expected significantly to temper the typical summer surge in driving and fuel consumption. The
lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the negative impact on consumer confidence, would suggest
that the level of demand for ethanol will not fully return to pre-pandemic levels at least until 2021.
In the medium to long term, it is likely that the restoration of some measure of ethanol price stability and
sustained profitability will require either a permanent reduction in North American ethanol production, an
increase in domestic demand driven by increased gasoline demand, and/or increased demand for and
availability of E15 or E85 ethanol blends, or increased global exports of North American ethanol, or a
combination of the foregoing.
Export demand for ethanol is dependent on a favorable arbitrage which is driven by local price, foreign
exchange, tariffs and other non-tariff trade barriers, and sea freight rates. IGPC depends upon a single thirdparty marketer to market its principal product, ethanol. The termination of the contracted services or the
inability of this third-party marketer to provide its services could have a significant adverse effect on the ability
of IGPC to market its main product, and could materially and adversely affect IGPC’s cash flow. See Section
5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Commodity Price Risk
The principal input into the Plant is corn. The cost of corn has historically varied independently of the price
of ethanol, which is IGPC’s principal product.
Over the past several years, the spread between ethanol and corn prices has fluctuated significantly.
Fluctuations are likely to continue to occur as there is no firmly established linkage between corn and ethanol
prices. A sustained narrow spread, whether as a result of continued high or increasing corn prices or continued
low or decreasing ethanol prices, would adversely and potentially significantly affect IGPC’s profitability, cash
flow, and financial stability. Over the past two fiscal years, the combined revenues from sales of ethanol,
distillers grains and other Co-Products have dropped below the marginal cost of production resulting in
negative gross profits.
During the first three quarters of fiscal 2020, IGPC generally enjoyed positive monthly gross profits, with the
exception of March 2020 and April 2020 when the impact of COVID-19 significantly constricted crush margins
due to the sharp decrease in the demand for gasoline and, by extension, ethanol, resulting in a sharp decline in
ethanol prices. As business and social activity slowly began to resume in May 2020, and demand for ethanol
increased, IGPC once again enjoyed positive monthly gross profits. For the first three fiscal quarters ended
June 30, 2020, IGPC experienced a net after-tax loss of $1,066,557.Corn and ethanol are subject to significant
fluctuations in price based on a variety of factors beyond the control of IGPC. The cash flows and profitability
of IGPC will likely vary significantly from year to year based upon these fluctuating commodity prices. Any
significant increase in the cost of corn, which represents by far the greatest operating expense of IGPC, could
have a material adverse effect on IGPC’s cash flow, as could any decrease in the price of ethanol. Fluctuating
natural gas prices could also adversely affect cash flow and profitability. Continued growth in the production
of the ethanol sector could place significant upward pressure on North American corn prices, while decreases
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in the demand for ethanol due either to domestic factors or global trade barriers could further depress ethanol
prices. IGPC has implemented a comprehensive risk management program through which it seeks to mitigate
the risks of short-term fluctuations in commodity prices. Notwithstanding IGPC’s risk management program,
there can be no assurance that IGPC will be able to entirely mitigate its exposure to fluctuating commodity
prices, particularly in light of the current volatility in the global economy and depressed North American
ethanol prices. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Risk Management and Hedging Risks
IGPC’s margins are highly dependent on commodity prices, particularly for ethanol, corn, distillers grains, and natural
gas. Since market price fluctuations among these commodities are not always correlated, ethanol production may be
unprofitable at times. From time to time IGPC employs a variety of risk management tools and hedging strategies to
seek to mitigate risk exposure and obtain favorable margins, when available.
IGPC uses forward contracts to sell a portion of its ethanol and buy a corresponding amount of corn to partially offset
commodity price volatility. Additionally, IGPC will forward purchase natural gas to minimize price volatility. The
financial impact of these activities depends on the price of the commodities involved and IGPC’s ability to physically
receive or deliver those commodities.
Hedging arrangements expose IGPC to risk of financial loss in the event that a counterparty defaults on its contract
Hedging losses may be offset by a decreased cash price for corn and an increased cash price for ethanol. IGPC varies
the amount of hedging or other risk mitigation strategies it employs and, in certain situations, does not engage in any
hedging activities. IGPC generally limits its hedging activity to no more than 50% of its purchases and sales over a
period of three months in order to limit its exposure to margin calls.
No assurance can be provided that the risk management strategies employed by IGPC will be successful in obtaining
positive margins, especially in light of the current exceptionally high volatility in fuel markets. The use of derivative
financial instruments frequently involves cash deposits with brokers, or margin calls. Sudden changes in commodity
prices may require additional cash deposits immediately to cover margin calls. Although IGPC limits its hedging
activity and sets aside cash reserves and room in its operating line of credit to cover possible margin calls, there can
be no assurance that these reserves and operating lines will be sufficient to maintain adequate liquidity to cover all
margin calls in the future.

Operational Risk
IGPC’s entire production output is dependent entirely on one production facility (the New Plant). Any
operational disruption could result in a reduction in sales volumes and a corresponding substantial financial
loss. IGPC’s operations would be subject to significant interruption if the New Plant were to experience, among
other operational hazards, a significant accident, a natural disaster or a significant labour disruption.
Senior Debt Financing Requirements
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that, recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought
from, the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or 2020
Debentures issued pursuant to this Offering Statement. The Senior Credit Facilities are interconditional with
each other in that each include a number of positive and negative covenants with which IGPC must comply
while each are outstanding. The Senior Lenders require IGPC to comply with such positive and negative
covenants. Failure to comply with such covenants could result in a default by IGPC and the cancellation or
alteration of the loan facilities provided by such Senior Lenders. See Section 4 Business Plan – Senior Credit
Facilities.
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Priority of Lenders
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that, recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought
from, the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or
debentures issued pursuant to this Offering Statement. The Senior Lenders have priority with respect to the
payment of interest, principal, and fees and are secured by the assets of IGPC. Under the Senior Credit
Facilities, there are restrictions and limitations upon the ability of IGPC to distribute profits to its sole
shareholder, the Co-operative, which also restricts the Co-operative’s ability to complete cash distributions on
the securities offered under this Offering Statement. Given the covenants to which IGPC is subject under the
Senior Credit Facilities, there can be no assurance that cash on hand or cash generated from operations will be
sufficient and/or that IGPC will be able to fund sufficient cash to the Co-operative to enable it to make interest
payments on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures or 2020 Debentures as they come due, redeem any of these
debentures at maturity, make any dividend payments or repayments of capital on the Class E Preference
Shares, or redeem any of the Membership Shares or Class E Preference Shares upon request. To date, IGPC
has made all scheduled interest payments on the 2017 Debentures and the 2019 Debentures as they have come
due, but there can be no assurances that payment of scheduled interest payments will continue during the
respective term of the 2017 Debentures and the the 2019 Debentures. See Section 4 – Business Plan – Senior
Credit Facilities and see Section 6 - Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Profitability and Solvency
There can be no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to make any interest, sinking fund, principal
payments, dividend payments or other distributions, or satisfy the obligations in respect of any of the securities
offered under this Offering Statement or in respect of the Senior Credit Facilities. There is no certainty that
IGPC will be able to restore positive cash flows, resume profitability, or be able to advance funds to the Cooperative in order for the Co-operative to make interest payments on the 2020 Debentures as they come due,
redeem the 2020 Debentures at maturity, or complete cash dividends or distributions on the Class E Preference
Shares or Membership Shares. There can be no assurance that cash on hand or cash generated from operations
will be sufficient for IGPC and/or that IGPC will be able to fund cash to the Co-operative. The likelihood that
purchasers of 2020Debentures will receive payments owing to them under the terms of the 2020 Debentures will
depend on the financial health of the Co-operative and IGPC and their creditworthiness. See Section 6 - Use of
Proceeds of the Offering.
Retention and Acquisition of Skilled Personnel
The success of the Co-operative is dependent upon the ability, expertise, judgment, discretion and good faith
of its senior management (each, a “Key Person” and collectively, the “Key Personnel”). The Co-operative’s
future success depends on its continuing ability to attract, develop, motivate and retain highly qualified and
skilled employees. Qualified individuals are in high demand and the Co-operative may incur significant costs
to attract and retain them. The loss of the services of a Key Person or an inability to attract other suitably
qualified persons when needed, could have a material adverse effect on the Co-operative’s ability to execute on
its business plan and strategy and the Co-operative may be unable to find adequate replacements on a timely
basis or at all. While employment agreements are customarily used as a primary method of retaining the
services of Key Personnel, these agreements cannot assure the continued service of such employees.
As part of its response to the COVID-19 pandemic, IGPC has enhanced sanitation procedures, established
independent teams within its facility to minimize the risk of the spread of COVID-19 across different areas of
its plant, enabled staff to have additional paid sick days in the event they experience COVID-19 symptoms, and
has required staff to work from home whenever feasible. In addition, it has taken steps to isolate staff on
different shifts to mitigate the risks of infection among members of multiple shifts. In spite of these
precautionary measures, if an outbreak of COVID-19 occurs among Plant staff, such outbreak could cause a
disruption to operations.
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Agreements
IGPC has entered into various agreements essential to the operation of the Plant, including agreements for the
licensing of the Plant technology, the sale, marketing and/or distribution of ethanol, as well as an agreement
for the procurement of corn. Some of these agreements, including the AL Agreement, involve ancillary
agreements such as lease agreements, and service agreements. Any default by either IGPC or any of the
counterparties to any of these agreements could have an adverse impact on IGPC cash flows.
COVID-19 Pandemic
An outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus designated as COVID-19 was first detected in China
in December 2019 and has subsequently spread internationally, including to the United States and Canada. The
transmission of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in international, national and local border
closings and other significant travel restrictions and disruptions, significant disruptions to business operations, supply
chains and customer activity, closures of many businesses serving the public, event cancellations and restrictions,
service cancellations, reductions and other changes, significant challenges in healthcare service preparation and
delivery, and quarantines, as well as significant widespread anxiety and uncertainty that has negatively affected the
economic environment. These impacts also have caused extreme volatility and declines in global financial and
commodity markets which have caused losses for many investors.
Most significantly for IGPC, there has been a sharp drop in oil prices in response to the significant decline in gasoline
consumption. The drop in oil prices was further exacerbated by the failure of Russia and Saudi Arabia to agree on a
framework for the orderly marketing of excess oil production. This sharp drop in oil prices has impacted ethanol prices
resulting in a significant decline in IGPC’s crush margin in March 2020 and April 2020. As North American gasoline
demand dropped by almost 50% over the span of a few weeks in March 2020 and April 2020, many U.S. and Canadian
ethanol plants either temporarily ceased operations or significantly curtailed ethanol production. IGPC’s gross margins
and EBITDA turned negative in March 2020 and April 2020 causing IGPC to reduce its ethanol production to 50%
of capacity in April 2020. IGPC operated at 75% of capacity in May 2020 and, as gross margins once again became
positive, IGPC resumed full production in June 2020. Given the considerable uncertainty surrounding the continuing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, especially if COVID-19 cases continue to rise in the U.S., the substantial
economic downturn engendered by the pandemic, and concerns over a potential “second wave” of COVID-19 in the
fall or winter of 2020, no assurance can be provided that the recent restoration of positive gross margins will
continue. Health crises caused by viral or bacterial outbreaks, such as the COVID-19 outbreak, may exacerbate other
pre-existing political, social, economic, market and financial risks. The impact of this outbreak, and other epidemics
and pandemics that may arise in the future, may have a significant adverse impact on IGPC’s operating results.
Projections and Forward-Looking Information
Certain statements contained in this Offering Statement constitute forward-looking statements, including
FOFI. These statements relate to future events or IGPC’s future performance. These statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance, achievements
or events to differ materially from those anticipated, discussed or implied in such forward-looking statements.
No assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking statements
included in this Offering Statement should not be unduly relied upon.
Market for Securities
There is no established market for the 2020 Debentures, Membership Shares, or Class E Preference Shares and
no market is expected to develop. This is an illiquid security. It is unsuitable for any purchaser who may wish to sell
the security. Although the Co-operative has entered into an agreement with Caldwell Securities Ltd. which
enables shareholders to trade their Class E Preference Shares, there can be no assurance that a sufficiently
liquid market will develop to enable shareholders to sell their Class E Preference shares in a timely or prompt
manner if they need to, regardless of the need, or if they want to. Additionally, no such trading mechanism exists
for the 2020 Debentures or Membership Shares. No Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares or 2020
Debentures of the Co-operative may be transferred without the express consent of the Board of Directors. See
Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Membership Requirements.
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Redemption of Shares and 2020 Debentures
There is no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to redeem Membership Shares upon the withdrawal
of a member, nor redeem any Class E Preference Shares, nor make any interest and/or principal payments in
respect of 2020 Debentures. The ability of the Co-operative to make any cash payments requires compliance
with the terms of the Senior Debt Financing and is also likely dependent upon the Co-operative retaining cash
and/or generating sufficient capital through cash flow generated from the operations of IGPC, or attracting
sufficient additional capital investment to redeem such securities. In the event that the Co-operative is unable to
redeem the securities, holders of such securities might not receive payments of principal and/or interest. See Section
8 – Description of Securities Offered.
Competition
The business activities in which IGPC is involved are extremely competitive. Major competitors of IGPC
include highly efficient mid-Western U.S. ethanol plants with substantially greater production and financial
resources than IGPC, as well as other ethanol plants in Ontario and Quebec. The superior resources of these
major competitors enable them to compete far more aggressively on price than IGPC and allow them to sustain
negative margins for extended periods. The principal competitive factors in the markets for IGPC’s primary
products, ethanol and DDGS, are quality and consistency, ability to deliver contracted volumes on a timely
basis, and price. Failure or inability to compete on the basis of these factors could have a material adverse effect
on the competitive position of IGPC and its prospects for growth. See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow.
Cash Flow
THE ONGOING PRINCIPAL USE OF IGPC’S OPERATING CASH FLOW WILL BE TO SATISFY THE
REPAYMENT OBLIGATIONS OF THE SENIOR DEBT FINANCING FACILITIES. THERE CAN BE NO
ASSURANCE THAT IGPC WILL RESTORE POSITIVE CASH FLOWS OR ACHIEVE THE CASH
FLOWS REQUIRED FOR IGPC TO SATISFY SUCH PRINCIPAL USES. See Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of
the Offering and See Section 5 Risk Factors - Cash Flow, Market Risk, Commodity Price Risk, Agreements,
Projections and Forward-Looking Information and Competition.
SECTION 6 - USE OF PROCEEDS OF THE OFFERING
There is no minimum amount to be raised under this Offering Statement. Substantially all of the proceeds raised under
this Offering Statement, up to the maximum offering amount of $15,020,000, will be advanced by the Co-operative
to IGPC. The principal use of these proceeds will be to support IGPC’s debt servicing and debt repayment obligations
under its Senior Credit Facilities, to facilitate IGPC’s continued compliance with the covenants under these Senior
Credit Facilities, and to fund working capital, redeem maturing debentures, and/or reduce term debt under its Senior
Credit Facilities. Subject to the foregoing, all funds raised from this Offering will be used by the Co-operative for
working capital purposes for the Co-operative and/or IGPC at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities provided that, recourse shall not be had to, nor satisfaction sought from,
the members of the Co-operative, shareholders of the Co-operative and parties holding shares or debentures issued
pursuant to this Offering Statement. As security for its obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities, IGPC has granted
a first priority mortgage over its land and property located at 89 Progress Drive, Aylmer, Ontario, a general security
agreement over all of the personal property assets of IGPC and an assignment of insurance to be shared pari passu
among the Senior Lenders.
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SECTION 7 - DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Co-operative is incorporated as a co-operative with share capital in accordance with the Act. In accordance with
its articles of incorporation, its authorized capital is one hundred and ten million dollars ($110,000,000), divided as
follows:
Membership Shares: $10,000,000 comprised of 100,000 shares with a par value of $100 per share.
Class E Preference Shares: $100,000,000 consisting of 20,000,000 shares with a par value of $5.00 per share.
Notwithstanding that the Co-operative has in the past and may in the future declare and pay cash dividends and/or
distributions in accordance with the applicable policy mentioned elsewhere in this Offering Statement, the par value
of the Membership Shares and the Class E Preference Shares remain unchanged at $100 per share and $5.00 per share,
respectively.
Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares are described in detail in Section 8- Description of Securities
Offered.
The Co-operative’s capital structure, as at September 30, 2019 based on audited consolidated financial statements, is
as follows:

September 30, 2019
Debt
Repayable Government Assistance
-FedDev Loan
-Agri-Innovation Loan Program
-Ontario Ethanol Growth Fund Capital Grant
-Term Debt
-Bank Debt
- Subordinated Debentures
Total
Issued/Subscribed Shares
Membership Shares
Class E Preference Shares
Shareholders’ Equity
Issued Shares
Contributed Surplus
Retained Earnings
Total

Unaudited
$4,020,937
$2,169,666
$764,639
$60,298,813
$0
$13,078,740
$80,332,795

3,220
10,930,262
$11,686,016
$296,217
$90,218,065
$102,200,298
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SECTION 8 - DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OFFERED
This Offering Statement constitutes an offering of up to 200 Membership Shares at price of $100 per Membership
Share, up to 1,000,000 Class E Preference Shares at a price of $5.00 per Class E Preference Share and up to
$15,000,000 principal amount 2020 Debentures of the Co-operative for an aggregate maximum amount of up to
$15,020,000.
The following is a summary of the offering terms and rights attaching to the Membership Shares, Class E Preference
Shares, and 2020 Debentures being offered under this Offering Statement:
Description of the Offering

Offering, for an aggregate maximum amount of up to $15,020,000, by the Cooperative of up to:
(a) $20,000 of Membership Shares;
(b) $5,000,000 of Class E Preference Shares; and
(c) $15,000,000 principal amount of 2020 Debentures

Restrictions on Purchase

The Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares offered under this
Offering will only be sold to members and prospective members of the Cooperative. All prospective purchasers of Membership Shares must: (a) currently
hold or purchase a minimum of 5,000 Class E Preference Shares; and (b) subject
to the approval of the Board of Directors, be admitted into membership of the
Co-operative. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative –
Membership Requirements.
Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or to
purchase such number of Class E Preference Shares as to cause such
shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E Preference Shares to equal or exceed
5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Cooperative must: (a) also purchase a minimum of five Membership Shares; and
(b) subject to the approval of the Board of Directors be admitted into
membership in the Co-operative.
All prospective purchasers of 2020 Debentures must own Membership Shares
or Class E Preference Shares in connection with this Offering Statement or be
approved by the Board of Directors. The approval of a prospective purchaser of
2020 Debentures and the principal amount subject to the approval of the Board
of Directors by the Board of Directors shall be based on factors including, but
not limited to, the same criteria as are applied when considering a new member
(as described in Section 3 – Membership Requirements) to the Co-operative.
The Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares and 2020 Debentures may
not be transferred without the express prior written approval of the Board of
Directors – See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative Membership Requirements.

Subscription Price

Membership Shares:

$100 per share.

Class E Preference Shares:

$5.00 per share.

2020 Debentures:

$1,000 principal amount per debenture.
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Minimum Subscription

Membership Shares:
Class E Preference Shares:
2020 Debentures:

Five shares ($500).
5,000 shares ($25,000).
$2,000 principal amount.

The minimum individual purchase for Class E Preference Shares does not apply
to Members who currently hold Class E Preference Shares.
Maximum Subscription

Membership Shares:
Class E Preference Shares:

2020 Debentures:

Five shares ($500).
100,000 shares ($500,000 or current price on
Caldwell Securities trading platform ).
$2,000,000 principal amount.

Description of Membership Shares
Par Value

$100

Voting Rights

Holders of Membership Shares are entitled to attend and vote at all meetings of
members of the Co-operative.

Dividends and Distributions

Variable non-cumulative dividends, payable at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, to the maximum amount permitted under the Act. Regulations under
the Act set the maximum annual dividend at two per cent above the prime rate
of a bank, trust company, or credit union named in the Co-operative’s By-Laws.
No sinking fund has been established for the redemption of Membership Shares.
The Co-operative does not intend to redeem, declare or pay any
distributions in respect of Class E Preference Shares unless the Cooperative determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts
due and payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020
Debentures and that IGPC is in compliance with all covenants under the
Senior Debt Financing.

Patronage Dividends

Holders of five or more Membership Shares are entitled to patronage dividends,
if any, based upon their volume of business with the Co-operative, payable at
the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Rank

Membership Shares rank junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and
2020 Debentures with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution
of assets upon dissolution.
Membership Shares rank junior to the Class E Preference Shares with respect to
the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon dissolution.

Transfer

Transfer of Membership Shares is restricted and is subject to the consent of the
Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative – Membership Requirements.

55

Any shareholder selling all or a portion of his or her Class E Preference Shares,
such that after the sale such shareholder holds less than 5,000 Class E Preference
Shares, will be required to have his or her Membership Shares redeemed by the
Co-operative for their par value.
Description of Class E Preference
Shares
Issue

The Class E Preference Shares offered under this Offering may be issued only
to current members of the Co-operative and other community members who
purchase Membership Shares and are admitted into membership in the Cooperative.
Anyone wishing to purchase 5,000 or more Class E Preference Shares, or to
purchase such number of Class E Preference Shares as to cause such
shareholder’s aggregate holding of Class E Preference Shares to equal or exceed
5,000 Class E Preference Shares, who is not already a member of the Cooperative must: (a) also purchase a minimum of five Membership Shares; and
(b) subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, be admitted into
membership in the Co-operative.

Par Value

$5.00

Voting Rights

Under the Act, the holders of Class E Preference Shares have a right to vote at
all meetings of Class E Preference Shareholders called for the purpose of
amending any of the terms of the said class of shares, and at such meetings are
entitled to cast one vote for each such share held. In addition, Class E Preference
Shareholders are entitled to receive notice of and attend all meetings of
members. Unless they are also members of the Co-operative, the holders of
Class E Preference Shares do not have a right to vote at meetings of members
of the Co-operative.

Issue Price

Subject to the Act, the issue price of the Class E Preference Shares shall be
established from time to time by the Board of Directors. In establishing the issue
price of the Class E Preference Shares, the Board of Directors may consider a
number of factors including, but not limited to, the requirement for and
availability of funds, the history of dividend payments, if any, and the recent
weighted average trading price of the Class E Preference Shares as established
through the share transfer mechanism developed by the Co-operative. Under the
Act, Class E Preference Shares cannot be issued below par value. See Section 3
– Description of the Business of the Co-operative.

Dividends

Variable non-cumulative dividends, payable at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.
No sinking fund has been established for the redemption of Class E Preference
Shares.
The Co-operative does not intend to redeem, declare or pay any
distributions in respect of Class E Preference Shares unless the Cooperative determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts
due and payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and 2020
Debentures, and that IGPC is in compliance with all covenants under the
Senior Debt Financing.
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Rank

Class E Preference Shares rank junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures
and 2020 Debentures with respect to the payment of dividends and the
distribution of assets upon dissolution.
Class E Preference Shares rank in priority to Membership Shares in respect of
dividends, patronage returns and distributions of assets upon dissolution.

Redemption

The Class E Preference Shares are redeemable at any time at the discretion of
the Board of Directors in accordance with the Co-operative’s constating
documents and the Act.
The Co-operative is not under any obligation to redeem Class E Preference
Shares held by a member of the Co-operative upon such member’s withdrawal
from membership of the Co-operative.

Transfer

Transfer of Class E Preference Shares is restricted and is subject to the consent
of the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Cooperative – Membership Requirements.
Any shareholder selling all or a portion of his or her Class E Preference Shares,
such that after the sale such shareholder holds less than 5,000 Class E Preference
Shares, will be required to have his or her Membership Shares redeemed by the
Co-operative for their par value.

Dissolution

In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of the Co-operative, after the
payment of all debts and liabilities of the Co-operative, the holders of Class E
Preference Shares, ranking junior to the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and
2020 Debentures, shall be entitled to receive, before any distribution of any part
of the assets of the Co-operative among the holders of Membership Shares, the
amount of $5.00 for each Class E Preference Share, plus an amount equal to any
premium thereon and any declared but unpaid dividends.

Premium upon Redemption

As is required by the Co-operative’s Articles of Incorporation, upon the
redemption of Class E Preference Shares, the Co-operative shall pay a premium
equivalent to a pro rata share of the retained earnings of the Co-operative, plus
a pro rata share of any premium paid on the issue of Class E Preference Shares,
but not exceeding the maximum premium permitted under the Act. Where the
Co-operative is otherwise required to redeem such shares, the payment of such
premium may, if the Board of Directors determines, by resolution, that it is
necessary for the long-term financial well-being of the Co-operative, be reduced
by an amount equivalent to a pro rata share of the greater of: (a) three times any
aggregate net loss of the Co-operative over the immediately preceding three
fiscal years; or (b) one half of the total outstanding long-term debt of the Cooperative as of the date of redemption.
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Eligibility of Class E Preference The Board of Directors engaged the Co-operative’s external legal counsel, WD,
Shares for Registered Plans
to provide its opinion as to whether the currently issued and outstanding Class
E Preference Shares qualify as a “qualified investment” under Regulation
4900(6) of the ITA for Registered Plans. The WD Opinion states that, as of
August 19, 2020 and based upon and subject to: (i) the assumptions and
limitations set forth in the WD Opinion; and (ii) the statement of facts regarding
the Co-operative and the Class E Preference Shares contained in the Officer’s
Certificate being true and correct, the Class E Preference Shares are “qualified
investments” for a trust governed by a Registered Plan pursuant to Regulation
4900(6) of the ITA.
The full text of the WD Opinion and the Officer’s Certificate set out the
assumptions made, factual circumstances, matters considered and
limitations on the review undertaken by WD to determine whether the
Class E Preference Shares are “qualified investments” for a trust governed
by a Registered Plan pursuant to Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA as of the
date of the WD Opinion, including, among other things, that (i) WD has
assumed, and not verified, the accuracy of the statement of facts contained
in the Officer’s Certificate; (ii) there has been no analysis conducted as to
whether the Class E Preference Shares would be considered a “prohibited
investment” under subsection 207.01(1) of the ITA for a Registered Plan;
and (iii) any change in the factual circumstances surrounding the Cooperative, particularly those described in the Officer’s Certificate, may
result in the Class E Preference Shares ceasing to be a “qualified
investment” under Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA at any time after the date
of the WD Opinion.
The full text of the WD Opinion (including the Officer’s Certificate
attached thereto) is attached as Schedule E to this Offering Statement. The
foregoing summary of the WD Opinion is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the full text of the WD Opinion which Members, Class E
Preference Shareholders and potential investors are urged to read in its
entirety.
The WD Opinion was provided to the Board of Directors solely to assist the
Board of Directors in determining the eligibility of the Class E Preference
Shares as “qualified investments” for a trust governed by a Registered Plan
and is only valid as of the date of the WD Opinion. The WD Opinion may
not be relied upon by any Members, Class E Preference Shareholders,
potential investors or anyone other than the Co-operative and is solely for
the benefit of the Co-operative. WD shall not be held responsible nor shall
it be liable for any decision made or action taken in reliance on the
information contained in the WD Opinion by any Member, Class E
Preference Shareholder, potential investor or any person or entity other
than the Co-operative.
Class E Preference Shareholders are encouraged to consult their
investment advisors prior to holding Class E Preference Shares in any
Registered Plans and to obtain the advice of such advisors on the income
taxes consequences that may apply to them regarding the holding Class E
Preference Shares in Registered Plans.
Based upon review of the WD Opinion, and subject to all assumptions and
limitations contained therein, the Board of Directors has determined that, for the
purposes of the ITA, the Class E Preference Shares are “qualified investments”
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under the ITA for a trust governed by any of the Registered Plans as of the date
of the WD Opinion.

Description of 2020 Debentures

Maximum
Amount

Aggregate

Prospective purchasers of 2020 Debentures under this Offering Statement must
own Membership Shares and/or Class E Preference Shares, or be approved by
the Board of Directors. The 2020 Debentures may be issued to both members of
the Co-operative and other investors approved by the Board of Directors. The
approval of a purchaser of 2020 Debentures and the principal amount subject to
the approval of the Board of Directors by the Board of Directors shall be based
on factors including, but not limited to, the same criteria as is applied when
considering a new member (as described in See Section 3 Description of the
Business of the Co-operative – Membership Requirements) to the Cooperative.
Principal Aggregate principal amount of $15,000,000.

Term

2020 Debentures will be issued for a term expiring on July 31, 2023, regardless
of the date of issuance of any 2020 Debentures.

Transfer

Transfer of the 2020 Debentures is restricted and is subject to the consent of the
Board of Directors – please see Section 3 Description of the Business of the
Co-operative – Membership Requirements.

Interest Rate

2020 Debentures will bear interest from the applicable date of issue at a rate
equivalent to 7.0% per annum.
Interest on the 2020 Debentures will be paid before any cash distribution is made
on any Class E Preference Shares or Membership Shares.
Interest on the 2020 Debentures shall be payable quarterly in arrears on March
31st, June 30th, September 30th, and December 31st in each year, with interest
pro-rated from the applicable date of issuance of the 2020 Debentures. It is
anticipated that closings of the issuance of 2020 Debentures shall be held
monthly on or about the last business day of each month, provided that at the
option of the Co-operative, closings may be made on a less frequent basis on or
about the last business day of any particular month. The Co-operative’s ability
to make interest payments on the 2020 Debentures as they come due will depend
on IGPC generating sufficient cash flow for this purpose and its continued
compliance with the covenants of its Senior Debt Facilities.
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Security

The 2020 Debentures are unsecured and rank equally with the 2017 Debentures,
2019 Debentures, and ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed by law. The
funds raised under this Offering Statement may be advanced, in whole or in part,
to IGPC as debt and/or equity as determined to be appropriate by the Board of
Directors.
See Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering

Ranking

The 2020 Debentures will rank senior to all Class E Preference Shares and
Membership Shares with respect to cash distributions and the distribution of
assets upon dissolution of the Co-operative. The 2020 Debentures are
subordinated in right of payment to all existing and future secured indebtedness
of the Co-operative. In addition, proceeds from the issuance of 2020 Debentures
that are advanced to IGPC will be subordinated and rank junior to all Senior
Credit Facilities and repayment of such amounts will be subject to compliance
by IGPC with the terms of the Senior Credit Facilities. Under the Senior Credit
Facilities, there are restrictions and limitations upon the ability of IGPC to
distribute profits to its sole shareholder, the Co-operative, which also restricts
the Co-operative’s ability to complete cash distributions on the securities of the
Co-operative, including the 2020 Debentures. The Co-operative does not
intend to redeem, declare or pay any distributions in respect of the
Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares unless the Co-operative
determines that it will have sufficient funds to pay all amounts due and
payable on the 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020 Debentures.
The 2020 Debentures are unsecured debentures and rank equally with the 2017
Debentures, 2019 Debentures, and ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed
by law. The Debenture Indenture does not restrict the Co-operative from
incurring any additional indebtedness, either secured or unsecured.

Redemption

The Co-operative anticipates redeeming all of the 2020 Debentures at maturity.
However, the Co-operative reserves the right to redeem the 2020 Debentures in
whole, or in part on a pro rata basis, at any time after July 31, 2022. The ability
of the Co-operative to redeem any 2020 Debentures, either at its discretion or at
maturity, is dependent upon the Co-operative receiving sufficient cash
distributions from IGPC, which is in turn dependent on IGPC not being in
default of the Senior Credit Facilities, that any cash distributions made to the
Co-operative would not cause a default under the Senior Credit Facilities and
that IGPC remains in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Debt
Financing after making such distribution. No sinking fund will be established
for the redemption of the 2020 Debentures. There is no obligation of the Cooperative to redeem any 2020 Debentures prior to maturity.

Debenture Indenture

The 2020 Debentures will be issued pursuant to and subject to the terms of a
Debenture Indenture between the Co-operative and Computershare Trust
Company of Canada. The Debenture Indenture shall contain customary terms
and conditions, including but not limited to, representations and warranties,
restrictions on transfer, redemption, subordination, covenants by the Cooperative, and events of default. The descriptions of the 2020Debentures and
the Debenture Indenture in this Offering Statement are a summary only and
subject to the detailed provisions of the Debenture Indenture. A complete copy
of the Debenture Indenture shall be available for inspection by any member or
investor at the head office of the Co-operative. In the event of any inconsistency
between the provisions in this Offering Statement and the provisions of the
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Debenture Indenture, the provisions of the Debenture Indenture shall prevail
and take precedence.
The rights of the holders of 2020 Debentures may be modified in accordance
with the terms of the Debenture Indenture. The Debenture Indenture will contain
certain provisions which bind all holders of 2020 Debentures to resolutions
passed at meetings of the holders of 2020 Debentures by a specified majority
(as set out in the Debenture Indenture) of the principal amount of the 2020
Debentures, or approved in writing by the holders of a specified majority (as set
out in the Debenture Indenture) of the principal amount of the 2020 Debentures
then outstanding.
Caldwell Securities as Registered Purchasers of 2020 Debentures must open an investment account with Caldwell
Holder
Securities which will act as the registered holder of all 2020 Debentures and will
hold such 2020 Debentures, as nominee. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures should
contact Caldwell Securities with respect to all matters relating to their
subscription for 2020 Debentures and the holding and transfer of such 2020
Debentures, including, without limitation, with respect to the receipt of any
payments that may be made by the Co-operative in respect of the 2020
Debentures and the exercise of voting rights in respect of the 2020 Debentures
that holders beneficially own. Purchasers are responsible for making their own
arrangements with Caldwell Securities with respect to the holding by Caldwell
Securities of 2020 Debentures on their behalf and the Co-operative assumes no
liability for any loss suffered by a holder of 2020 Debentures in respect of such
arrangements.
All certificates representing 2020 Debentures will be registered in the name of
Caldwell Securities, as nominee for each purchaser, and therefore purchasers of
2020 Debentures will not be entitled to receive a definitive certificate or other
instruments from the Co-operative representing their interest in their 2020
Debentures. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures will receive only a customer
confirmation from Caldwell Securities. If at any time after the issue of 2020
Debentures it is determined that Caldwell Securities shall no longer act as the
registered holder of 2020 Debentures, the Co-operative shall issue or cause to
be issued certificates representing 2020 Debentures registered in the names of
the persons who beneficially own such 2020 Debentures. See Section 8 –
Description of Securities Offered.
Closings

It is expected that during the currency of this Offering Statement the Cooperative will effect a closing of 2020 Debentures on or about the last business
day of each month, provided that at the option of the Co-operative, closings may
be made on a less frequent basis on or about the last business day of any
particular month. Closing shall be held until such time as the Co-operative
resolves to no longer to offer 2020 Debentures for sale. Notwithstanding the
foregoing: (a) the Co-operative may determine not to effect a closing in any
particular month without affecting its ability to effect a closing in any
subsequent month; and (b) 2020 Debentures may be issued at any time and from
time to time during the currency of this Offering Statement at the discretion of
the Co-operative. See Section 8 – Description of Securities Offered.
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Payment for Securities
No securities offered under this Offering Statement shall be issued, and a purchaser shall not have any rights in respect
of such securities, until a purchaser has paid in full for such securities.
SECTION 9 - METHOD OF SALE OF SECURITIES
All securities sold pursuant to this Offering Statement will be sold exclusively by directors, officers, senior employees
of the Co-operative, or employees of Caldwell Securities Ltd. Caldwell Securities Ltd. will be entitled to a commission
of 1% on all sales. No commissions will be otherwise payable, and no discounts will be permitted, in connection with
such sales.
Caldwell Securities will act as the registered holder of all 2020 Debentures and will hold such 2020 Debentures on
behalf of beneficial owners who have established investment accounts with Caldwell Securities. Purchasers of 2020
Debentures should contact Caldwell Securities with respect to all matters relating to their subscription for 2020
Debentures and the holding and transfer of such 2020 Debentures, including, without limitation, with respect to the
receipt of any payments that may be made by the Co-operative in respect of the 2020 Debentures and the exercise of
voting rights in respect of the 2020 Debentures that holders beneficially own. Purchasers are responsible for making
their own arrangements with Caldwell Securities with respect to the holding by Caldwell Securities of 2020
Debentures on their behalf and the Co-operative assumes no liability for any loss suffered by a holder of 2020
Debentures in respect of such arrangements.
All certificates representing 2020 Debentures will be registered in the name of Caldwell Securities and therefore
purchasers of 2020 Debentures will not be entitled to receive a definitive certificate or other instruments from the Cooperative representing their interest in their 2020 Debentures. Purchasers of 2020 Debentures will receive only a
customer confirmation from Caldwell Securities. If at any time after the issue of 2020 Debentures it is determined
that Caldwell Securities shall no longer act as the registered holder of 2020 Debentures, the Co-operative shall issue
or cause to be issued certificates representing 2020 Debentures registered in the names of the persons who beneficially
own such 2020 Debentures.
It is expected that during the currency of this Offering Statement the Co-operative will effect a closing of 2020
Debentures on or about the last business day of each month, provided that at the option of the Co-operative, closings
may be made on a less frequent basis on or about the last business day of any particular month. Closing shall be
held until such time as the Co-operative resolves to no longer to offer 2020 Debentures for sale. . Each monthly
closing will be comprised of purchasers who have submitted executed subscription agreements and the requisite
subscription funds in that month. Notwithstanding the foregoing: (a) the Co-operative may determine not to effect
a closing in any particular month without affecting its ability to effect a closing in any subsequent month; and (b)
2020 Debentures may be issued at any time and from time to time during the currency of this Offering Statement at
the discretion of the Co-operative.
SECTION 10 - DESCRIPTION OF THE MARKET ON WHICH THE SECURITIES MAY BE SOLD
There is no established market for Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares or the 2020 Debentures offered
hereunder. Although the Co-operative has entered into an agreement with Caldwell Securities which enables
shareholders to trade their Class E Preference Shares, there can be no assurance that a sufficiently liquid market will
develop to enable shareholders to sell their Class E Preference shares in a timely or prompt manner. Additionally, no
such trading mechanism exists for Membership Shares and 2020 Debentures offered hereunder. No Membership
Shares, Class E Preference Shares or 2020 Debentures of the Co-operative may be transferred without the express
consent of the Board of Directors. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Membership
Requirements.
There is no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to redeem the 2020 Debentures upon maturity or make any
interest payments on the 2020 Debentures, or redeem any of the Membership Shares or Class E Preference Shares
offered under this Offering Statement. There is no assurance that the Co-operative will be able to redeem these
securities upon the withdrawal of a member. The ability of the Co-operative to make any cash payments requires
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compliance with Senior Debt Financing and is also likely dependent upon the Co-operative retaining cash and/or
generating sufficient capital through cash flow generated through operations of IGPC, or attracting sufficient
additional capital investment to redeem such securities. No sinking fund will be established for the redemption of any
of the 2020 Debentures, Membership Shares, or Class E Preference Shares offered under this Offering Statement. See
Section 8 – Description of Securities Offered.
In addition, there are restrictions on the ability of IGPC to distribute profits to the Co-operative pursuant to IGPC’s
agreements with Senior Lenders and the Investing in Business Growth and Productivity Contribution Agreement.
The Act prohibits the redemption of the Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares if the Co-operative is, or
would be, as a result of such redemption, insolvent or if such redemption would, in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, be detrimental to the financial stability of the Co-operative.
There is no established market for the Membership Shares, Class E Preference Shares or 2020 Debentures
offered under this Offering Statement and none is expected to develop.
SECTION 11 - DEBT OBLIGATIONS OF THE CO-OPERATIVE
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities. The Senior Lenders have agreed that the guarantees do not give them
any rights against any member of shareholder of or lender to the Co-operative. Additionally, the 2017 Debentures
and 2019 Debentures have already been issued and comprise the funded debt obligations of the Co-operative.
IGPC
Senior Credit Facilities
On March 22, 2017 IGPC entered into a Credit Agreement with FCC (the “FCC Credit Agreement”), which has
subsequently been subject to various amendments, with a comprehensive amendment of the Credit Agreement
executed on April 23, 2019, and subsequent amendments executed on July 15, 2019, September 26, 2019, November
25, 2019, and June 15, 2020. The FCC Credit Agreement, as amended, is comprised of a construction and term loan,
in the maximum amount of $35,000,000, and an operating credit facility for $7,000,000 (the “FCC Credit Line”),
for an aggregate total facility from FCC of $42,000,000 (the “FCC Facility”). The construction and term portion of
the FCC Facility, consisting of three tranches, have been used for the New Plant construction, as discussed elsewhere.
Two tranches of the FCC Facility, in the amounts of $19,252,336 and $6,738,318 as at June 30, 2020, bear interest at
a fixed rate of 5.429% and 5.449% respectively, and due to amendments maturity dates have been amended to May
4, 2029 and June 4, 2026 respectively, with interest only payable until December 31, 2019, and principal and interest
payments which commenced on January 1, 2020. The third tranche, up to a maximum of $8,000,000, of which
$6,362,627 has been drawn as of June 30, 2020, bears interest at the FCC variable rate plus 1.00%, with interest only
payable until December 31, 2019, and principal and interest payments which commenced on January 1, 2020; this
third tranche comes due December 1, 2021. Due to the deteriorating global economic outlook brought about by the
Covid-19 pandemic and its adverse impact on IGPC’s financial situation, FCC postponed further principal payments
for six months from May 2020 through to October 2020, with principal payments resuming in November 2020.

The FCC Credit Line bears interest at FCC’s variable rate plus 1.00% per annum, with monthly interest only payments,
and comes due October 1, 2020. The FCC Credit Line is subject to annual review and may be renewed for further one
year terms on terms agreeable to FCC, the Co-operative and IGPC. As at June 30, 2020, no funds were drawn on the
FCC Credit Line.
Additionally, on March 9, 2017 IGPC entered into a credit agreement with BDC comprised of a construction term
loan in the maximum amount of $30,000,000 (the “BDC Facility”), as amended by a comprehensive Letter of
Amendment dated May 13, 2019 as well as subsequent amendments dated September 23, 2019 and April 7, 2020.
Monthly principal payments of $250,000, plus interest, commenced in January 2020 but, due to the deteriorating
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global economic outlook brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and its adverse impact on IGPC financial
situation, BDC postponed further principal payments for six months from May 2020 through to October 2020, with
principal payments resuming on October 31, 2020. The BDC Facility, as amended, bears interest at 6.2% per annum.
Interest and principal repayments, payable monthly in arrears, began on January 31, 2020, with the final payment due
on May 31, 2030, subject to the above-mentioned postponements.
At September 30, 2019, IGPC has drawn $33,158,023 ($32,353,281 as at June 30, 2020) on the FCC Facility and
$28,055,437 ($27,600,906 as at June 30, 2020) on the BDC Facility. These balances are offset by $914,647
($839,760as at June 30, 2020) in deferred financing costs to be amortized over the loans’ terms. At September 30,
2019, no funds had been drawn on the FCC Credit Line (no funds had been drawn as at June 30, 2020).
Covenants under the Senior Credit Facilities are customary for facilities of this nature and include: (i) IGPC and the
Co-operative shall maintain a Debt to Equity Ratio, calculated on a consolidated basis, as at the last day of each
Financial Year of IGPC, of not greater than 1.00:1.00 for the Financial Year ending September 30, 2018 and for each
Financial Year thereafter; and (ii) IGPC and the Co-operative shall maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio,
calculated on a consolidated basis, as at September 30, 2019, and as at the end of each fiscal quarter thereafter, up to
and including June 30, 2020, of not less than 1.00:1.00 and a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of 1.30:1.00 for each fiscal
quarter starting with September 30, 2020 and each financial quarter thereafter.. The Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
shall be calculated on a trailing twelve month basis at each measurement date. As of the date of this Offering Statement,
IGPC is in compliance with all of these covenants. Continued compliance with the Fixed Charge Covenant Ratio
covenant may restrict the ability of the Co-operative to make distributions to its shareholders or redeem their shares.
The Senior Credit Facilities each include a number of positive and negative covenants with which IGPC must comply
while each are outstanding. The Co-operative believes that IGPC will be able to comply with all such covenants in
the ordinary course of business.
The Co-operative has provided an unlimited guarantee in respect of all of IGPC’s indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities. As security for its obligations under the Senior Credit Facilities, IGPC
has granted a first priority mortgage over its land and property located at 89 Progress Drive, Aylmer, Ontario, a general
security agreement over all of the personal property assets of IGPC and an assignment of insurance to be shared pari
passu among the Senior Lenders. See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-operative – Subsidiary, See
Section 6 Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Investors are advised that the Senior Credit Facilities are interconditional with each other and the failure to
comply with the covenants contained in one of the Senior Credit Facilities would constitute a default under
both such agreements. In the event of such a default, the commitments of FCC and BDC would automatically
terminate and all outstanding amounts due under the Senior Credit Facilities would become immediately due
and payable.
Under the Senior Credit Facilities, there are restrictions and limitations upon the ability of IGPC to distribute
profits to its sole shareholder, the Co-operative, which restrict the Co-operative’s ability to redeem or make
distributions in respect of the Membership Shares and Class E Preference Shares as well as to make interest
payments as they come due on the 2017 Debentures, the 2019 Debentures, and 2020 Debentures or to redeem
such debentures upon maturity. Provided that IGPC is in full compliance with all of the terms and conditions
of its Senior Credit Facilities, and that any payment to the Co-operative would not cause it to be in default
under these Senior Credit Facilities, IGPC may, without the prior consent of the Senior Lenders, distribute
funds to the Co-operative for the purpose of making dividend and interest payments, and redeem Membership
Shares, Class E Preference Shares, 2017 Debentures, 2019 Debentures and 2020 Debentures.
On September 29, 2017, IGPC entered into a credit agreement (the “RBC Credit Agreement”) with Royal Bank of
Canada (“RBC”). As security for the obligations under the RBC Credit Agreement, IGPC has provided RBC with a
general security agreement constituting a first priority security interest in the accounts receivable, inventories of IGPC.
The credit agreement provides a revolving demand facility of up to $2,500,000 by way of loans or letters of credit. As
at June 30, 2020 no funds were drawn on this facility and IGPC does not anticipate drawing on this facility prior to its
termination in September 2020. The RBC Credit Agreement also provides $3,480,789 by way of letters of credit which
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will expire in September 2020. These letters of credit are guaranteed by the Export Development Corporation in an
amount up to $2,760,904 as set out in a Confirmation of Coverage dated August 21, 2019 and expiring October 1,
2020. IGPC is currently in discussions with various financial institutions to replace the RBC Credit Agreement.
2017 Debentures
Between March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2017, the Co-operative raised $7,292,000 in subordinated debenture
funding through the issuance of the 2017 Debentures. These debentures, which have a five-year term, bear an interest
rate of 5.5% per annum, which shall be paid before any cash distribution is made on any Class E Preference Shares of
Membership Shares. The 2017 Debentures are unsecured and rank equally with the 2019 Debentures and the 2020
Debentures to be issued under this Offering Statement, and with all ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed by
law. The ability of the Co-operative to redeem the 2017 Debentures commenced the fiscal quarter ended June 30,
2020, subject to the attainment of certain financial results, however no 2017 Debentures have been redeemed as of the
date of this Offering Statement and the Co-operative will assess its ability to redeem 2017 Debentures on a quarterly
basis. through a sinking fund based on IGPC’s cash flow. The Co-operative has the discretion to redeem the 2017
Debentures provided that all interest has been paid on these debentures and the Co-operative is not in default of the
Senior Credit Facilities and such redemption would not cause a default under the Senior Credit Facilities.
2019 Debentures
Between July 31, 2019 and March 31, 2020, the Co-operative raised $7,505,000 in subordinated debenture funding
through the issuance of the 2019 Debentures. These debentures, which mature on July 31, 2023, bear an interest rate
of 7.0% per annum, which shall be paid before any cash distribution is made on any Class E Preference Shares or
Membership Shares. The 2019 Debentures are unsecured and rank equally with the 2017 Debentures and the 2020
Debentures to be issued under this Offering Statement, and with all ordinary trade creditors, except as prescribed by
law. The Co-operative has the discretion to redeem the 2019 Debentures provided that all interest has been paid on
these debentures and the Co-operative is not in default of the Senior Credit Facilities and such redemption would not
cause a default under the Senior Credit Facilities. The 2020 Debentures to be issued under this Offering Statement
will rank equally with the 2017 Debentures, the 2019 Debentures and all ordinary trade creditors, except as
prescribed by law.
Summary of Repayable Government Liabilities
The following table provides a summary of the repayable government liabilities of the Co-operative as at the dates
specified therein, extracted from the audited financial statements:
September 30, 2019

R & D Fund Liability

September 30,
2018

$764,639

$708,630

Agri-innovation Program

$2,169,668

$2,371,430

FedDev Loan

$4,020,935

0

Federal Economic Development Agency
IGPC entered into an agreement with the Federal Economic Development Agency for Southern Ontario on October
3, 2018, for an interest free loan of $5,000,000 to support the construction of the New Plant (“Investing in Business
Growth and Productivity Contribution Agreement”). IGPC received the first 90% ($4,500,000) of the loan in
November 2018, and recorded the present value of $3,872,914 discounted at 5.6% as a repayable government loan,
with the difference in the present value of the liability and the cash consideration received recorded as a government
grant, reducing the amount of capital additions for the New Plant.
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IGPC entered into an agreement with the Federal Economic Development Agency for Southern Ontario on June 30,
2020 for an interest-free loan of $500,000 to support operating costs of the business, repayable in equal monthly
principal payments of $8,333 over seven years commencing in January 2021 with the final payment due in December
2027.
See Section 14 - Contribution agreement with Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada and Section 14 Contribution
agreement with NRCAN - Ethanol Expansion Program.

SECTION 12 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
There are no legal proceedings to which the Co-operative is a party.
SECTION 13 - INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES
Operation of the Co-operative
All of the Directors of the Co-operative are members of the Co-operative and hold Membership Shares in the Cooperative. No individual Director of the Co-operative holds more than 10 per cent of the outstanding shares of the Cooperative. It is anticipated that the aggregate purchase by directors of the Class E Preference Shares and 2020
Debentures offered pursuant to this Offering Statement will amount to less than 10 per cent of the maximum offering
amount.
Securities Offered Herein
The Board of Directors will be offered the securities to be issued under this Offering Statement on the same terms as
are available to other members. Purchases by such directors are in aggregate likely to total less than 10 per cent of the
total offering, with no individual director likely purchasing more than five per cent of the total issue of securities.
In lieu of cash payment for their work on the Board of Directors during the development phase of the project, directors
deferred their compensation until the financial close of the Co-operative’s project. Upon financial close in 2007, the
Co-operative granted the directors stock options with an aggregate value of $695,300. Since the initial granting of
these stock options, 97,181 options have been exercised. If the remaining director’s stock options were exercised, this
would result in an additional 41,879 Class E Preference Shares being issued.
SECTION 14 - MATERIAL CONTRACTS
The Co-operative has entered into the following material contracts during the two years preceding the date of this
Offering Statement or continues to be bound by the material contracts entered into prior to such date:
New Plant Construction and Operation
The Board of Directors has approved an investment in the New Plant with an approximate capital expenditure budget
of $117 million. The project, which was substantially completed in October 2018, doubled IGPC’s annual ethanol
production capacity and significantly increased the production of Co-Products while benefiting from the integration
of the recently completed or planned capital expenditures located at the Plant, which include but are not limited to:
Corn Oil extraction technology, CHP, FST and SMT. North America Construction (1993) Ltd was the contractor for
the New Plant expansion. See Section 3 Description of The Business of the Co-operative – Overview and History.
See Section 4 Business Plan – Plant Facility. See Section 6 Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Agri-Innovation Loan Program
In February 2015, the Co-operative received an interest free loan of $3,560,838 for capital contributions related to the
FST additions to the Plant from 2015. The loan is for a term of ten years and is repayable through equal monthly
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repayments starting August 1, 2016. An amount of $2,843,669 representing the present value of these payments
discounted at 4.2% was recorded as a repayable government grant liability, with the difference in the present value of
the liability and the cash consideration received being recorded as a government grant, reducing the amount of capital
additions recorded in the property, plant and equipment. As at the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the balance
of the obligation was $2,169,668.
Carbon Dioxide (CO2)
See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-Operative – Air Liquide Agreement.
Corn Procurement Agreement with Thompsons Limited
See Section 4 Business Plan – Corn Procurement.
FCC Facility and BDC Facility
See Section 4 Business Plan – Senior Credit Facilities and Section 6 – Use of Proceeds of the Offering.
Ethanol Marketing Agreement
See Section 4 Business Plan– Ethanol.
Gas Delivery Agreement with Epcor
See Section 4 Business Plan – Natural Gas Delivery.
License Agreement between IGPC and ICM
On January 19, 2007, IGPC executed the License Agreement with ICM which provides a limited license to IGPC to
use ICM’s proprietary technology and information in connection with IGPC’s ownership, operation, maintenance, and
repair of the Plant. This agreement was amended and restated on May 22, 2007. The License Agreement includes,
without limitation, the design, arrangement, configuration, and specifications of:
(a) the combinations of distillation, evaporation, and alcohol dehydration equipment;
(b) the combination of the distillers grain drying and heat recovery steam generation equipment, and all documents
supporting those combinations;
(c) the computer system, known as the distributed control system, and all documents supporting that system;
(d) methodologies, processes, know-how and show-how;
(e) repair methods and special tooling;
(f) maintenance recommendations, methods and schedules; and
(g) software corrections, updates, scripts, patches, workarounds and maintenance releases.
The License Agreement also includes the ‘Plant Operating Procedures’ including, without limitation, the process
equipment and specifications manuals, standards of quality, service protocols, data collection methods, construction
specifications, training methods, engineering standards and any other information prescribed by ICM. On April 10,
2017, IGPC entered into a new agreement whereby ICM’s technology was licensed to IGPC for the integration of the
New Plant.
Ontario Ethanol Growth Fund Capital Grant
IGPC entered into an agreement with the Province of Ontario, as represented by the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture,
Food and Rural Affairs (“OMAFRA”), dated June 1, 2006, pursuant to which OMAFRA provided IGPC with a $14
million capital grant for the purpose of assisting IGPC to construct the Plant such that it would be capable of producing
at least 145 million litres of ethanol annually. IGPC has now received the full amount of this grant.
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Pursuant to this agreement, IGPC has agreed that it will, to the best of its ability, market this volume of ethanol in
Ontario so that it can be used by fuel suppliers for the purposes of complying with the Ontario ‘Renewable Fuel
Standard’ as set out in Ontario Regulation 535/05.
IGPC is required to contribute 20% of the capital grant, or $2,800,000, to a Research and Development Fund to be
established by OMAFRA, with payments to be made in equal annual installments of $280,000 over 10 years beginning
in the third year after the capital grant was provided to IGPC. During the course of fiscal 2019, the Co-operative
executed amendments to this Agreement to defer the 2019 payment to September 2020. As at the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2019, the balance of the obligation was $$764,639.
Erie Thames Powerlines Corporation
See Section 4 Business Plan – Co-Generation Project.
Pipeline Capital Cost Recovery Agreement with NRG
See Section 4 Business Plan – Natural Gas Delivery.
Securities Transfer Recordkeeping Agreement with Caldwell.
See Section 3 Description of the Business of the Co-Operative – Establishment of Share Transfer Mechanism.
Federal Economic Development Agency
IGPC entered into a Contribution Agreement with the Federal Economic Development Agency for Southern Ontario
on October 3, 2018, for an interest free loan of $5,000,000 to support the construction of the New Plant. IGPC received
the first 90% ($4,500,000) of the loan during November 2018, and recorded the present value of $3,872,914 discounted
at 5.56% as a repayable government loan, with the difference in the present value of the liability and the cash
consideration received recorded as a government grant, reducing the amount of capital additions for the New Plant.
The loan is repayable over a term of eight years, commencing on October 1, 2020 and terminating on November 11,
2027, with variable monthly payments ranging from $20,000 to $62,121. As at September 30, 2019, the balance of
this obligation was $4,020,935. Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement no change in control of IGPC may
occur, without the prior written consent of the Minister responsible for the Federal Economic Development Agency
for Southern Ontario. Dividends may only be paid provided retained earnings does not fall below $80,000,000.
IGPC entered into an additional Contribution Agreement with the Federal Economic Development Agency for
Southern Ontario on June 30, 2020 for an interest-free loan of $500,000 to support operating costs of the business,
repayable in equal monthly principal payments of $8,333 over seven years commencing in January 2021 with the final
payment due in December 2027.

SECTION 15 - DIVIDENDS AND PATRONAGE RETURNS
From the date of its incorporation in April 2002 until September, 2010, the Co-operative did not pay or declare any
dividends or distributions on the Membership Shares or the Class E Preference Shares, nor did it pay out any patronage
returns in fiscal 2011 through 2019, the Co-operative made aggregate returns of capital on the Class E Preference
Shares, for a total return of capital paid of $41,682,249. Over the past five fiscal years, the Co-operative has not paid
out any patronage returns nor paid any dividends on shares, but it has made the following return of capital payments:
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

$9,745
$2,181,535
$2,190,788
$4,828,831
$9,520,038
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Notwithstanding that the Co-operative has in the past and may in the future declare and pay cash dividends and/or
distributions in accordance with the applicable policy mentioned elsewhere in this Offering Statement, which the
Board of Directors may designate, as a return of capital, the par value of the Membership Shares and the Class E
Preference Shares remain unchanged at one dollar per share and five dollars per share, respectively.

SECTION 16 - OTHER MATERIAL FACTS
A copy of this Offering Statement must be given to each investor before any payment is legally accepted by the Cooperative.
None of the securities issued by the Co-operative pursuant to this Offering Statement will be in bearer form.
This Offering Statement expires on August 19, 2021. No further securities may be issued under this Offering
Statement after such date unless a new offering statement is filed and receipted.
The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2019 attached hereto as Schedule C,
form an integral part of this Offering Statement.
[The Remainder of This Page Has Been Intentionally Left Blank]
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SECTION 17 - CERTIFICATE OF DISCLOSURE
The foregoing constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this
offering statement as required by section 35 of the Co-operative Corporations Act.

Dated at Aylmer, Ontario, this August 19, 2020

Adrian Op’t Hoog
Chair of the Board of Directors

Brad Sheeler
Treasurer of the Board of Directors

SCHEDULE A
MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION AND SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

INTEGRATED GRAIN PROCESSORS CO-OPERATIVE INC.
Membership Application, Share and/or Debenture Subscription Agreement
Name

Telephone

(please print)

Address

Fax
_____________________________
E-mail

I hereby apply for membership in, and/or subscribe for 2020 Debentures of, Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative
Inc. (the “Co-operative”).
Accordingly, I agree to subscribe for Membership Shares. (Existing members of the Co-operative do not need to
purchase any additional Membership Shares.) In addition, as set out below, I agree to subscribe for Class E Preference
Shares and or 2020 Debentures in the amount(s) provided for below.
I agree that if my membership application is accepted and I am admitted as a member of the Co-operative, I will abide
by all the by-laws and policies of the Co-operative.
Prospective members must purchase a minimum of five Membership Shares and 5,000 Class E Preference Shares.
No. of Shares/
Debentures

Class of Shares/Debentures

Par Value/Issue Price

Minimum Purchase

Total

_______

Membership Shares

$100

$500

$

_______

Class E Preference Shares

$5.00

$25,000

$

______

2020 Debentures

$1,000

$2,000

$_____________

Purchaser’s Acknowledgments
By signing this Subscription Agreement, I hereby acknowledge and agree on my own behalf (and, if applicable, for
others for whom I am contracting hereunder) that:
1.

I have received and read a copy of the Offering Statement dated August 19, 2020 of the Co-operative;

2.
I have specifically noted the Description of the Securities Offered in Section 8 and the Risk Factors in
Section 5 of the Offering Statement;
3.
I have been advised that there can be no assurance that I will receive any distribution on the subscribed
securities or be able to redeem the subscribed securities upon request;

4.
there are substantial risks associated with my investment in the Co-operative, I am aware of the characteristic
of the subscribed securities, I am capable of assessing the merits and risks of my investment (including the potential
loss of my entire investment) and that I may lose my entire investment;
5.
there are restrictions upon the transfer of the subscribed securities and that there is (i) no market and a highly
illiquid trading platform for the Class E Preference Shares; and (ii) no market for the Membership Shares and 2019
Debentures; and there is no assurance that any market will develop;
6.
I have considered whether or not I should obtain independent legal, financial and tax advice on the suitability
of this investment to my particular financial situation, and I have either obtained such advice or determined that I do
not require such advice;
7.
I have had an opportunity to ask and have been answered by the Co-operative’s officers all questions (to my
full satisfaction) that I wished to raise with respect to: (a) the business and affairs of the Co-operative; (b) the securities
offered to me in this Offering Statement; and (c) this Subscription Agreement;
8.
other than as set out in the Offering Statement, the Co-operative has not made any representation relating to
its future performance or given any projections or forecasts, financial or otherwise, to me;
9.
I am not subscribing for securities with knowledge of material information concerning the Co-operative
which has not been generally disclosed;
10.
no person has made any written or oral representations to me that any person will resell or repurchase the
subscribed securities, that any person will refund all or any part of the subscription amount, or as to the future price
or value of the subscribed securities;
11.
my ability to transfer the subscribed securities may be limited by, among other things, applicable laws and
is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. I hereby further agree that I or, if applicable,
others for whom I am contracting hereunder, will comply with all relevant laws and other restrictions concerning any
resale of the subscribed securities and will consult with my own, or their own, legal advisers with respect to complying
with all applicable restrictions and requirements applying to any such resale; and
12.
if I am purchasing 2020 Debentures, the certificate representing such 2020 Debentures will be registered in
the name of “Caldwell Securities Ltd.” and held in an investment account that I have established with Caldwell
Securities Ltd. and any and all rights I may have under the 2020 Debentures must be exercised through Caldwell
Securities Ltd. I further acknowledge that I am responsible for making my own arrangements with Caldwell Securities
Ltd. with respect to the holding by Caldwell Securities Ltd. of 2020Debentures on my behalf and that the Co-operative
assumes no liability for any loss I may suffer as a result of such arrangements;
13.

there is no government insurance covering the subscribed securities;

14.
legal counsel retained by the Co-operative is acting as legal counsel to the Co-operative and not as my
counsel. No legal counsel has conducted any independent review of the Co-operative, its business or operations or its
prospects; and
15.
I am knowledgeable, sophisticated and experienced in business and financial matters and am capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the subscribed securities, fully understand the investment in the
subscribed securities and the restrictions on transfer described in this Subscription Agreement and am able to bear the
economic risk of an investment in the subscribed securities.
Representations and Warranties
I hereby represent and warrant to the Co-operative that:

1.
I or the beneficial purchaser for whom I am acting, as appropriate, will execute and deliver all documentation
as may be required by applicable laws to permit the purchase of the subscribed shares and/or debentures on the terms
herein set forth;
2.
this Subscription Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by me, and constitutes a
legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of, myself or the beneficial purchaser for whom I am acting;
3.
if an individual, I have obtained the age of majority and in every case I am legally competent to execute this
Subscription Agreement and to take all actions required pursuant hereto; and
4.
I and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom I am contracting, are resident in the jurisdiction set
out at the beginning of this Subscription Agreement.
Reliance Upon Representations and Warranties
I acknowledge and agree that the representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgments and agreements made by
me herein are made with the intention that they may be relied upon by the Co-operative in determining my eligibility
(and, if applicable, the eligibility of others for whom I am contracting hereunder) to purchase the subscribed securities
under applicable laws. The representations, warranties and covenants contained herein shall continue in full force and
effect notwithstanding any subsequent disposition by me or any such beneficial purchaser of the shares and/or
debentures.
Please make all cheques payable to Caldwell Securities Ltd.
Signature:
Date:

Name
(please print)

Address

SCHEDULE B
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Balance Sheet -Consolidated (unaudited)
Q1
Assets
Current Assets
Cash
Cash held in Margin
Accounts Receivable
Income Taxes Recoverable
Inventory
Fair Value of Derivative Contracts
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Fiscal 2020
Q2

Q3

September 30, 2019

8,983,926
4,638,195
2,706,831
8,690,057
503,479
675,605
26,198,093

6,209,258
306,785
8,660,679
493,621
6,366,658
331,618
22,368,619

3,947,085
9,634,892
8,468,894
312,735
22,363,606

1,205,739
4,342,377
2,706,831
7,024,519
198,791
15,478,257

188,914,098
2,053,088
73,398
217,238,676

187,570,567
2,031,476
110,343
212,081,005

185,783,919
2,009,864
122,267
210,279,655

190,603,473
2,074,700
42,044
208,198,474

500,000
15,368,616
357,144
420,012
560,000
6,547,776
23,753,548

13,466,747
92,659
357,144
420,012
560,000
6,547,776
21,444,338

14,176,696
180,000
210,006
784,265
5,060,062
20,411,029

10,175,192
357,144
420,012
560,000
4,910,832
16,423,180

LT Liabilities
Fed Dev Loan
AIP Loan
Term Debt
Subordianted Debt
R&D Fund Liability
Future Income Tax
Total Liabilities

3,719,943
1,768,615
53,775,999
13,824,959
214,946
16,136,460
113,194,471

3,776,878
1,609,329
52,572,372
14,501,599
225,252
15,600,903
109,730,671

3,663,992
1,783,810
54,054,365
14,530,532
14,708,031
109,151,760

3,663,793
1,749,654
55,387,981
13,078,740
204,639
15,490,189
105,998,176

Shareholders Equity
Capital Stock
Contributed Surplus
Retained Earnings

11,737,110
244,277
92,062,818

11,732,110
244,277
90,373,947

11,732,110
244,277
89,151,508

11,686,016
296,217
90,218,065

Total Liabilities and S.E.

217,238,676

212,081,005

210,279,655

208,198,474

Fixed Assets
PPE
Intangible Assets
Future Income Taxes
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Bank Debt
AP & Accrued Liabilities
Fair Value of Derivative Contracts
Current Portion of Fed Dev
Current Portion of AIP
Current Portion of R&D fund liability
Current Portion of Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Income Statement - Consolidated (unaudited)
Fiscal 2020
Q2

30-Jun-20
Q1
Net Sales

Fiscal 2020
YTD

Q3

Fiscal 2019
YTD

64,883,616

61,631,543

43,799,873

170,315,032

162,870,610

59,498,877
1,769,024
(605,109)
60,662,792

61,610,873
1,768,744
(1,822,240)
61,557,377

41,203,304
1,768,962
646,434
43,618,700

162,313,054
5,306,730
(1,780,915)
165,838,869

160,126,533
5,239,692
(56,248)
165,309,977

4,220,825

74,165

181,173

4,476,163

(2,439,367)

625,850
54,292
680,142

675,328
54,127
729,455

599,445
54,583
654,028

1,900,623
163,002
2,063,626

2,007,453
178,932
2,186,384

3,540,682

(655,290)

(472,855)

2,412,538

(4,625,752)

(1,207,556)
107,861
(75,611)
94,294
(1,081,013)

(1,176,692)
42,718
(46,602)
(425,507)
(1,606,083)

(1,182,213)
123,786
(53,895)
(48,437)
(1,160,759)

(3,566,460)
274,365
(176,109)
(379,650)
(3,847,854)

(3,089,487)
223,197
(58,886)
31,061
(2,894,115)

Income (Loss) Before Taxes

2,459,670

(2,261,373)

(1,633,614)

(1,435,317)

(7,519,867)

Provision for current income Taxes
Provision for future income Taxes
Net Income (Loss)

614,917
1,844,753

(572,502)
(1,688,871)

493,621
(904,796)
(1,222,439)

493,621
(862,381)
(1,066,557)

(5,959,000)
4,079,112
(5,639,979)

Retained Earnings (Deficit) - Beginning of Period

90,218,065

92,062,818

90,373,947

90,218,065

102,233,643

Retained Earnings - End of Period

92,062,818

90,373,947

89,151,508

89,151,508

96,593,664

Cost of Goods Sold
Depreciation and Amortization
Net Loss (Gain) on Cmdty Deriv. Contract

Gross Profit
Selling, General & Admin
Depreciation and Amortization

Operating Income
Other Income (Expenses)
Interest Expense
Interest and Miscellaneous Income
Amortization of Def. Financing Fees
Gain (Loss) on Foreign Exchange

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Cash Flow Statement -Consolidated (unaudited)
Fiscal 2020
Q2

30-Jun-20
Q1
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
Net Change to Cash in margin accounts
Changes to income not involving cash:
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivative contracts
Interest on R&D fund liability
Interest on AIP fund liability
Interest on FedDev liability
Future income taxes

Fiscal 2020
YTD

Q3

Fiscal 2019
YTD

1,844,753
114,470

(1,688,871)
(421,255)

(1,222,439)
306,785

(1,066,557)
0

(5,639,979)
82,951

1,898,927
(617,949)
10,307
18,961
56,151
614,917
3,940,538 -

1,869,474
710,607
10,306
15,719
56,934
(572,502)
19,587

1,877,440
(92,658)
4,777
21,360
57,640
(904,796)
48,110

5,645,842
25,390
56,041
170,725
(862,381)
3,969,060

5,515,176
(9,676)
42,007
70,795
95,360
4,079,112
4,235,745

2,723,900

(1,043,758)

(1,853,995)

(173,853)

(15,352,722)

6,664,438

(1,063,345)

(1,805,885)

3,795,207

(11,116,977)

500,000
727,000
(1,000)
78
1,226,078

(500,000)
(175,004)
655,000
(1,228,590)
(5,000)
(1,253,594)

(35,001)
(30,684)
(65,685)

(210,005)
1,382,000
(1,259,274)
(6,000)
78
(93,201)

(1,000,000)
(193,426)
35,246
5,000,002
6,559,585
3,043,533
(3,060)
113
13,441,992

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment

(112,329)

(457,729)

(390,603)

(960,661)

(4,063,089)

Net Increase in Cash

(112,329)
7,778,187

(457,729)
(2,774,668)

(390,603)
(2,262,173)

(960,661)
2,741,346

(4,063,089)
(1,738,073)

Net change in non-cash WC balances

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Bank Debt Proceeds
Repayment of AIP and R&D funds
Revaluation of AIP funds for payment deferral
Fed Dev repayable grant
Debentures Issued
Term Debt Proceeds (Repayment)
Restricted Cash
Issue and (redemption) of shares
Exercise and (settlement) of stock options

Cash - Beginning of Period

1,205,739

8,983,926

6,209,258

1,205,739

4,721,589

Cash - End of Period

8,983,926

6,209,258

3,947,085

3,947,085

2,983,516

SCHEDULE C
2019 AUDITED AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Integrated Grain Processors
Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc. and its subsidiary (together, the
Co-operative) as at September 30, 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IFRS).
What we have audited
The Co-operative’s consolidated financial statements comprise:
•

the consolidated statement of financial position as at September 30, 2019;

•

the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended;

•

the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss for the year then ended;

•

the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended;

•

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

•

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Co-operative in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
95 King Street South, Suite 201, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada N2J 5A2
T: +1 519 570 5700, F: +1 519 570 5730
“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Cooperative’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Co-operative or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Co-operative’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Co-operative’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Co-operative’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Co-operative to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Co-operative to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Waterloo, Ontario
December 11, 2019

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2019
$

2018
$

1,205,739
4,342,377
2,706,831
7,024,519
198,791

4,721,589
82,951
3,043,533
3,903,181
2,181,438
6,568,457
250,232

15,478,257

20,751,381

190,603,473
42,044
2,074,700

193,811,270
20,567
2,161,148

208,198,474

216,744,366

Assets (note 9)
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash held in margin accounts (note 15)
Restricted cash (note 4)
Accounts receivable (note 5)
Income taxes recoverable
Inventory (note 6)
Prepaid expenses and deposits

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment (note 7)
Deferred income tax assets (note 21)
Intangible assets (note 8)

Approved by the Board of Directors

___________________________________ Director ________________________________ Director
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position …continued
As at September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2019
$

2018
$

10,175,192
1,337,156
4,910,832

1,000,000
21,592,738
9,676
675,649
4,444,971

16,423,180

27,723,034

13,078,740
5,618,086
15,490,189
55,387,981

7,096,323
2,404,411
16,680,000
48,610,555

105,998,176

102,514,323

11,686,016

11,661,191

296,217

335,209

90,218,065

102,233,643

102,200,298

114,230,043

208,198,474

216,744,366

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Bank debt (note 9)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Derivative contracts (notes 12 and 13)
Current portion of repayable government assistance (note 16)
Current portion of term debt (note 9)

Non-current liabilities

Subordinated debentures (note 22)
Repayable government assistance (note 16)
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 21)
Term debt (note 9)

Shareholders’ Equity
Capital stock (note 10)
Contributed surplus (note 20)
Retained earnings

Commitments (note 15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2019
$

2018
$

Sales (note 24)

216,467,108

110,913,719

Cost of goods sold (note 14)

225,317,188

113,551,237

Gross loss
Selling, general and administrative expenses (note 17)
Operating loss
Finance expenses (income)
Interest expense (note 18)
Interest and other income
Gain on foreign exchange
Gain on disposal of assets

Loss before provision for income taxes

(8,850,080)

(2,637,518)

3,088,290

4,488,541

(11,938,370)

(7,126,059)

4,339,794
(257,709)
(1,298)
-

181,253
(134,809)
(58,848)
(10,707)

4,080,787

(23,111)

(16,019,157)

(7,102,948)

Current income tax recovery (note 21)

(2,792,291)

(2,135,724)

Deferred income tax (recovery) expense (note 21)

(1,211,288)

Net loss

249,827

(4,003,579)

(1,885,897)

(12,015,578)

(5,217,051)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss
For the year ended September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2019
$

Net loss

(12,015,578)

Other comprehensive income net of taxes

Gain on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Net comprehensive loss

(12,015,578)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2018
$
(5,217,051)
362,840
(4,854,211)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance – September 30, 2017

Capital
stock
$

Contributed
surplus
$

Retained
earnings
$

Accumulated
other
comprehensive
loss
$

13,787,881

400,922

107,450,694

(417,510)

-

-

-

-

Net comprehensive loss for the
year
Gain on derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges
Reclassification of loss on
derivatives to property, plant
and equipment
Return of capital
Options exercised and settled
Share redemptions

(2,181,535)
65,845
(11,000)

(65,713)
-

Balance – September 30, 2018

11,661,191

Net comprehensive loss for the
year
Return of capital
Options exercised and settled
Share redemptions
Balance – September 30, 2019

(9,745)
39,070
(4,500)
11,686,016

(5,217,051)

-

Total
$
121,221,987
(5,217,051)

-

362,840

-

54,670
-

335,209

102,233,643

-

114,230,043

(38,992)
-

(12,015,578)
-

-

(12,015,578)
(9,745)
78
(4,500)

296,217

90,218,065

-

102,200,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

362,840
54,670
(2,181,535)
132
(11,000)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
2019
$

2018
$

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities

Net comprehensive loss for the year
Net change in cash held in margin accounts
Financing costs (note 9)
Items not involving cash
Depreciation and amortization
Change in unrealized loss on derivative contracts
Interest accretion
Gain on property, plant and equipment
Deferred income taxes

(12,015,578)
82,951
(145,823)

(5,217,051)
84,036
(421,024)

7,341,448
(9,676)
245,002
(1,211,288)

3,720,763
37,054
176,103
(10,707)
249,827

(5,712,964)

(1,380,999)

(12,786,756)

(5,542,393)

(18,499,720)

(6,923,392)

(1,000,000)
(4,500)
(9,745)
78
(158,181)
7,414,678
(250,000)
5,000,002
6,123,000

1,000,000
(11,000)
(2,181,535)
132
(395,648)
(280,000)
54,048,782
2,381,078

17,115,332

54,561,809

(5,174,995)
3,043,533

(52,015,467)
11,699
438,467

(2,131,462)

(51,565,301)

(3,515,850)

(3,926,884)

Cash and cash equivalents – Beginning of year

4,721,589

8,648,473

Cash and cash equivalents – End of year

1,205,739

4,721,589

4,090,668
93,649
2,266,898

2,128,984
15,674
876,550

Net change in non-cash working capital balances (note 19)

Financing activities

Bank debt (repayment) proceeds (note 9)
Share redemptions
Return of capital
Proceeds on issuance of shares
Repayment of Agri-Innovation loan program (note 16)
Payment of research and development fund liability (note 16)
Term debt proceeds (note 9)
Term debt repayments (note 9)
Proceeds of Fed Dev interest free loan (note 16)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinate debentures

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net change in restricted cash

Decrease in cash during the year

Supplemental operating cash flow information
Interest paid
Interest received
Income taxes received

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

1

Nature of operations
Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc. (the Co-operative) was incorporated on April 4, 2002 under the
Ontario Co-operative Corporations Act.
The Co-operative produces and sells ethanol and co-products through its 380,000,000 litre fuel ethanol
production facility in Southwestern Ontario. The facility was opened on October 5, 2008.
The registered office and principal place of business of the Co-operative is 89 Progress Drive, Aylmer, Ontario,
N5H 2R9.

2

Change in accounting policies
On October 1, 2018, the Co-operative adopted IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers (IFRS 15) and
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (IFRS 9).
IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers (IFRS 15) replaced the previous guidance IAS 18 – Revenue
and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. IFRS 15 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers, except within the scope of the standards on
leases, insurance contracts, and financial instruments. IFRS 15 also contains enhanced disclosure requirements.
As permitted by the transition provisions of IFRS 15, IFRS 15 was applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect on initial adoption recognised at October 1, 2018. The cumulative effect of initially adopting IFRS 15 at
October 1, 2018, did not result in a material impact on adoption. Comparative information is not restated and
continues to be reported under the previous revenue standards in effect during those periods.
IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (IFRS 9), replaced the previous guidance IAS 39 – Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurements (IAS 39). IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for: (i) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and (ii) the recognition and measurement of
impairment for financial assets. As permitted by the transition provisions of IFRS 9, the comparative periods
have not been restated and are presented in accordance with the previous guidance. IFRS 9 did not result in a
material impact to opening retained earnings on adoption.

(1)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Financial instrument

Classification (IFRS 9)

Cash
Restricted cash
Cash held in margin accounts
Accounts receivable

Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Fair value through profit
and loss
Fair value through other
comprehensive income
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Derivative contracts not designated as hedges
Derivative contracts designated as hedges
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Subordinate debentures
Repayable government assistance
Preference shares
Term debt

3

Classification (IAS 39)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables
Fair value through profit
and loss
Cash flow hedge
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and IFRIC interpretations (collectively IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
December 11, 2019. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost
approach on a going concern basis. They have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies laid out
below.
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Co-operative and its wholly owned
subsidiary, IGPC Ethanol Inc. (the Subsidiary). Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
on consolidation.
Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses for the year reported. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Revenue recognition
The accounting policies applied until September 30, 2018 were to recognise revenue on sales of ethanol, and coproducts at the time of shipment.
The accounting policies applied since October 1, 2018 are disclosed in note 24.

(2)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Government assistance
The Co-operative estimates the timing and amount of assistance it will receive from government funding
programs. Such estimates are based on past experience of receiving similar funding in the past.
Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Co-operative has complied with
the conditions of the grant. Such grants are accounted for as a reduction of the related expense or asset, or as
income, on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Co-operative recognizes as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate as appropriate. Annual assessments are performed as to
the likelihood of government grants becoming repayable.
Inventories
Inventories of finished products, feedstock, process chemicals and supplies are valued at the lower of net
realizable value and average cost. Work-in-process consists of cost of material and direct labour and is valued at
the lower of net realizable value and average cost.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the asset. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:
Land
Buildings and site pipelines
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment
Process equipment

Indefinite
20 to 35 years
10 years
3 to 15 years
10 to 35 years

The Co-operative reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual
reporting period.
Depreciation of assets subject to a finance lease is calculated on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
In the year of acquisition, depreciation is provided for on a pro-rated period for the number of days the asset is
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation methods and residual values are
reviewed annually for changes in circumstances that would result in changes in these estimates. A change in
estimate is accounted for prospectively in the year the change occurred.
The assets are grouped by significant component and depreciated over the period of that specific component.
Grants under government capital assistance programs are deducted from the cost of the assets to which the
grant relates.

(3)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets relate to a license which grants the Co-operative the right to use the proprietary design and
processes to produce ethanol and the control components of the plant technology. The license is being
amortized over the estimated useful life of the significant portion of process equipment of 35 years.
Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Co-operative reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Co-operative has a present obligation, based on a legal or constructive
requirement, resulting from a past event that is probable will result in an outflow of assets from the
Co-operative and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(4)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities
i) Classification
From October 1, 2018, the Co-operative classified its financial assets and liabilities into the following specified
categories: ‘at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL), ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVOCI), or ‘amortized cost’. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. The classification of all financial assets and
liabilities can be found in Note 2 to the financial statements.
ii) Recognition and derecognition
The Co-operative recognizes financial assets upon entering into a contract which transfers the risks and rewards
the assets to the Co-operative. When the Co-operative no longer retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets, the Co-operative will derecognize the assets as control over the assets has been
relinquished.
iii) Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.
After initial recognition, financial assets are recognized into the following specified categories: ‘amortized cost’,
‘FVOCI’, ‘FVTPL’.
•

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost: (i) assets
are held for the collection of contractual cash flows and (ii) contractual cash flows that consist solely of
principal and interest payments on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets measured at
amortized cost assets are stated at cost or amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The Cooperative reviews these instruments on each balance sheet date to determine required allowances for credit
losses. Refer to (v) for further details on impairment.

•

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVOCI: (i) assets are held
for collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets measured at FVOCI are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income.

(5)

Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
•

All other financial assets are classified as FVTPL. Financial assets measured at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.

•

After initial recognition financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value
net of transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 requires the Company to account for expected credit losses (ECLs) and any changes at each reporting
date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. From October 1, 2018,
the Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assets measured at amortized cost based on
historical credit loss experience and expected future cash flows. For trade receivables, the Co-operative applied
the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9 which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from
initial recognition of the receivables.
iv) Accounting policies applied until September 30, 2018
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss. Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity' investments, ‘available-for-sale'
(AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables'. Financial liabilities are either classified as FVTPL or other
liabilities.
•

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss.

•

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at their fair value and changes in fair value are included in
other comprehensive income until the asset is removed from the consolidated statement of financial
position.

•

Loans and receivables are measured at cost or amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

•

Other financial liabilities are measured at cost or amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Contracts to buy or sell non-financial items and entered into for the purpose of receipt or delivery of nonfinancial items for the Co-operative’s own use, do not meet the definition of financial instruments and therefore
are not recorded on the statement of financial position.
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Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Stock options
Stock options are measured at fair value using the guidance in Share Based Payment (IFRS 2). Stock-based
compensation costs, measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the options granted and recognized
over the service period involved, are recorded as expenses on the consolidated statement of operations and net
income. The amounts are credited to contributed surplus. An estimate of forfeitures is included in the amounts
calculated. The consideration paid upon exercise of the options and the originally recorded fair value of the
options are added to share capital.
Derivative contracts not designated as hedges
Exposure to changes in the market price of both the Co-operative’s inputs and outputs are managed through the
use of commodity derivative contracts. The contacts are recorded within the consolidated statement of financial
position at their market value and the net gains and losses on these contracts are recorded within cost of goods
sold.
Foreign currency transactions
Under IFRS, each consolidated entity must determine its own functional currency, which becomes the currency
that the entity measures its results and financial position in. In determining the functional currencies of the
consolidated entities, the Co-operative considered many factors, including the currency that mainly influences
sales prices, labour, material and other costs of providing goods and services, the currency in which the funds
from financing activities are generated and in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Canadian dollars, which is also the parent and
subsidiary company’s functional currencies.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the Canadian dollar are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.
Income taxes
Taxation on the profit or loss for the year is comprised of current and deferred income tax. Taxation is
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case the income tax is recognized in equity.
Current income tax is the expected income tax payable on the taxable income for the year using rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the year-end, and includes any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred income tax is not provided on the initial
recognition of goodwill or on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the related transaction is a
business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Where an asset has no deductible or depreciable
amount for income tax purposes, but has a deductible amount on sale or abandonment for capital gains
purposes, the amount is included in the determination of temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective
period of realization, provided they are enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to be utilized
against future taxable income. Deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each consolidated statement of
financial position date and adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Co-operative has both the right and the intention to settle its current assets and liabilities on a
net or simultaneous basis.
Any changes in deferred income tax assets or liabilities are recognized as part of tax expense or income in profit
or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the related deferred income tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) or
equity, respectively.
Future accounting changes
•

IFRS 16 – Leases

Effective for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,
2019, the IASB issued this new standard to replace IAS 17 Leases. The new standard provides a comprehensive
model for the identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements of both
lessees and lessors. IFRS 16 applies a control model to the identification of leases, distinguishing between leases
and service contracts on the basis of whether there is an identified asset controlled by the customer. Significant
changes to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between operating and finance leases removed
and assets and liabilities recognized in respect of all leases (subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets).
The Co-operative has assessed the impact of this new standard. Through its evaluation, management
determined that the new guidance on Leases did not have a significant impact to the Co-operative’s
consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated statement operations and net income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

4

Restricted cash
As at September 30, 2018, the Co-operative had $3,043,533 of cash held in trust, which was released for
payment of construction holdbacks during the reporting period.

5

Accounts receivable
2019
$
Trade accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Other receivables

6

2018
$

4,437,636
(101,256)
5,997

3,832,741
70,440

4,342,377

3,903,181

2019
$

2018
$

1,056,604
1,786,460
4,181,455

1,193,894
1,539,801
3,834,762

7,024,519

6,568,457

Inventory

Fuel grade ethanol
Work-in-process
Feedstock, process chemicals and supplies
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7

Property, plant and equipment
Furniture
and
fixtures
$

Equipment
$

Process
equipment
$

Gas pipeline
under finance
lease
$

Construction
in progress
$

Total
$

Land
$

Buildings
$

Site
pipelines
$

Balance – September 30, 2017 2,928,721

16,740,247

2,287,513

178,756

3,426,845

91,098,098

8,472,554

55,210,195

180,342,929

-

273,843
1,565,019

-

13,117
-

122,591
(22,775)
-

391,986
535,607

-

57,086,648
(2,100,626)

57,888,185
(22,775)
-

Balance – September 30, 2018 2,928,721

18,579,109

2,287,513

191,873

3,526,661

92,025,691

8,472,554

110,196,217

238,208,339

110,740

-

2,492

208,528

199,911

-

4,653,324

5,174,995

Cost

Additions
Disposals
Transfers

Additions
Interest benefit – government
assistance
Transfers

-

(220,715)
23,727,542

(54,778)
5,823,403

42,196,676

8,056,138

196,815

Land
$

Buildings
$

Site
pipelines
$

Furniture
and
fixtures
$

Balance – September 30, 2017

-

4,383,153

712,326

Depreciation expense
Disposals

-

463,507
-

Balance – September 30, 2018

-

Depreciation expense
Balance – September 30, 2019

Balance – September 30, 2019 2,928,721

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

2,450

(1,074)
36,094
3,770,209

(935,073)
84,331,064

-

175,621,593

8,472,554

(113,920,553)
928,988

(1,211,640)
242,171,694

Equipment
$

Process
equipment
$

Gas pipeline
under finance
lease
$

Construction
in progress
$

Total
$

110,488

705,329

26,400,686

8,472,554

-

40,784,536

65,357
-

18,285
-

280,743
(21,782)

2,806,423
-

-

-

3,634,315
(21,782)

4,846,660

777,683

128,773

964,290

29,207,109

8,472,554

-

44,397,069

-

1,137,592

230,942

12,059

301,813

5,488,746

-

-

7,171,152

-

5,984,252

1,008,625

140,832

1,266,103

34,695,855

8,472,554

-

51,568,221
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The following is a reconciliation of the net book value for property, plant and equipment:

Balance – September 30, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Balance – September 30, 2018
Additions
Interest benefit – government assistance
Depreciation expense
Balance – September 30, 2019

8

Cost
$

Accumulated
depreciation
$

Net book
value
$

180,342,929

40,784,536

139,558,393

57,888,185
(22,775)
238,208,339

(21,782)
3,634,315
44,397,069

5,174,995
(1,211,640)
242,171,694

7,171,152

57,888,185
(993)
(3,634,315)
193,811,270
5,174,995
(1,211,640)
(7,171,152)

51,568,221

190,603,473

2019
$

2018
$

Intangible assets

Cost
Accumulated amortization

3,227,324
(1,152,624)

3,227,324
(1,066,176)

2,074,700

2,161,148

Net book value
The following is a reconciliation of the net book value for the intangible assets:

$
Balance – September 30, 2017
Amortization
Balance – September 30, 2018
Amortization
Balance – September 30, 2019

2,247,596
(86,448)
2,161,148
(86,448)
2,074,700
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9

Bank debt, credit facilities and term debt
Bank debt and credit facilities
The Co-operative has entered into a credit agreement with a financial institution in March 2014 with the
following credit facilities available:
a)

b)

A revolving demand facility of up to $5,000,000 available by way of either loans or letters of credit. As
at September 30, 2019, no amount has been drawn on this facility.
A revolving demand facility of $3,480,789 by way of letters of credit. As at September 30, 2019, no
amount had been drawn on this facility.

The aggregate amount of the facilities in a) and b) above must not exceed $5,000,000 at any time.
In addition to the aforementioned facilities, the Co-operative has a two-year term operating credit facility with
another financial institution. This facility is for $3,000,000 (increasing to $7,000,000 on January 1, 2020)
with interest set at that institution’s variable mortgage rate plus 1.0% due May 1, 2020. At September 30, 2019,
no amount had been drawn on this facility (2018 – $1,000,000).
Term debt facilities
The following amounts represent the Co-operative’s term debt obligations:

Term debt, with fixed interest at 5.429%, repayable in monthly
installments of $186,916 plus interest, beginning on
January 1, 2020, maturity November 30, 2028 (i)
Term debt, with fixed interest at 5.449%, repayable in monthly
installments of $65,421 plus interest, beginning on
January 1, 2020, maturity November 30, 2028 (i)
Term debt, with variable interest at 5.950%, repayable in
monthly installments beginning on January 1, 2020,
maturity November 30, 2028 (i)
Term debt, with fixed interest at 5.70%, repayable in monthly
installments beginning on January 1, 2020, maturity
November 30, 2029 (ii)
Less: Deferred financing costs

Less: Current portion

2019
$

2018
$

20,000,000

20,000,000

7,000,000

7,000,000

6,158,023

3,570,024

28,055,437
(914,647)

23,478,758
(993,256)

60,298,813

53,055,526

(4,910,832)

(4,444,971)

55,387,981

48,610,555
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September 30, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Principal payments required to meet the long-term obligations were as follows:

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

i)

2019
$

2018
$

4,910,832
6,547,776
6,547,776
6,547,776
6,547,776
30,111,524

4,444,971
5,404,878
5,404,878
5,404,878
5,404,878
5,404,878
22,579,421

61,213,460

54,048,782

Term debt expiring November 31, 2028
The Co-operative has entered into a term loan with maximum availability of $35,000,000, for the
construction of the plant expansion. As at September 30, 2019, $33,158,023 (2018 – $30,570,024)
has been drawn on this facility. This loan is segregated into three tranches. The first $20,000,000
tranche has been locked into a ten-year fixed interest rate, the second $7,000,000 tranche has been
locked into a seven-year fixed interest rate, and the remaining $6,158,023 is currently bearing interest
at the institution’s variable mortgage rate plus 1.0%. Principal payments on this loan will begin
January 1, 2020 and end November 30, 2028.

ii)

Term debt expiring November 30, 2029
The Co-operative has entered into another term loan with a maximum availability of $30,000,000,
for the construction of the plant expansion. As at September 30, 2019, $28,055,437 (2018 –
$23,478,758) has been drawn on this facility. This loan is for a period of 10 years and has been locked
into a five-year fixed interest rate. Fixed principal and interest payments are due from January 1,
2020 until November 30, 2029.
The Co-operative has provided a general security agreement covering all of its present and afteracquired property parri passu to the term lenders noted above.

Refinancing
During the year, the Co-operative signed amendments with the aforementioned financial institutions to
defer principal payments, which were to begin during the year, until January 2020. The Co-operative
continued to make interest payments during the year, and there was no impact to earnings as a result of
the amendments.
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10 Capital stock
Authorized
100,000 membership shares, voting, with a par value of $100 each.
20,000,000 Class E preference shares, non-voting, redeemable at the discretion of the Board, with a par
value of $5 each.
The Class E preference shares are redeemable at their par value, plus a premium, if any, equivalent to a pro
rata share of retained earnings of the Co-operative, calculated at the end of the immediately preceding
fiscal year subject to certain conditions, plus a pro rata share of such premiums as may have been paid
upon the purchase of any Class E preference shares. The preference shares do not carry a retraction right.
Each of the Class E preference shares is entitled to non-cumulative preferential dividends to be declared at
the discretion of the Board.
Membership
#
Balance – September 30, 2017
Exercised stock options
Share redemptions
Return of capital
Balance – September 30, 2018
Exercised stock options
Share redemptions
Return of capital
Balance – September 30, 2019

3,375
(110)
3,265
(45)
3,220

$

337,500
(11,000)
326,500
(4,500)
322,000

Class E
#
10,909,279
13,169
10,922,448
7,814
10,930,262

$

Total

$

13,450,381

13,787,881

65,845
(2,181,535)

65,845
(11,000)
(2,181,535)

11,334,691

11,661,191

39,070
(9,745)
11,364,016

39,070
(4,500)
(9,745)
11,686,016

Return of capital
Class E shares
Return of capital payment of $0.05/ share for shares outstanding as of November 15,
2017
Return of capital payment of $0.05/ share for shares outstanding as of February 15,
2018
Return of capital payment of $0.05/ share for shares outstanding as of
May 15, 2018
Return of capital payment of $0.05/ share for shares outstanding as of
August 15, 2018
Total return of capital payments for the year-ended September 30, 2018

2018
$
544,220
544,625
548,038
544,652
2,181,535
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2019
$
Return of capital payments for undistributed payments to previously unlocatable
members for the year-ended September 30, 2019

9,745

11 Capital disclosures
Management’s objectives when it comes to managing capital is to safeguard the Co-operative’s ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can provide returns to its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders.
The Co-operative has no regulatory requirements with respect to capital; however, the subsidiary’s lender has
imposed certain covenants in connection with the subsidiary’s term debt and credit facilities. As at
September 30, 2019 and for the year then ended, the Co-operative and its subsidiary were in compliance with
these covenants.

12 Financial instruments
Fair value
The fair value of financial instruments, including cash, cash held in margin accounts, restricted cash, accounts
receivable, bank debt and accounts payable and accrued liabilities are determined to approximate their
recorded value due to their short-term maturity.
Derivative contracts are carried at fair value.
The repayable government assistance liabilities, term debt and subordinated debentures were recorded at fair
value at the time of recognition and are carried at amortized cost, which also approximates their fair value
(note 16 and note 22).
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
•

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

•

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and
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•

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
2019
Level 1
$

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

Total
$

-

9,676

-

9,676

-

9,676

-

9,676

September 30, 2018
Commodity swap contracts –
liability

As at September 30, 2019, the Co-operative did not have any derivative contracts outstanding.
The Co-operative’s derivative contracts typically include commodity swaps and options and foreign exchange
forwards. The Co-operative’s commodity swaps and options are classified within Level 2 because they are based
on commodity futures prices, and discount rates quoted by banks and other public data sources. The
Co-operative’s foreign exchange forwards are classified within Level 2 because they are based on future foreign
exchange rates quoted by banks and other public data sources.
The Co-operative has not reclassified financial instruments between levels of the fair value hierarchy in fiscal
2019 and 2018.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss because a counter party to a financial instrument fails to discharge its
contractual obligations. The Co-operative’s exposure to credit risk relates to its cash, cash held in margin
accounts, restricted cash, accounts receivable and derivative contracts in the aggregate amount of $5,548,116 as
at September 30, 2019 (2018 – $11,403,945). Cash, cash held in margin accounts and derivative contracts are
held with Canadian and American financial institutions. The Co-operative has insured a portion of trade
accounts receivable with a Canadian trade credit insurer. As at September 30, 2019, accounts receivables of
$4,177,006 (2018 – $3,585,662) were current and not impaired, $64,115 (2018 – $317,519) was insured and the
remaining $101,256 (2018 – $nil) from a single uninsured customer was written off as uncollectible.
Liquidity risk
The Co-operative's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
financial obligations when due through periodic monitoring of working capital balances. As at
September 30, 2019, the Co-operative had a cash balance of $1,205,739 (2018 – $4,721,589) and other current
assets of $14,272,519 (2018 – $16,029,792) to settle current liabilities of $16,423,180 (2018 – $27,723,034),
with the shortfall to be funded by the Co-operative's credit facilities (note 9). All of the Co-operative's current
financial liabilities have contractual maturities that range between 30 and 90 days and are subject to normal
trade terms excluding term debt (note 9) and repayable government assistance (note 16). The following are the
commitments to be settled in cash. The amounts presented represent the future undiscounted principal and
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interest cash flows, and therefore may not equate to the carrying amounts on the statement of financial
position.

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Term debt
Subordinated debentures (i)
Repayable government
assistance
Total

i)

2020
$

2021
$

2022
$

2023
$

2024
and
thereafter
$

10,175,192
7,495,373
829,670

9,660,415
829,670

9,279,368
14,070,674

8,898,322
-

42,828,512
-

10,175,192
78,161,990
15,730,014

1,348,216

1,414,300

1,134,300

1,134,300

3,270,014

8,301,130

19,848,451

11,904,385

24,484,342

10,032,622

46,098,526

112,368,326

Total
$

The subordinated debentures repayments include accrued interest. They are presented as an outflow
in 2022 due to the discretion the Co-operative has in the timing of redemption or paying interest.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the
interest rates. Changes in market interest rates may have an effect on the cash flows associated with some
financial assets and liabilities, known as cash flow risk, and on the fair value of other financial assets or
liabilities, known as price risk. The Co-operative is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its cash,
restricted cash and subordinated debentures.
The Co-Operative has fixed the interest rate on $54,140,790 of term debt and the remaining $6,158,023 of term
debt is exposed to interest rate fluctuations. A 1% increase in interest rates on term debt with variable interest,
holding all other variables constant, would decrease net income and comprehensive income by $46,185 (2018 –
$232,137).
Foreign currency risk
The Co-operative operates on an international basis and therefore, foreign exchange risk exposures arise from
transactions denominated in a foreign currency. The foreign exchange risk arises with respect to US dollars.
A $0.05 strengthening of the Canadian dollar compared to the US Dollar, holding all other variables constant,
would increase net income and comprehensive income by $34,294 (2018 – income of $38,986).
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The Co-operative’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in Canadian
dollars, was as follows:
2019
$
Cash
Cash held in margin accounts
Accounts receivables
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities
Derivative contracts

1,008,004
2,290,060
(3,898,890)
-

2018
$
(949,698)
82,951
2,333,616
(2,399,800)
(9,676)

13 Derivative contracts

Commodity swap contracts – (asset) liability

2019
$

2018
$

-

9,676

The Co-operative is exposed to the impact of market fluctuations associated with commodity prices and uses
derivative financial instruments as part of an overall strategy to manage market risk, assuming it has sufficient
liquidity to manage such a strategy. The Co-operative uses cash, forwards, swaps, and option contracts to
mitigate against the risk of changes to the commodity prices of corn and ethanol. The Co-operative will not
enter into these derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. These financial
instruments are accounted for using the mark-to-market method, with any changes in fair value immediately
recognized within cost of goods sold.
At September 30, 2019, the Co-operative had no derivative contracts outstanding. At September 30, 2018, the
following contracts were outstanding:

Derivatives designated
as FVTPL
Corn – buy

Average cost
$

Volume

2018
Expiry

$3.575/bushel

500,000 bushels

December 2018

The net market value of these open positions at September 30, 2018 was an unrealized loss of $9,676.
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14 Cost of goods sold
2019
$
Feedstock
Freight
Chemicals, enzymes, yeast and denaturant
Natural gas, electricity and water
Labour
Maintenance
Other production costs
Insurance
Property taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Net gain on commodity derivative contracts

172,961,998
2,520,272
15,687,473
14,826,647
6,674,516
3,004,646
1,376,567
806,808
495,339
7,019,170
(56,248)
225,317,188

2018
$
79,916,789
1,109,301
8,757,300
10,114,872
5,371,446
3,290,331
806,552
541,804
292,447
3,487,780
(137,385)
113,551,237

15 Commitments
Corn supply agreement
The Co-operative has entered into an agreement with a company for the supply of corn. It is expected that
900,000 metric tonnes are to be supplied each year. As at September 30, 2019, the Co-operative is committed
to purchasing 439,049 metric tonnes of corn with delivery dates ranging from October 1, 2019 to October 31,
2020.
Natural gas agreement
The Co-operative entered into an agreement for the supply of natural gas. As at September 30, 2019, the
Co-operative is committed to purchasing 8,230,750 Gigajoules of natural gas with delivery dates ranging from
October 2019 to October 2022.
Risk management agreement
The Co-operative has entered into an agreement with a risk management services provider to implement an
integrated price risk management program. At September 30, 2018, in order to cover unrealized gains and
losses on open commodity positions, the Co-operative deposited $82,951 with the risk management services
provider, and this amount is recorded in cash held in margin accounts in the statement of financial position.
At September 30, 2019, as there were no remaining open commodity positions, no deposit existed.
Ethanol marketing agreement
The Co-operative has entered into an exclusive agreement with an ethanol marketer for the marketing of all of
the ethanol production for the Co-operative. The ethanol marketing company has agreed to take and pay for
100% of the output at prevailing market rates.
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Raw carbon dioxide sales agreement
The Co-operative has entered into an exclusive sales agreement with an industrial gases company for a period of
twenty years. The industrial gases company has agreed to take and pay for 100% of the output. The twenty years
is from the start-up date on May 11, 2018.
Letters of Credit
The Co-operative is obligated to provide a letter of credit to the natural gas distributor to ensure performance
under the natural gas delivery contract. At year-end, a letter of credit in the amount of $2,432,326
(2018 – $2,993,571) was issued in their favour (note 8).

16 Repayable government assistance
Federal Economic Development Agency for Southern Ontario (Fed Dev)
In October 2018, the Co-operative signed an interest free loan agreement with Fed Dev for $5,000,000 in
support of construction of the plant expansion. The loan is for a term of 7 years, with equal monthly payments
beginning in April 2020. These funds were received during the year, and an amount of $3,872,914, representing
the present value of the liability discounted at 5.56%, was recorded as repayable government assistance. The
variance of $1,127,086 was recorded as a government grant, and used to reduce the capital additions recorded
in property, plant and equipment. At year-end, the balance of this obligation was $4,020,935.
Agri-Innovation Loan Program
In February 2015, the Co-operative received an interest free loan of $3,560,838 for capital contributions related
to the Fiber Separation Technology additions to the plant. The loan is for a term of 10 years and is repayable
through equal monthly repayments starting August 1, 2016 to August 1, 2025. An amount of $2,843,669;
representing the present value of these payments discounted at 4.2% was recorded as a repayable government
grant liability, with the difference in the present value of the liability and the cash consideration received being
recorded as a government grant, reducing the amount of capital additions recorded in property, plant and
equipment. During the year, the Co-operative signed an agreement to defer 6 payments, and amortize them
over the remaining term of the loan. For this interest free deferment, the Co-operative recorded $84,554 as a
government grant and reduced the book value of the Fiber Separation Technology. At year-end, the balance of
this obligation was $2,169,668 (2018 – $2,371,430).
Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA)
In March 2009, the Co-operative received a capital grant of $14,000,000 after completion of the project and
achieving nameplate capacity by establishing the capability of producing 145 million litres of ethanol in a
calendar year. As a condition precedent to receiving the grant, the Co-operative is committed to contribute
$2,800,000 over ten years to a future industry related Research and Development Fund, as administered by the
Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario. The first payment was made on April 1, 2012, three years after the
full grant was received. An amount of $1,356,921, representing the present value of these payments discounted
at 6.6%, was recorded as a research and development fund liability, thus reducing the amount of capital grant
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recognized for the purpose of recording the net cost of property, plant and equipment. During the year, the Cooperative signed an amendment with OMAFRA to defer the current year’s payment to 2020. At year-end, the
balance of this obligation was $764,639 (2018 – $708,630).

17 Selling, general and administrative expenses

Short-term compensation expense
Bank fees and related charges
Consulting and professional fees
Memberships
Office and administration
Bad debt expense
Risk management
Travel
Depreciation

2019
$

2018
$

1,580,976
168,775
512,543
69,489
340,707
101,256
76,115
238,429

2,363,339
150,446
639,569
120,715
860,130

3,088,290

4,488,541

2019
$

2018
$

40,442
80,917
232,983

18 Interest expense

Bank debt
Interest accretion on research and development fund liability
Interest accretion on AIP loan
Interest accretion on Fed Dev loan
Interest accretion on subordinated debentures
Interest accretion on term debt
Accretion of deferred financing fees
Less: Capitalized interest

66,516
56,009
40,972
148,021
449,965
3,497,676
147,685
(67,050)
4,339,794

5,150
69,876
106,227
385,358
1,787,677
(2,173,035)
181,253

Interest of $67,050 (2018 – $2,173,035) from term debt, and subordinated debentures was capitalized to
construction in progress, as they were directly obtained to finance the construction of the plant expansion.
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19 Net change in non-cash working capital balances

Decrease (increase) in
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Income taxes recoverable
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2019
$

2018
$

(439,196)
(456,062)
51,441
(525,393)

(990,074)
(1,063,506)
84,138
(1,259,164)

(11,417,546)

(2,313,787)

(12,786,756)

(5,542,393)

20 Stock options
The Co-operative is authorized to grant certain directors options to purchase Class E preference shares of the
Co-operative. The Co-operative, in a prior year, authorized $695,300 worth of Class E preference share options
to certain directors for services provided prior to substantial completion of the ethanol plant, which occurred on
October 15, 2008.
These options vest when issued and under the Co-operative Corporations Act are exercisable at $0.01 per share
until they expire on April 18, 2021. They will be deemed to have been automatically exercised immediately
before any change in control of the Co-operative or before the sale of substantially all of its assets.
During the year, the Co-operative received $78 (2018 – $132) from the exercise of 7,814 (2018 – 13,169) options
at $0.01 per Class E preference share. Additionally, contributed surplus was adjusted by $38,992 (2018 –
$65,713) for stock-based compensation previously recorded on these exercised stock options.
As at September 30, 2019, there were 41,879 (2018 – 49,693) stock options outstanding.

21 Income taxes
The income tax on the Co-operative’s income before tax differs from the amount that would result using the
theoretically applicable tax rate of the Co-operative as follows:
2019
$
Loss before income tax
Income tax calculated at applicable tax rate
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Other

%

(16,019,157)
(4,004,789)

2018
$

%

(7,102,948)
25.0

(1,775,737)

(8,079)
9,289

0.1
(0.1)

10,581
(120,741)

(4,003,579)

25.0

(1,885,897)

25.0
(0.2)
1.7
26.5
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Deferred income taxes
Tax assets and liabilities by balances by types of temporary differences:

Deferred income tax assets
Non-capital loss carryforward

Deferred income tax liability

2019
$

2018
$

42,044

20,567

2019
$

2018
$

Unrealized loss on commodity derivative contracts
Research and development fund liability
Donation carryforward
Non-capital loss carryforward
Corporate minimum tax carryforward
Agri-innovation loan interest
Fed Dev loan interest
Deferred financing costs
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(191,160)
(16,544)
(5,640,852)
78,725
244,766
107,237
20,908,017

(68,596)
67,833
78,275
16,797,892

Total deferred income tax liabilities

15,490,189

16,680,000

2019
$

2018
$

42,044

20,567

42,044

20,567

-

-

15,490,189

16,680,000

15,490,189

16,680,000

Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within one year
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax liabilities to be recovered within one year
Deferred income tax liabilities to be recovered after more than one
year

(2,419)
(177,158)
(15,827)
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The movements on the deferred income tax balances are as follows:
Deferred
income tax
assets
$

Deferred
income tax
liabilities
$

Net deferred
income tax
liabilities
$

(394)

16,410,000

16,409,606

Deferred income tax (recovery) expense

(20,173)

270,000

249,827

Balance at September 30, 2018

(20,567)

16,680,000

16,659,433

Deferred income tax expense

(21,477)

(1,189,811)

(1,211,288)

Balance at September 30, 2019

(42,044)

15,490,189

15,448,145

2019
$

2018
$

2017 debentures maturing on August 15, 2022 and bearing interest
at 5.5% paid quarterly

7,292,000

7,292,000

2019 debentures maturing on February 1, 2022 and bearing interest
at 7.0% paid quarterly

6,123,000

-

Balance at September 30, 2017

22 Subordinated debentures

Less: Deferred financing fees on debentures

(336,260)
13,078,740

(195,677)
7,096,323

The redemption of the 2017 subordinated debentures shall commence based on the financial results for the
fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2020 through a sinking fund based on the Co-operative’s financial results. The
Co-operative has the discretion to redeem the 2017 subordinate debentures provided that all interest has been
paid on these debentures and the Co-operative’s subsidiary is not in default of the Senior Credit Facilities and
such redemption would not cause a default under the Senior Credit Facilities.
The redemption of the 2019 subordinated debentures shall take place upon the expiry of their 30-month term
from date of first issuance. Prior to this January 31, 2022 date, the Co-operative has the discretion to redeem
the 2019 subordinate debentures in whole or in part following January 31, 2021 provided that all interest has
been paid on these debentures and the Co-operative’s subsidiary is not in default of the Senior Credit Facilities
and such redemption would not cause a default under the Senior Credit Facilities.
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23 Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year includes
short-term compensation of $1,967,632 (2018 – $2,477,467).

24 Sales
The Co-operative disaggregates revenue into categories which represent its principal performance obligations
and most significant revenue streams, and consequently are considered the most relevant revenue information
for management to consider in evaluating performance. The following table provides sales data that is
disaggregated by product lines by primary geographical area.
2019

Ethanol
Co-products

Canada
$

USA
$

Other
$

Total
$

174,913,736
33,968,196

5,945,551

1,639,625

174,913,736
41,553,372

208,881,932

5,945,551

1,639,625

216,467,108
2018

Ethanol
Co-products

Canada
$

USA
$

Other
$

Total
$

87,488,737
19,286,897

2,947,744

1,190,341

87,488,737
23,424,982

106,775,634

2,947,744

1,190,341

110,913,719

i) Ethanol
The Co-operative recognizes revenue on the sale of ethanol to an ethanol marketer at prevailing market rates
consistent with the description of the ethanol marketing agreement disclosed in Note 15 at the time of shipment
and payments are received on a weekly basis. Upon shipment, all goods have been quality tested to ensure
product specifications are met, and no further obligations exist.
ii) Co-products
Sales are measured based on the consideration specified in contracts with customers. The Co-operative
recognizes revenue from co-products (various distillers’ grains, corn oil and CO2) at the time of shipment. The
majority of these sales are on a weekly basis. The payment terms for co-product sales vary between 7 and 30
days. Upon shipment, all goods have been quality tested to ensure product specifications are met, and no
further obligations exist.
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SCHEDULE D
CLASS E PREFERENCE SHARES ACQUISITION APPLICATION

INTEGRATED GRAIN PROCESSORS CO-OPERATIVE INC.
Class E Share Acquisition Agreement

Name

Telephone

(please print)

Address

Fax
_____________________________
E-mail

I hereby apply to acquire Class E Preference Shares of Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc. (the
“Co-operative”) on the share transfer platform administered by Caldwell Securities Limited.
I agree that if my application is accepted and I acquire Class E Preference Shares, I will abide by all the bylaws and policies of the Co-operative.

Prospective Acquirors Acknowledgments
By signing this Application Agreement, I hereby acknowledge and agree on my own behalf (and, if
applicable, for others for whom I am contracting hereunder) that:
1.
I have received and read a copy of the Offering Statement dated August 19, 2020 of the Cooperative;
2.
I have specifically noted the Description of the Securities Offered in Section 8 and the Risk Factors
in Section 5 of the Offering Statement;
3.
I have been advised that there can be no assurance that I will receive any distribution on securities
or be able to redeem the securities upon request;
4.
there are substantial risks associated with my investment in the Co-operative, I am aware of the
characteristics of the securities, I am capable of assessing the merits and risks of my investment (including
the potential loss of my entire investment) and that I may lose my entire investment;
5.
there are restrictions upon the transfer of the securities and that there is no market and a highly
illiquid trading platform for the Class E Preference Shares;
6.
I have considered whether or not I should obtain independent legal, financial and tax advice on the
suitability of this investment to my particular financial situation, and I have either obtained such advice or
determined that I do not require such advice;

7.
I have had an opportunity to ask and have been answered by the Co-operative’s officers all
questions (to my full satisfaction) that I wished to raise with respect to: (a) the business and affairs of the Cooperative; (b) the securities described in this Offering Statement; and (c) this Class E Share Acquisition
Agreement;
8.
other than as set out in the Offering Statement, the Co-operative has not made any representation
relating to its future performance or given any projections or forecasts, financial or otherwise, to me;
9.
I am not acquiring securities with knowledge of material information concerning the Co-operative
which has not been generally disclosed;
10.
my ability to transfer the acquired securities may be limited by, among other things, applicable
laws and is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Co-operative. I hereby further agree that
I or, if applicable, others for whom I am contracting hereunder, will comply with all relevant laws and other
restrictions concerning any resale of the securities and will consult with my own, or their own, legal advisers
with respect to complying with all applicable restrictions and requirements applying to any such resale; and
11.

there is no government insurance covering the securities;

12.
legal counsel retained by the Co-operative is acting as legal counsel to the Co-operative and not as
my counsel. No legal counsel has conducted any independent review of the Co-operative, its business or
operations or its prospects; and
13.
I am knowledgeable, sophisticated and experienced in business and financial matters and am
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the securities, fully understand the investment
in the securities and the restrictions on transfer described in this Acquisition Agreement and am able to bear
the economic risk of an investment in the securities.
Representations and Warranties
I hereby represent and warrant to the Co-operative that:
1.
I or the beneficial purchaser for whom I am acting, as appropriate, will execute and deliver all
documentation as may be required by applicable laws to permit the purchase of the shares;
2.
this Acquisition Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by me, and
constitutes a legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of, myself or the beneficial purchaser for whom
I am acting;
3.
if an individual, I have obtained the age of majority and in every case I am legally competent to
execute this Agreement and to take all actions required pursuant hereto; and
4.
I and, if applicable, the beneficial purchaser for whom I am contracting, are resident in the
jurisdiction set out at the beginning of this Agreement.
Reliance Upon Representations and Warranties
I acknowledge and agree that the representations, warranties, covenants, acknowledgments and agreements
made by me herein are made with the intention that they may be relied upon by the Co-operative in
determining my eligibility (and, if applicable, the eligibility of others for whom I am contracting hereunder)
to purchase the securities under applicable laws. The representations, warranties and covenants contained
herein shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding any subsequent disposition by me or any such
beneficial purchaser of the shares.
Please make all cheques payable to Caldwell Securities Ltd.

Signature:
Date:

Name
(please print)

Address

SCHEDULE E
WD OPINION AND OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

August 19, 2020
Integrated Grain Processors Co-Operative Inc.
89 Progress Dr
Aylmer ON
N5H 2R9
Dear Sir(s)/Mesdames:
Re: Integrated Grain Processors Co-Operative Eligibility for Investment
You have asked us to provide an opinion as to whether the Class E P efe e ce Sha e ( he Shares ) of
Integrated Grain Processors Co-O e a i e I c. ( IGPC ) that are currently issued and outstanding qualify
a a
a ified i e e
de Reg a i 4900(6) of the Income Tax Act (Ca ada) ( ITA ) f
registered retirement savings plans, registered education savings plans, and registered retirement income
funds (each referred to herein as a R
P a ).
Our opinion herein is based upon:
1. The assumption that the statements of fact set out in the certificate of the Chief Executive
Officer/Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer of IGPC
dated August 19, 2020 ( he O c
C
ca ) are true and correct as of the date hereof. We
ha e
ade a i de e de
e ifica i
f he fac e
i he Office Ce ifica e. A copy
of he Office Certificate is attached hereto a E hibi A .
2. Our analysis of the prescription of a
a ified i e e pursuant to Regulation 4900(6) of the
ITA for a trust governed by a Registered Plan.
3. The assumption that the Shares wi
be a
hibi ed i e e
de b ec i 207.01(1)
f he ITA f Regi e ed P a i c ec i
i h he Regi e ed P a ac i i i
f he Sha e .
Our opinion herein is based upon the current provisions of the ITA and the regulations thereto, and our
understanding of the current administrative and assessing policies of the Canada Revenue Agency. The
de e i a i
f he he he Sha e a e a
a ified i e e
under Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA at
any particular time i de e de
he he IGPC ee he defi i i
f a e igib e c
ai
pursuant
to Regulation 5100(1) of the ITA at that time and whether or not he Sha e a e a
hibi ed i e e
pursuant to subsection 207.01(1) of the ITA of such Registered Plan at that time. Facts may change and
a e
i he Sha e cea i g be a
a ified i e e under Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA at any
time subsequent to the date of this opinion.
Under Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA, a share of the capital stock of a e igib e c
ai
is a qualified
investment for a Registered Plan at any time provided that at that time the share is
a
hibi ed
i e e for a trust governed by a Registered Plan under subsection 207.01(1) of the ITA. A e igib e
corporation at any time, as defined in Regulation 5100(1) of the ITA, is a taxable Canadian corporation
all or substantially all (generally meaning at least 90% or more) of the property of which is at that time:
#3506485v7
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(i)
(ii)
(iii)

used in a qualifying active business carried on by the corporation or by a corporation
controlled by it;
shares of the capital stock of one or more eligible corporations that are related to the
corporation, or debt obligations issued by those eligible corporations; or
any combination of the properties described above.

Excluded f
he defi i i
f e igib e c
ai
a e e i ie ha are: (a) banks, (b) traders or dealers
in securities, (c) trust companies, (d) companies controlled by one or more non-residents, and (e) other
corporations which are not relevant for the purpose of this opinion.
A
a if i g ac i e b i e , also defined in Regulation 5100(1) of the ITA, means any business carried
on primarily in Canada by a corporation, but specifically excludes a business that principally derives income
from property, or a business deriving gains from the disposition of property (except inventory). For
e f hi defi i i , a b i e
ca ied
i a i i Ca ada b a c
ai
i dee ed
include a business carried on by the corporation if at that time:
(i)
(ii)

at least 50% of the full-time employees of the corporation and all corporations related
thereto employed in respect of the business are employed in Canada; or
at least 50% of the salaries and wages paid to employees of the corporation and all
corporations related thereto employed in respect of the business are reasonably attributable
to services rendered in Canada.

In addition, i
de f he Sha e
a if a a
a ified i e e
de Reg a i 4900(6) of the
ITA for Registered Plans at any particular time, the Shares cannot, at such time, be a
hibi ed
i e e
de
b ec i 207.01(1) of the ITA for the Registered Plan. S ecifica , a c
i g
i di id a , hich i defi ed i
b ec i 207.01(1) f he ITA i c de a b c ibe f a egi e ed
education savings plan or an annuitant of a registered retirement income fund or registered retirement
a i g a , ca
ha e a ig ifica i e e (a defi ed i
b ec i 207.01(4) f he ITA) in IGPC
a d
dea a a
e g h i h IGPC. Ge e a , a ig ifica i e e i defi ed
ea , i he ca e
of a corporation, the ownership by a c
i g i di id a (either alone or together with persons that the
c
i g i di id a d e
dea a a
e g h), ei he di ec
i di ec , f
e ha 10% f
the issued shares of any class of the capital stock of IGPC or any other corporation that is related to IGPC.
O he ha he c di i
ha
c
i g i di id a ha a ig ifica i e e i IGPC a
he
corporation that is related to IGPC a d he c
i g i di id a dea a a
e g h i h IGPC, there
are no other limitations on the ownership of the Shares that can be held by Registered Plans.
We have not made any review to determine if the Sha e f IGPC a e a
hibi ed i e
term is defined under subsection 207.01(1) of the ITA, for a Registered Plan.

e

,a

ch a

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, and having regard to such legal considerations and factual
information as we consider relevant, we are of the opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Shares are qualified
investments for a trust governed by a Registered Plan pursuant to Regulation 4900(6) of the ITA. We
repeat, however, the caution described above in that any change in factual circumstances surrounding IGPC,
a ic a
h e fac de c ibed i he Office Ce ifica e, a e
i he Sha e cea i g
be a
a ified i e e
de Reg a i 4900(6) f he ITA a a
i e be e
he da e f hi
opinion.
This opinion letter is limited to the matters stated herein, and no opinion or belief is implied or should be
inferred beyond the matters expressly stated herein. This opinion letter is solely for the benefit of the
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addressee hereof and not for the benefit of any other person and may not be used, circulated, quoted, relied
upon or otherwise referred to without prior written consent. We assume no obligation to update this opinion.
Yours truly,
WILDEBOER DELLELCE LLP

Wakhber Silkk Los
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EXHIBIT A
OFFICER S CERTIFICATE
(see attached)
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INTEGRATED GRAIN PROCESSORS CO-OPERATIVE INC.
OFFICER

CER IFICA E

The undersigned, Kevin Norton and Ashton Nembhard hereby certify that each of them are the
duly appointed Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer/Chief
Financial Officer, respectively, of Integrated Grain Processors Co-Operative Inc. (the “Corporation ), a
cooperative corporation existing under the laws of the Province of Ontario. Each of the undersigned hereby
further certify for and on behalf of the Corporation that the following may be relied on by you without
further inquiry that:
1.

Each of the undersigned have reviewed such books and records of the Corporation
and other applicable documents and have made such inquiries and investigations
as each of the undersigned have considered necessary and advisable to verify the
matters set out in this certificate.

2.

The Corporation was incorporated under the provisions of the Co-Operative
Corporations Act (Ontario) on April 4, 2002.

3.

The Corporation s head office is in Ontario and the Corporation is a resident of
Canada for tax purposes.

4.

The Corporation is the sole shareholder of IGPC Ethanol Inc., a corporation
incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) (“IGPC Ethanol )
on March 22, 2007. The business of the Corporation and of IGPC Ethanol is the
production of ethanol (the “Business ) in Ontario, Canada.

5.

Neither the Corporation nor IGPC Ethanol trade or deal in securities on its own
account, or is a bank, trust company, credit union, insurance corporation or a
corporation whose principal business is the lending of money or the purchasing of
debt obligations.

6.

More than 50% of the full-time employees of the Corporation and more than 50%
of the full-time employees of IGPC Ethanol reside in Canada and more than 50%
of the salaries and wages of each of the Corporation and IGPC Ethanol are paid to
such employees.

7.

All of the assets of the Corporation are comprised of a combination of: (i) assets
that are used in the Business; (ii) shares of IGPC Ethanol and (iii) debt obligations
issued by IGPC Ethanol. All of the assets of IGPC Ethanol are used in the
Business.

8.

Less than 50% of the shares of the Corporation outstanding on the date hereof are
owned by one or more persons who are not resident in Canada, and there is no
agreement among the shareholders of the Corporation that give non-residents of
Canada the right to elect a majority of the members of the board of directors of the
Corporation.

9.

No person owns 10% or more of the issued shares of any class of the capital stock
of the Corporation or of any other corporation that is related to the Corporation,
either directly or with any other person to whom such person does not deal at arm s
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length.
All shareholders of the Corporation deal at arm s length with the
Corporation.
10.

Each of the undersigned understand that Wildeboer Dellelce LLP is relying upon
the foregoing facts in providing an opinion as to the status of the issued and
outstanding Class E Preference Shares of the Corporation as a “qualified
investment and not a “prohibited investment as those terms are defined in the
Income Tax Act (Canada).

DATED this 19th day of August, 2020.
Name: Ashton Nembhard
Title: Chief Executive Officer/Chief Financial
Officer

Name: Kevin Norton
Title: Chief Executive Officer/Chief Operating
Officer
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